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ORDERS OF REFERENCE
HoOUSE OF COMMONS,
o0 4 MonpAYy, February 7, 1966.

_ Resolved —That the following Members do compose. the Standmg Com-
mittee on Finance, Trade and Economic Affairs: : ; SUG T

Messrs.

Andras, Flemming, Leboe,
Basford, Gordon, : o ewids, i
Cameron (Nanimo- Gray, McLean (Charlotte),

Cowichan-The Islands), Grégoire, Monteith,
Cashin, Hees, More (Regina
Chrétien, Irvine, City),
Clermont, - Laflamme, Munro,
Coates, Lambert, ‘ RN ~ 1221 (o) s FERINERS
Comtois, = - Lamontagne, @ Valade—(25).

Ordered,—That, notwithstanding the provisions of Standing Order 65, the
said Committee shall consist of twenty-five members.

THURSDAY, February 10, 1966.

Ordered,—That Bill C-111, An Act to incorporate Bank of Western Canada,
be referred to the Standing Committee on Finance, Trade and Economic Affairs.

WEDNESDAY, February 23, 1966.

Ordered,—That the name of Mr. Horner (Acadia) be substituted for that of

Mr. Flemming, on the Standing Committee on Finance, Trade and Economic
Affairs.

THURSDAY, February 24, 1966.

Ordered,—That the name of Mr. Macdonald (Rosedale) be substituted for

that of Mr. Gordon on the Standing Committee on Finance, Trade and Economic
Affairs.

Attest

LEON-J. RAYMOND
The Clerk of the House.

23648—13



REPORT TO THE HOUSE

Vs ; FEBRUARY 22, 1966.

..The Standing Committee on Finance, Trade and Economic Affairs has the
honour to present its

FIRST REPORT

Your Committee recommends that it be authorized to sit while the House is
sitting.
Respectfully submitted,

HERB GRAY,
Chairman.

Report concurred in March 1, 1966 to have effect for that day only.



MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

THURSDAY. February 17, 1966.
(1)

The Standing Committee on Finance, Trade and Economic Affairs met at
9:30 a.m. this day for purposes of organization.

Members present: Messrs. Andras, Basford, Cashin, Chrétien, Coates,
Comtois, Gray, Hees, Irvine, Laflamme, Lambert, Leboe, Lewis, McLean
(Charlotte), Monteith, Munro, Stafford, Valade (18).

The Committee Clerk attending, and having called for nominations, Mr.
Basford moved, seconded by Mr. McLean (Charlotte) that Mr. Gray do take the
Chair of this Committee as Chairman.

On motion of Mr. Andras, seconded by Mr. Laflamme,
Resolved,—That nominations be closed.

Mr. Gray, having been declared elected as Chairman, thereupon tbdk the
Chair, and thanked the Committee for the honour conferred upon him.

Mr. Comtois moved, seconded by Mr. McLean (Charlotte) that Mr.
Laflamme be elected Vice-Chairman of this Committee.

On motion of Mr. Comtois, seconded by Mr. Cashin,

Resolved,—That nominations be closed.

Mr. Laflamme was therefore declared elected as Vice-Chairman of the
Committee. :

Mr. Monteith moved, seconded by Mr. Basford, that a Sub-Committee on
Agenda and Procedure be appointed, composed of the Chairman and a number
of members to be appointed by him after consultation with the Party Whips..

Mr. Lambert moved in amendment, seconded by Mr. Hees, that the words
following “the Chairman” be deleted and the following substituted therefor:

“and two representatives from the Liberal Party, two from the Progressive
Conservative Party and one representing the other Parties, with provision for
alternates as the case may require”.

After discussion, on motion of Mr. Lewis, seconded by Mr. Leboe,
Resolved,—That this motion and amendment be tabled until the nex

meeting. :
On motion of Mr. Lambert, seconded by Mr. Basford,

Resolved,—That the Committee request permission to sit while the House is
sitting.
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The Chairman stated that Bill C-111, An Act to incorporate the Bank of
Western Canada, has been referred and may be considered by the Committee on
or after February 18th. He suggested that it might be possible for the
Committee to commence study of this Bill on Thursday, February 24th.

At 10:00 a.m. the Commlttee adjourned to the call of the Chair, on motion
of Mr. Hees

TuUESDAY, March 1, 1966
(2)

The Standing Committee on Fmance Trade and Economic Affalrs met at
9 35 a.m, thi§ day, the:Chairman, Mr. Gray, presiding.

£

Members present: Messrs. Basford, Cashin, Chrétien, Clermont, Coates,
Comtois, Gray, Grégoire, Hees, Horner (Acadia), Irvine, Laflamme, Lambert,
Leboe, Lewis,; Macdonald - (Rosedale), McLean® (Charlotte), Montelth More
(Regina City), Stafford. (20)

In attendance: Messrs. J.-T. Richard, M.P. (Sponsor of Bill C-111); D.
Gordon Blair, Parliamentary Agent; Sinclair M. Stevens, Toronto; James E.
Coyne, Toronto C. F. Elderkin, Inspector General of Banks.

. Also in attendance: Messrs. Maxwell Bruce, Q.C., Toronto; John L. Bodle,
‘Edmonton; J. D Tlgert Toronto; Richard J. Stanbury, Toronto Joseph A.
Chlappeta Toronto.

On ‘motion of Mr Lew1s seconded by Mr. Leboe,

Resolved,—That the motion and amendment referring to the composition of
the sub-committee on agenda and procedure be tabled until the next meeting.

On motion of Mr. Laflamme, seconded by Mr, Clermont,

'Resolved,—That the committee cause to be printed 750 copies in Engliéh and
300 copies in French of the Mmutes of Proceedings and Evidence relating to Bill
,C 111. ; i

- ‘The committee then proceeded to consideration of Bill C-111, An Act to
incorporate Bank of Western Canada.

' "On'the preamble

"The Sponsor, Mr. Rlchard introduced the Parliamentary Agent, Mr. Blaxr,
who made a brief 1ntroductory statement, and introduced Mr. Stevens and Mr.
Coyne, two of the proposed provisional directors of the Bank.

Mr. Stevens then introduced the other witnesses and made a statement
concerning the reasons for considering that there is room for more banks in
.Canada, the procedure for forming a new bank in Canada, the steps that have
been taken to form the Bank of Western Canada and its method of operation
should a charter be granted.

The committee requested that copies of Mr. Stevens’ statement be made
available for the afternoon sitting.

Mr. Coyne then made a statement dealing with the history of chartered
banking in Canada, the opportunities now open for starting new banks as
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business operations, precautions taken to ensure that the Bank of Western
Canada will remain in Canadian hands, the economic development of the
Western provinces and the part that financial institutions can play in that
development, and the staffing of the proposed bank.

Mr. Stevens and Mr. Coyne were questioned.

The questioning continuing, the committee adjourned at 12:00 noon until
3:30 p.m. this day, if permission is granted by the House to sit while the House
is sitting.

AFTERNOON SITTING

(3)

The committee resumed at 4:20 p.m. this day, the Chairman, Mr. Gray,
presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Basford, Cashin, Clermont, Coates, Comtois,
Gray, Horner (Acadia), Laflamme, Lambert, Leboe, Macdonald (Rosedale),
Monteith, More (Regina City), Stafford. (15)

In attendance: The same as at the morning sitting with the exception of
Messrs. Chiapetta and Stanbury.

Copies of the statement made by Mr. Stevens at the morning sitting were
distributed, as requested.

Questioning of the witnesses was resumed.

In reply to a question by Mr. Comtois regarding the controlling of blocks of
shares, Mr. Stevens tabled two charts showing the relationship of the companies
known as the British International Group and explained the charts. (See
Evidence)

On motion of Mr. Basford, seconded by Mr. Leboe,

Resolved,—That the charts tabled by Mr. Stevens be appended to this day’s
Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence. (See Appendices A and B.)

The questioning continuing, the committee adjourned at 6:04 p.m. until
Thursday, March 3, 1966, at 9:30 a.m.
Dorothy F. Ballantine,
Clerk of the Committee.






EVIDENCE

TuEsDAY, March 1, 1966.

e (9: 35 am.)

The CHAIRMAN: Members of the committee, I see a quorum and, therefore, I
will call the meeting to order.

The first item on our agenda, which is held over from our organization
meeting, is the motion and the amendment to it dealing with a subcommittee on
agenda and procedure. I thought perhaps that there might be some consensus on
this question which may have evolved since our last meeting but no such
consensus has been communicated to me.

Mr. MoNTEITH: Did you send out any feelers?

The CHAIRMAN: Yes, I have been making inquiries. However, I have a
suggestion to make to the members at this time.

As you know, we have a bill before us for consideration and a number of
witnesses have travelled some distance to give us their testimony on this bill.

Rather than begin our hearing this morning with discussions on this motion
and the amendment thereto, which are of importance but, however, not of
immediate importance, I would suggest and invite the members of the commit-
tee to table this motion and the amendment and we will discuss it at our next
meeting at which time we will have more opportunity to discuss it.

Mr. LEwis: Mr. Chairman, I so move.

Mr. LEBoOE: I second the motion.

Motion agreed to.

The CHAIRMAN: The next item of business on our agenda is the printing of
the Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence in respect of Bill C-111. I invite
someone to make a motion that the committee cause to be printed 750 copies in
English and 300 copies in French of the Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence
relating to Bill No. C-111.

Mr. LAFLAMME: I so move.

Mr. CLERMONT: I second the motion.

Motion agreed to.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, we have had referred to us for consideration
this morning Bill No. C-111, an act to incorporate the Bank of Western Canada.

I will begin the proceedings by calling the preamble and then I would ask
the sponsor of the bill, Mr. Richard, to introduce the parliamentary agent and
the witnesses.

Before calling upon Mr. Richard I would like to make the suggestion that
after Mr. Richard introduces the sponsor and the witnesses we then hear each of
those who wish to make any general opening statement, and then invite general
questions from members of the committee.

9
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Mr. Elderkin, inspector-general of banks, will be in attendance, and after
the introduction of the witnesses and the general opening statements, as I have
mentioned, we can then proceed with a more detailed discussion and question-
ing on each of the clauses of the bill, as we proceed, following discussion of the
preamble.

On the preamble.

Mr. JEAN T. RicHARD (Sponsor): Mr. Chairman and gentlemen, I have the
pleasure of introducing Mr. Gordon Blair, Q.C., and I will leave it to him to
introduce the witnesses present this morning.

Mr. D. GorpoN BraIr (Parliamentary Agent): Mr. Chairman and gentlemen,
Afirst, may I be permitted to thank Mr. Richard for conferring the honour of a
Queen’s Counsel upon me. However, the record should be corrected in this
regard as such an honour has not been conferred.

We have with us this morning the principal sponsors of the bill, together
with other people who will become shareholders of this bank, if it becomes
incorporated.

Gentlemen, I do not propose to take up very much of your time this
morning with an opening statement.

The bill which you have before you is in the form prescribed in the
schedule in the Bank Act, and it sets forth all the particulars which are
required by that schedule and the model bill which constitutes the schedule.

The only variation from the model bill is in clause 5, which is designed to
ensure that the nonresident shareholders of this bank shall not constitute more
than 10 per cent of the total shareholders.

Mr. Chairman, I would suggest that we first hear from Mr. Sinclair M.
Stevens, who will make a statement, followed by Mr. James E. Coyne.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Stevens, would you proceed.

Mr. SincLATR McKNIGHT STEVENS: Mr. Chairman and members of the
committee, may I first thank you for giving us an opportunity to appear before
you today concerning our application to incorporate the Bank of Western
Canada.

I would like to mention at this time that several members of the proposed
provisional directors of the bank, future shareholders of the bank and. support-
ers of our project, are with us today and, with your leave, Mr. Chairman, I
would like to introduce them to the committee at this time.

We have Mr. Bodie from Edmonton, Mr. Bodie will be a provisional
director. Also with us is Mr. Bruce, from Toronto, and he will be a provisional
director; Mr. Coyne from Toronto, will be a director. Mr. Nesbitt was to be with
us this morning. He got underway last Thursday, but when the meeting was
adjourned he had to bo back to Winnipeg and, unfortunately could not be with
us today. Mr. Nesbitt will be a director. ;

The other three gentlemen I would like to introduce are Mr. Chiappetta.
Mr. Chiappetta is a shareholder of the proposed bank.

Mr. LEwis: Where is Mr. Chiappetta from?

Mr. STEVENS: Toronto. Then there is Mr. Stanbury, also of Toronto, a
shareholder, and Mr. Tigert, who is my assistant.

Mr. LEwis: Where is Mr. Tigert from?
Mr. STEVENS: He is from Toronto.
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It is proposed that I will make some opening remarks concerning our
application and that Mr. Coyne will conclude our remarks today. As mentioned
by Mr. Blair, both Mr. Coyne and myself will then be available to answer any
questions you may care to put to us.

In considering the question of incorporating a new bank in Canada, you
may feel it helpful to consider this matter under four headings: (1) Is there
room for more banks in Canada; (2) What is the procedure for forming a new
bank in Canada; (3) What steps have been taken to form the Bank of Western
Canada; (4) How will the proposed Bank of Western Canada function should a
charter be granted.

e (9: 50 am.)

Mr. Coyne and myself will touch on these points during our presentations
to you today. It is now over two years since our group announced their
intention to apply to parliament for the incorporation of the Bank of Western
Canada. Advertising with respect to our application commenced in the Canada
Gazette on December 18, 1963.

Prior to making our application for the proposed bank we reviewed
conditions in Canada with respect to banking. Based on this view we felt there
was room for such a bank and, in our opinion, since 1963 this view has been
confirmed. Let me summarize the activity and expansion of our existing 8
chartered banks over the last two years.

Since we announced our intention to apply for a charter in December, 1963,
existing Canadian chartered banks have opened 277 further branches in this
country. Ninety-one of these new branches are in the four western provinces
and the Northwest Territories.

Total assets of the banks—and, in this connection, I am referring to the
existing 8—have risen from approximately $22.1 billion in 1963 to approximately
$25.9 billion in 1965, which is a gain of over $3.8 billion.

This increase is like adding a new Toronto-Dominion Bank, Mercantile
Bank of Canada and Provincial Bank of Canada to the system in just two years.

Bank of Canada statistical summaries show that net current operating
earnings for the 8 banks have risen, in the aggregate, from $206.5 million in
1963 to $258.1 million in 1965. This is a 25 per cent increase in two years.

We refer to net current operating earnings rather than net after-tax
earnings as the former would appear to give a better indication of the banks’
increased profits due to the fact the banks have more than tripled their inner
reserve and provision for loss allocations in 1965 compared with 1963. The inner
reserve provision made in 1963 was $24.3 million; in 1964, $58.7 million was set
aside before tax and in 1965, this figure reached $75.7 million.

It can be seen that the post war expansion of our banks is continuing at a
rapid rate. However, the relative position of our banks is not changing. Our
three largest banks, which has some 70 per cent of the Canadian business over
40 years ago, still have approximately that percentage.

In my remarks today we have referred to the expansion in bank branches,
expansion in their assets and in their profits, not in criticism of our existing
banks, which are fine institutions, but to underline our contention that there is
room for more banks in Canada. Our banking system is growing and it need not
remain so concentrated as it has been.
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Support for this view is found in the Porter Royal Commission on banking
and finance where, in the Commission’s final assessment and summary it is
stated on page 563, and I quote:

“There is a danger that competition can be weakened by collusion or
excessive concentration of power. This is particularly the case with the
banking institutions and we have therefore recommended in Chapter 18
that there be a prohibition on agreements between them with respect to
lending and borrowing rates, and that this prohibition be supported by
appropriate powers and penalties.”

Again the commission states on page 564 of their report, and I quote:

“We have, in summary, favoured a more open and competitive
banking system—carefully and equitably regulated under uniform legisla-
tion but not bound by restrictions which impede the response of the
institutions to new situations, enforce a particular pattern of narrow
specialization or shelter some enterprises from competitive pressures. We
believe that this framework will encourage creativity and efficiency and
offer the public the widest possible range of choice of financial services,
while reducing the danger of unregulated institutions springing up to
serve real needs which others are prevented from meeting.”

This type of view which was expressed, as I say, in the Porter report, has
been supported by various spokesmen of the chartered banks. The Toronto-
Dominion Bank, through their president, Mr. Allen T. Lambert, stated on page 7
of his 1964 annual report:

“—in its report the Commission—recommends the release of the forces of
competition wherever possible and this it feels will encourage creativity
and efficiency and will make available to the public the widest possible
choice of financial services.”

The quotation continues:

“The management of your bank wholeheartedly endorses this ap-
proach and supports the implementation of the commission’s recommen-
dations relating to the banking system in substantially the form in which
they have been proposed.”

Again in an address delivered by Mr. W. Earle McLaughlin, chairman and
president of The Royal Bank of Canada, at the Canadian Club in Toronto on
September 28, 1964, it was stated:

“Certainly, and especially in the enlarged competitive environment
that promises to emerge from the commission’s report, I can only extend
to privately owned and privately managed “new banks” the welcome I
have already extended to the “near banks” as full fledged members of
the society of “banking institutions” with equal rights, privileges, and
obligations for all.”

That appears on page 8 of a printed copy of Mr. McLaughlin’s speech.

In their 1965 report the Bank of Nova Scotia, through their president, Mr.
William Nicks, added his comment to the situation and with particular reference
to the then proposed amendments to the Bank Act states:

“Some clauses of the bill were unquestionably well conceived—in-~
cluding, I must admit, the easier provisions for the chartering of new
banks and other proddings towards a more competitive banking system.”
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That notation appears at page 10 of their 1965 annual report.

It appears to be clear therefore that there is room for more banks in
Canada, and that existing bankers are not opposed to such a development.

Let us turn to the second question, namely, what is the procedure for
forming a new bank in Canada.

The Bank Act is quite clear in this respect, and in sections 8 to 18 inclusive
sets down the method of incorporating and organizing such new banks.

These provisions may be summarized as follows: First, capital of at least $1
million must be subscribed and $500,000 of this must have been paid in. Second,
a bank must have at least five directors, a majority of whom are “subjects of
Her Majesty ordinarily resident in Canada”.

In addition, the founding group must satisfy the treasury board that the
initial expenses of the bank are reasonable.

In this respect, on page 114 the Porter report states:

“The Inspector General told us that apart from expecting the bank
to have somewhat more capital than the law requires and having an
interest in the character and standing of the group making application,
the government does not set out other requirements.”

Dealing on page 385 of the report with legislation for the incorporation of
banks, it is stated:

“The present Bank Act requirement that a new bank have paid up
capital of at least $500,000 as a minimum legal requirement seems
appropriate. Other qualifications for a charter or incorporation should be
kept at a minimum, although we feel the Act should require that
applicants be of sound reputation and proven business experience.”

The method for forming a new bank as laid down in the Bank Act is
relatively simple and, in addition, the Porter report does not suggest that there
should be any change.

Believing that there is more room for banks in Canada and following the
procedure laid down in our existing Bank Act we decided in 1963 to apply to
incorporate a new bank. We believe a duly chartered bank could operate and be
successful in any part of Canada. For example, my home is in Toronto and, in
spite of the fact that we have three banks with their head offices in Toronto I
believe that it would be possible to form a new bank in that city and that it
would be successful.

e (10: 00 am.)

On the other hand, we noted that between Toronto and the Pacific, there is
a stretch of 2,100 miles without the head office of a bank. We feel that this is
unfortunate and unnecessary. Head offices of practically every other type of
financial institution are found in this area, including insurance companies (life
and general), mutual fund organizations and finance compagnies.

Accordingly, believing that there is room for more banks in Canada, we
propose to establish our bank in what appears to be the most obvious area,
namely the Canadian west. The suggested head office for the bank is Winnipeg
and from that base it is felt that the proposed bank will be able to serve

efficiently its customers within the 2,100 mile area I have referred to from west
to east.
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The proposal to establish the bank in Winnipeg met an immediate good
response throughout Canada and in particular in the Canadian west. It is our
initial intention to raise approximately $5 million which would form the equity
for the proposed bank but we found that the response to the project was such
that there was no difficulty in raising considerably more, and we are pleased to
advise you that in total almost $13 million is now held for investment in the
proposed bank.

This money was originally raised in February and March 1964 and is
broken down as follows: firstly, over 5,000 people placed $6,450,000 in trust
with the Canada Permanent Trust Company for future investment in the
proposed bank. Secondly, a further 2,000 people put in trust $3,750,000 to be
invested by the Wellington Financial Corporation in the proposed bank. A fur-
ther 2,600 people bought shares in Canadian Finance and Investment, which in
turn is committed to investing $2,250,000 in the proposed bank. I should have
mentioned that Wellington is a Toronto based company originally established in
Guelph, Ontario, in 1926. The Canadian Finance and Investment is a Winnipeg
based company originally established in 1926 in that city. The York Trust and
Savings Corporation of Toronto is committed to investing $495,000 in the bank,
and the proposed provisional directors of the bank are committed to a further
$37,500.

The trust funds to which I have referred, namely those placed with Canada
Permanent Trust and those held in trust for the Wellington Financial Corpo-
ration, had originally a two year period or limitation and that at the end of that
period if we had not received a bank charter the agreement stated the money
was to be returned to the original subscribers. We were pleased to announce
last February that we were able to hold two meetings of the subscribers. In the
case of the Bank of Western Canada subscribers we found that, in spite of the
fact that there are 5,197 holders of those certificates, and of that number 4,145
are resident in the Canadian west, we were able to get unanimous consent to
the extension for a further year of the agreement in which these funds are held
in trust. In the case of Wellington, a meeting was held in Toronto and again we
were able to get a 98 per cent approval for an extension for a further one year
period.

Having raised the almost $13 million to which I have referred, in 1964 a
petition signed by 100 persons—=85 coming from the four western provinces—was
filed asking for the incorporation of our proposed bank. On February 27, 1964,
the bill to incorporate the bank was read the first time in the Senate, and on
July 28, 1964 the bill was approved by the Senate and sent to the House of
Commons. The bill received first reading in the House on July 30, 1964, but we
were unable to obtain second reading before parliament prorogued on April 3,
1965.

A new petition was filed in April, 1965 which was signed, among others, by
82 members of the Manitoba Chambers of Commerce. This bill received first
reading in the House of Commons on April 28, 1965, and second reading on June
22. Parliament however adjourned for summer recess on June 30th and as you
know was dissolved in September when an election was called.

After our wait we are indeed pleased to be able to present our case to this
committee having received second reading of the bill on February 10th of this
year.
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We feel that we have met all the requirements for the incorporation of a
new bank and we would emphasize that we are applying for incorporation
under the existing Bank Act. We are quite satisfied to commence business
regardless of any revisions which may be made in this act.

Now let me touch briefly on point number four, namely how the Bank of
Western Canada will function.

I would like now to give you some background information on the
directors. First of all we have Mr. John Leslie Bodie who was born in Manitoba,
educated in Manitoba and presently lives in Edmonton, Alberta. Mr. Bodie’s
main occupation at the present time is as vice-president and director of the
British-American Construction and Materials Limited. He is also president of
the Alberta Fidelity Trust Company in Edmonton.

Next we have Maxwell Bruce who was born in Toronto, educated in
Toronto and presently lives in King Township, Ontario. He is a Queen’s Counsel
and a partner of the law firm of Manning, Bruce, Paterson and Ridout in
Toronto. His directorships include the Crown Trust Company and the Rem-
ington Rand Company Limited. He is also a member of the Law Society of
Upper Canada.

Our next director is Mr. James E. Coyne, born in Winnipeg, educated in
Manitoba and presently living in Toronto. His principal occupation at the
present time is as president and director of the Canadian First Mortgage
Corporation.

Another of our directors is Mr. Edward R. P. Nesbitt. He was born in Mayo,
Ireland, educated in Belfast, Ireland, and is presently living in Winnipeg,
Manitoba. At present his main occupation is that of president of Crabb and
Company Limited which is an investment real estate company in the Winnipeg
area.

I have additional information on each of these gentlemen if you want
further particulars.

Finally I come to myself. I was born in Esquesing Township, Ontario,
educated in Toronto. I live presently in Toronto. My main occupation is with
the British International Finance (Canada) Limited of Toronto.

The five gentlemen I have referred to would be included, it is proposed,
among the first directors of the bank. Upon the election of these directors,
arrangement will be made as soon as possible for the hiring of suitable staff for
the bank who, I would stress, would all be professional bankers. In this
connection, since our announcement was first made public in December 1963, we
have received dozens of inquiries and letters from persons in the banking
community requesting positions and indicating their desire to become associated
with a new institution such as the one we propose. These overtures have come
to us from those employed at many different levels in these institutions. In
addition arrangements will be made for a suitable head office location for the
bank in Winnipeg and for branch locations in cities such as Regina, Calgary,
Edmonton and Vancouver. It is not our intention that the bank should operate
in a manner radically different from the existing banks which are providing an
excellent service for the people of Canada but we feel that we can add a
competitive force to the existing services which are being offered and one which

will be particularly felt in the west which is the area we hope primarily to
service.
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In summary, we feel that there is room for more banks in Canada; that we
have met the necessary formal requirements for forming a bank; and that our
charter should be granted as soon as possible. The granting of such a charter
will be the first time in fifty years that a Canadian group with Canadian money
in hand has received a charter for a bank in Canada and gone into operations.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

e (10: 10 a.m.)

The CHAIRMAN: I will now call on Mr. James E. Coyne. I believe his
statement completes and supplements yours, Mr. Stevens.

Mr. Coyne, would you move forward to the main table?

Mr. MonNTEITH: May I interject at this point before Mr. Coyne starts
speaking? I know that at the moment we do not have permission to sit while the
House is sitting, but I do not imagine we will be through with these gentlemen
this morning. Perhaps that permission could be received at the opening of the
House. If we are going to question these gentlemen further this afternoon
perhaps it might be advisable to attempt to have photostat copies made of these
opening statements so that we could have them available.

The CHAIRMAN: That is a constructive suggestion, Mr. Monteith. If the
counsel for the sponsors of the bill has an extra copy, we might ask the clerk if
she could have photostatic copies made of it so that they will be available to the
members as soon as possible.

Mr. STEVENS: Although not all my remarks are contained in typed form, I
could give it to you for reproduction.

Mr. JamEs E. CoyNE (President and Director, Canadian First Mortgage
Corporation): I myself do not have a written text, Mr. Chairman.

The CHAIRMAN: We will see if we can reproduce Mr. Stevens’ statement.
Our own notes of Mr. Coyne’s statement will have to be sufficient.

Mr. CoyNE: Mr. Chairman, hon. members of the committe, I am very glad
to have this opportunity.

The CHAIRMAN: Excuse me, Mr. Coyne, perhaps you would prefer to sit
down.

Mr. CoyNE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, I speak better on my feet, for a
while anyway.

I am very glad to have this opportunity of appearing in support of the
application for a charter for the Bank of Western Canada, not only because I am
one of the provisional directors named in the bill but also because I have felt
for some time that it would be desirable to have more banks in Canada, quite a
number more, I would hope, before too long, as there has been such a long
period of reduction in the number of banks, of mergers, consolidations and
concentrations. As we well know, all the banks today have their head offices
either in Montreal or Toronto. I do not see why there could not be in the future,
as once was the case, banks with head offices in a dozen cities in Canada.

Ninety-nine banks have been chartered and have gone into operation in
Canada since the first one 130 or 140 years ago, and only eight are now left.
Only two have gone into operation in the last 50 years and neither of them had
any Canadian capital in it. Four charters were granted to Canadian groups, the
last one in 1928 I believe, but they did not succeed in going into operation.




March 1, 1966 FINANCE, TRADE AND ECONOMIC AFFAIRS 17

In 1929, Barclays Bank of England got a charter for Barclays Bank of
Canada Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary. They opened just a few branches
in three or four cities and ultimately merged with the Imperial Bank. They did
not try to build up a banking business on the basis of the deposits of the general
public either throughout the country or in any one region of the country.

In 1953 the Handels Bank of Rotterdam, Holland, obtained a charter for the
Mercantile Bank of Canada as a wholly owned subsidiary, subsequently sold to
the First National City Bank of New York. They too until recently had only two
or three branches and were not based on a general deposit business but very
largely on connections with a number of large companies. They are branching
out and have opened up several branches in Western Canada and elsewhere
now when the charter of the Bank of Western Canada is pending.

When the Mercantile Bank application was before parliament in 1953, Mr.
Graham Towers supported it despite the fact it was to be a foreign owned bank,
if that were considered an objection. One of his reasons was that, firstly, he
thought we should have more banks in Canada. Secondly, he doubted whether
we would ever again see a Canadian group put together the capital and the
organization necessary to start another bank. Therefore, if the only way to get a
new bank started was to have outside interest, he favoured it.

Now here we bring before you a Canadian group which has collected
capital from thousands of Canadian investors who have been waiting two years
because of the kind of procedure which is necessary to get a bank charter under
the present Bank Act and because of the developments in the past two years.
We pledged our money in advance, we put it in the bank in the form of trustee
certificates and in the form of shares in investment companies which in turn
will be shareholders of the bank and who, a few weeks ago, renewed that
pledge for a further period of 12 months to create every possible opportunity
for the incorporation of this bank with that capital in hand.

We took special precautions to meet the argument that a new bank might
fall under the domination of foreign interest and might sell out to foreigners. At
that time, two years ago, there was quite a current of feeling in this country
that it was undesirable to have Canadian banks under the control of non-resi-
dents; there was talk that the revision of the Bank Act, which was expected to
come in 1964, would deal with that matter. So as a precaution we put a clause in
our bill, Clause 5 which has been mentioned already, which was designed to
prevent non-residents acquiring a proportion of the shares of this bank until
such time as parliament has dealt with the matter in the pending revision of the
Bank Act. In fact we did not make non-residents eligible at all to buy shares in
the initial distribution, but we put in a pro vision that would operate after the
bank was incorporated that non-residents could not acquire more than 10 per
cent of the shares. Subsequently, in the bill which was presented to parliament
for amendment of the Bank Act, a provision along those lines was made a
general application. If and when that is enacted it is provided that the special
clause in our bill should cease to operate and our bank shall be subject to the
same provisions as the other banks.

Incidentally, that clause says it will cease to operate on July 1, 1966. That
was drafted at a time when it was thought the Bank Act would be revised by
then. Parliament has now extended, or is in the process of extending, the
present Bank Act to December 1, 1966, so I presume a suitable amendment

should be made to Clause 5 when the time comes.
23648—2
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Over the past 50 years, as I have said, there have been no Canadian groups
that have established a chartered bank in Canada owing perhaps to the
tradition that has developed that it was impossible, or at least Mr. Towers
seemed to think it was very difficult to do so. The procedure of getting a bank
started is very difficult and discouraging; everything works in favour of
protecting the existing number of banks and not having very many more.
Perhaps the fact that some banks went bankrupt or found it necessary to merge
with other banks in the past was considered to be dangerous or to present a
difficulty; but perhaps not enough attention has been given to the many changes
that have taken place in the world of banking during those 50 years. These are
very important changes—and we only have to mention them in order to
appreciate their significance—which have provided more security for depositors
‘and shareholders, more protection for the public interest, more opportunities for
the profitable use of the funds of the banks, and generally have improved the
whole banking and financial machinery in this country.

e (10: 20 am.)

At the time of the amendment or revision of the Bank Act in 1911,
provision was made for the first time in this country for an outside audit of the
affairs of the chartered banks, a so-called shareholders’ audit. Until that time
there was no audit except by the employees of the bank itself. Those provisions
‘were strengthened in 1923 by amendments designed to ensure that the govern-
ment was satisfied with the character and ability of the auditors chosen for this
purpose. There was a bank failure in 1923 and it was just after that bank
failure, which was the last one in this country, 43 years ago, that as a
consequence provision was made for government inspectors to be added to the
bank audit through the office of the Inspector General of Banks. Since that time
there has been no bank failure, although there have been several mergers.

At one time it might have been considered difficult to raise capital for
banks because of the double liability laws under which shareholders could be
called upon to put out twice as much money as they thought they would have to
put up. That seems to have been associated with the liabilities to which banks
exposed themselves through issuing bank notes. I think it was at about the same
time as the right to issue bank notes was taken away that the requirement of
double liability was removed from shareholders.

In addition to structural changes of this sort and changes in the Bank Act,
in 1934 the Bank of Canada Act was passed. We have had a central bank
operating in this country since then. It is my belief that this makes the banking
system more efficient and more safe, and provides the great advantage to all the
banks operating under the Bank Act that they have direct access to the Bank of
Canada for loans from time to time and that the Bank of Canada takes action on
its own initiative to prevent acute crises of credit and currency which might
have a bad effect on the banks, and of course on many other institutions.

All these things, therefore, I think make it desirable that people should
realize there are opportunities for starting banks in Canada as business
operations, starting them under private ownership with the sale of shares,
operating them at a profit and having a good investment. I believe there are
special opportunities at this time for a new bank in western Canada, perhaps
also in the Maritimes, and perhaps several banks in western Canada.
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There has always been strong public feeling in the West that their affairs
do not get as much attention from head offices in Toronto and Montreal as the
western people feel they deserve, and there has been strong feeling that they
would like to have financial institutions stationed there dealing with them.

The West is in a period of great economic development. More financial
institutions there could play a part in that development. We feel this bank
should be a western institution, that the West is the best place to start a new
bank and to carry it through to successful operation. That means in our view
that so far as possible the majority of the shareholders should be in or from
western Canada. Of course, we cannot determine that after the first subscrip-
tion because people can sell out. We feel that the majority of directors should
live in or be from western Canada; and we can make sure of that I think. The
chief executive officers, the management, shall be in Winnipeg, which has been
chosen as a particular city in western Canada; and all the affairs of the bank
should be conducted from that head office. We also feel that as a principle of
operation such a bank should make it a policy as far as possible to make its
loans in western Canada, and indeed in different regions of western Canada with
particular reference to the places in which it acquires deposits. Other banks,
nation-wide banks, feel it is their business to take capital from one part of the
country to another. I do not say it is wrong for them to do so, but I think there
is room for the other principle too, the principle that local capital should be
used to finance local undertakings.

This means that we are proposing to set up a regional bank. All chartered
banks were regional banks when they started, and in a way in many cases their
development and growth into nation-wide institutions has been accidental. Two
of them are still very largely confined to one province, Quebec, and several of
the others are very poorly represented in one region or another, such as the
Maritime provinces. One of them is a very small bank, the Mercantile Bank,
which just has a few branches scattered across the country.

We envisage the Bank of Western Canada for a considerable period being
definitely a regional bank. Of course, it will be a small bank. However, it has
more capital pledged to it lying in bank accounts and so on waiting to be
invested in it than any bank ever had before, several times as much as any
other bank in Canada ever started with. Nevertheless, compared with the giants
of today, it will be a small bank and it will have to behave accordingly. It has a
good capital to start with, and the earnings on that capital will enable it to
employ staff and take on expenses before it has acquired a very great volume of
deposits, but its future growth will depend to a great extent on the way in
which it appeals to the people in western Canada. It will not be so small to
people in western Canada as it might seem in comparison with the other banks,
to people in Toronto and Montreal; but an institution with $13 million is quite a
respectable sized institution.

As Mr. Stevens has said, the intention is to staff the bank with professional
bankers, and in time the bank will train its own staff in the same way as other
banks now do.

We have perhaps one advantage in prospect: it seems to be unheard of for
any of the existing banks to hire a man who has previously worked for another
one of the existing banks. We will not have any compunctions of that sort, and

we expect we will be able to hire a number of people from the existing banks. I
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may be wrong, but that is my impression. Some bankers have told us they are
afraid to try to get a job with another bank because if they do not get it they
would be “in bad” with their own bank, but this may not be so in our case.

I must not take up too much time, but there are a few more remarks I
would like to make.

This application is desirable in the public interest. I wish to be part of the
project myself, and I hope that after all this time it will not be too long now
before we can get our charter. Then of course we have to satisfy the Inspector
General of Banks and the Minister of Finance that we have set everything up in
such a manner that we should get a licence entitling us to commence operations.

The CHAIRMAN: Thank you, Mr. Coyne.

We will now proceed with questioning of Mr. Coyne and Mr. Stevens. I
propose to do this by noting on a list those who wish to ask questions, and I
propose to go around once before a second turn is given to any member. Mr.
McLean was trying to attract my attention even while Mr. Coyne was testify-
ing, so I will ask him to proceed.

Mr. McLeEAN (Charlotte): Mr. Coyne, I noticed in The Gazette the certifi-
cates or shares of the Bank of Western Canada were quoted at $16.50 and $17.
At what were these certificates issued?

Mr. CoyNE: They were issued at $15.
Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): Is $10 going into the capital and $5 into reserve?
Mr. CoyNE: Yes.

Mr. McLean (Charlotte): Then anyone who has taken up these certificates
has already made a profit on them.

Mr. CoyNE: I suppose they will not have made a profit until they sell them.
The original subscribers paid $15 and the term of the subscription was that if
there was no bank they would get back the same amount—$15. Since that time
other people have been prepared from time to time to pay more than $15 to
acquire those rights. There was a brief time when they sold for a little less than
$15, but generally they have been selling for more. :

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): Is the $2,250,000 put up by a finance company?

e (10: 30 am.)

Mr. CoyNE: It has the word “finance” in its name but Canadian Finance and
Investments Limited is an investment company; it is not a finance company in
the sense of engaging in loans or consumer credit. It has about $4 million in
capital and perhaps about $3,300,000 already and $700,000 more subscribed. It
has made investments in financial institutions; the Fort Garry Trust Company
in Winnipeg, for example, was started by it with a 50 per cent share ownership.
It also made an investment in the Alberta Fidelity Trust Company of Edmonton
with about a 30 per cent share ownership. It made an investment in the
Canadian First Mortgage Corporation in Toronto, of which I am president, in
which it has about 16 per cent share ownership. It has those investments in
addition to the proposed investments in the Bank of Western Canada.

Mr. McLeaN: (Charlotte): Is it more or less a closed-end investment
company?
Mr. CoyNE: I think that is correct, yes.
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Mr. STeVENS: I think a more appropriate name would be Canadian Finan-
cial Investments.

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): I note that the liabilities to the public in the last

three years of the trust companies, the mortgage loan companies, and the sales
and finance companies have gone up by about $4 billion. Apparently quite a
proportion of this business has been taken away from banks. No doubt if there

were more banks they could get more of that business, but could they get it

under the six per cent ceiling?
Mr. CoyNE: No, I do not think they could.

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): In your opening statement you talked about the
banks’ inner reserves and the total of the inner reserves. I always thought that
was a secret between the Governor of the Bank of Canada and the Finance
Minister; I did not know those figures were published.

Mr. CoyNE: They are published by the Bank of Canada. The reference I
made was not to the amount of the reserves. I do not know that the amount has
ever been published, although the report of the Royal Commission said some-
thing about it. What they do publish is the amount added to the reserves each
year not by individual banks but as a whole.

On your previous question about the mortgage companies increasing the
business under the six per cent ceiling in competition with the banks, I would
say that if they were subject to the same ceiling as the banks and if they did
not have the advantages the banks have, I do not think they could have
competed successfully. But the banks have so many advantages over mortgage
and finance companies that the advantage lies with them.

Mr. McLeAN (Charlotte): We have noticed in the last few years that trust
company stocks have been going up and up because the trust companies have
been able to obtain the business, and they must have been able to obtain the
business because they could charge greater rates. For a short time I was a

director of a company from which some church obtained a loan, and they were

charged eight per cent.

Mr. LEBOE: I would like to go into the mechanics of this if you do not mind.

The first question I would like to ask about the proposed bank is what you
anticipate will be the original amount of money that you will put into the Bank
of Canada as a reserve.

Mr. CoyNE: Of course we would be bound by the provisions of the Bank
Act to a minimum. The reserve that one puts into the Bank of Canada under
the Bank Act is eight per cent of one’s deposits.

Mr. LEBOE: Presumably you have no deposits when you open your door. I
would like to know if you know approximately what you intend to deposit with
the Bank of Canada in the way of reserves when you open your doors to do
business.

Mr. CoyNE: I do not think there is any firm decision on that. I think the
board of directors when they first meet will have to deal with questions of that
nature. We cannot obtain our licence to operate, as I understand it, until the
Minister of Finance has a certificate saying we have a certain amount of money
with the Bank of Canada. I do not remember offhand what that amount is.
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Let me say this. A new bank, a small bank, would have to keep a much
greater proportion of cash reserve with the Bank of Canada than would the
other banks. I think that would be the proper way to operate.

Mr. LEBOE: On this basis, and just to take a figure out of the hat, let us
suppose that we had deposited $10 million or $8 million with the Bank of
Canada for reserves. Let me say $10 million in order to keep to round figures.
How much currency could you as a bank demand from the Bank of Canada if
you had deposited with them $10 million?

Mr. CoyNE: They would have $10 million of our money so I presume we
could demand that much. Incidentally, I would not agree to any such figure
because unfortunately the Bank of Canada does not pay interest.

Mr. LEwis: I thought you would not agree to that.
Mr. CoyNE: If you want to make it $1 million, that might be more realistic.

Mr. LEBOE: It does not make any difference what figure we take for the
purpose of the discussion. I like to play with large sums because that is the only
time I see them!

Mr. CoyNE: That money can be paid out by cheque drawn against your
account with the Bank of Canada. The only other provision of which I know is
that the Bank of Canada in its discretion can make loans to charter banks from
time to time.

Mr. LEBOE: A couple of years ago I checked with the secretary of the Bank
of Canada who told me that in his knowledge the banks had never availed
themselves of this wonderful opportunity to borrow money from the Bank of
Canada.

Mr. CoyNE: I think that is more than two years ago. The first time I recall
was around 1954 or 1955. In order to get it started the Royal Bank took a loan,
and announced that they had done so. They announced that they were putting
this facility into operation. Mr. Muir of those days used to do so.

Mr. LEBOE: It is not common?

Mr. CoyNE: It is not common but it is published every week by the Bank of
Canada; it has happened every month or so.

Mr. MoNTEITH: It is usually for a very short term.

Mr. CoynNE: Yes.

Mr. LEBOE: We have established that you can obtain currency for the
amount of your deposit in the Bank of Canada if you want it.

Mr. CoyNE: If you need it to spend, but you are expected to replace it as
soon as possible because the purpose of placing a reserve with the Bank of
Canada is to keep it there.

Mr. LEBOE: In other words, the Bank of Canada says it is their currency so
you pay on demand? You get a dollar, you send it to the Bank of Canada and
you get another dollar for the same dollar you had.

Again, I would like to ask what is the maximum in dollars that you can
obtain as a result of your deposit, and not counting what is commonly termed
“suasion”. You mentioned eight per cent did you not?

Mr. CoyNE: Yes, of reserve.
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Mr. LEBOE: You say $1 million instead of using the figure $10 million, so
you can now increase that amount to the extent that the $1 million represents
$8 million if you are up to your maximum. Is that right?

Mr. Lewis: It will be 12} million. I think this pertains more to a general
banking situation.

Mr. LEBOE: This is right.

e (10: 40 am.)

Mr. CoyNE: Of course, this is a subject which has been discussed. I have
discussed it on occasions in the past.

The banking system as a whole can respond to an increase in money by the
Bank of Canada by multiplying loans and deposits about 12 times for every
dollar that the Bank of Canada puts out. But, an individual bank may not be able
to do that at all. In the case of an individual bank, if it gets $1 million of Bank
of Canada funds, all it has is $1 million; if it uses that amount for lending it is
gone, and it does not have any more. That bank will only get additional deposits
if other banks, in turn, have been getting money from the Bank of Canada
and lending it to people who deposit it not with them but with a first bank. It is
only if they re-deposit back and forth between banks that you get this
multiplying factor operating. And, in the case of a small bank you may not get
anything of that sort at all. This is much more apparent in the United States,
where there are a vast number of banks of every conceivable size. But, there is
the Royal Bank, the Bank of Commerce and the Bank of Montreal. They know
that they are going to get back into progress at least 25 per cent of any loan
they make. And, they know that other banks are making loans at the same time
and under the same motives, and they are going to get 25 per cent of the
deposits that way. Because of the way business is run in this country the large
banks know pretty well what proportion of any expansion they are going to get.
But, a small bank has not any such assurance.

Mr. LEBOE: You are referring now to the deposit liabilities?

Mr. CoynE: Yes, and the assets that correspond to them.

Mr. LeEBOE: But, not the original deposit you have with the Bank of
Canada?

Mr. CoyNE: No.

Mr. LEBOE: You are referring to the deposit liability.

Mr. CoyNE: I am referring to the gross.

Mr. LEBOE: Perhaps this is a question which may be covered when we are
studying revisions to the Bank Act. I have not studied the act to that extent but
I would like to put this question to you. Do the directors contemplate separate
real estate firms or corporations handling their properties?

Mr. CoyNE: I do not think there has been any consideration given to that
except to say that I do not contemplate that we will have much in the way of
property. We are going to be very careful about investing money in premises
and things of that sort. We may rent premises for quite a time rather than
acquire them by ownership.

Mr. LEBOE: In your previous experience with the Bank of Canada could you
tell me if it is possible for a chartered bank to loan money to a real estate
corporation which is operated in connection with your home bank?
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Mr. CoyNE: I am sorry, I do not know. I do know banks are allowed to own
companies to do certain things, such as own bank premises. It can set up a
separate company and own all the stock in that company. But I do not know
whether it also can make a loan to that company. This would be determined by
the Bank Act. [

Mr. LEBOE: Anyway, it is a good question. To what extent will deposit
liabilities enable your bank to loan money? I think you have partly answered
the question but what is the procedure that is followed in this connection? In
other words, you have now opened up your doors and you have a deposit with
the Bank of Canada. You are ready for business and people come in and deposit
X number of dollars. In percentage, to what extent do you consider that this
will enable you to make loans to someone else?

Mr. CoynE: Well, if we followed the same proportions as the other banks
are presently doing I do not think that about 70 per cent of the total deposits
are in loans and in corporation securities. They have 8 per cent cash with the
Bank of Canada, about another 8 per cent in short term government securities
such as treasury bills and, say, another 15 per cent in other government bonds.
That leaves about 70 per cent, which is rather a high percentage in risk assets.

Mr. LEBOE: I have two more short questions. I notice in your statement
reference is made to the advantages of the bank over trust companies and credit
unions. You did not mention credit unions but I assume you are referring to any
100 per cent reserve accounts. In that connection do you see any real reason for
raising the bank interest rate over 6 per cent when you do get the advantage
that we just spoke of, namely of expanding the credit and getting interest on
moneys that you actually have not had by virtue of your charter. I know that is
a difficult question but I would like an answer.

Mr. LEwis: Mr. Chairman, perhaps that can be discussed later on.

Mr. CoyNE: That is what I was going to say. As far as we are concerned, we
are not advocating such a change; we do not have any particular standing to do
so. We will live with the Bank Act as it is or we will live with it as it is revised
by parliament. If our views are desired at some future stage we will be pleased
to advance those views. But, I do not know that it is directly concerned with
our present application.

Mr. LEBOE: Mr. Coyne, in respect of the Bank of British Columbia have you
any joys or fears in connection with the incorporation of that bank?

Mr. CoyNE: No, not really. Of course, we were the first in the field; we
announced our project in early December, 1963, at which time we had a
number of supporters in Vancouver and British Columbia as well as elsewhere
in western Canada. We were a bit surprised to hear later that two other bank
charter applications came forward, one of which I understand, has been
dropped. However, the Bank of British Columbia is still alive and we certainly
have no opposition whatsoever to it. It means perhaps that they will have a
considerable advantage over us in British Columbia, but we would hope to
operate in British Columbia in competition with them and the other banks.

The CHAIRMAN: Have you a question, Mr. Grégoire.

Mr. GREGOIRE: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I have several questions. I would like to
direct my first question to Mr. Stevens. Among the shareholders, are there some
from outside of Canada now?
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Mr. STEVENS: Mr. Grégoire, are you speaking of those who would hold
shares directly in the bank or in our other companies?

Mr. GREGOIRE: No: I am referring to the bank. Have you not some
companies holding shares in your bank now?

Mr. STevENS: Yes, and of that number we see that we have under the
category “other”, which means other than Canadian shareholders, 29 people out
of 14,158 who are not resident in Canada. I think that in most cases you will
find that they are people who originally registered in Canada but have moved
for some reason, and they are still shareholders.

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): Do you mean people or persons?
Mr. STEVENS: Persons.
Mr. MAcpONALD (Rosedale): They are natural persons and corporations.

Mr. STEVENS: Correct. In other words, out of over 14,000 shareholders in
our group companies and those who will be shareholders of the Bank of
Western Canada there are 29 who are not resident in Canada, and there are no
proposed shareholders of the bank who are not residents of Canada.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, in an effort to be orderly I would suggest that
we proceed around the table before allowing supplementary questions to be put.
If such supplementaries are put at this stage it might prevent others from being
heard.

Mr. GREGOIRE: What would be the percentage of shares held by those 29
who are not resident in Canada?

Mr. STEVENS: I am sorry but I cannot give you that. Do you mean
individuals as opposed to companies?

Mr. GREGOIRE: Yes. You say there are 29 non-resident shareholders?
Mr. STEVENS: Correct.

Mr. GREGOIRE: What would be the figure in percentage of shares?
Mr. STEVENS: You mean on a percentage basis?

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): In dollar value.

Mr. STEVENS: I am sorry. I think I can give you that information. If you
take the value of shares and do not include in that 29 a company which we own
in Nassau which, according to the register, is shown as a non-resident company,
the value would be about $85,000 out of $23,462,000.
® (10: 50 am.)

Mr. GREGOIRE: But, what would the figure be including this company
from Nassau?

Mr. STEVENS: If you include the Nassau company the value is $1,485,000.
Mr. GREGOIRE: About 5 per cent.

Mr. STEVENS: Perhaps you can make a quicker calculation than I can, but I
think that is about right.

Mr. GREGOIRE: And, among those non-resident shareholders would there be
some, perhaps two or three per cent, holding shares individually ?

Mr. STEVENS: No, other than our own Nassau company.
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Mr. GREGOIRE: But, your Nassau company is responsible for about 5 per
cent of that $1,400,000.

Mr. STEVENS: Yes.

Mr. GREGOIRE: That is in respect of Nassau?

Mr. STEVENS: Correct.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): What is the name of that company?

Mr. GREGOIRE: Are there other shareholders who own 5 per cent of the
shares individually or as a company?

Mr. STEVENS: The Great West Life is a large proposed holder, and I would
think their holdings would be about 3 per cent.

Mr. GREGOIRE: Then this non-resident company from Nassau, in dollar
value, will be the biggest shareholder?

Mr. LEwis: I think the 5 per cent included more than the company.

Mr. GREGOIRE: Mr. Stevens said that without this company the figure would
be $85,000 and, including it, the figure would be $1,485,000, which is more than
5 per cent. Therefore, this Nassau company would be the biggest individual
shareholder.

Mr. STEVENS: No. Incidentally, someone asked the name of that company. It
is called the British International Finance Trust, which is a wholly owned
subsidiary of our Canadian company, British International Finance of Canada.

I suggest there is really no significance in the fact it is registered in Nassau
as opposed to Toronto. Now, the holding, British International Finance Trust, is
entirely in the Wellington Financial Corporation and the Wellington Financial
Corporation, in turn, has a holding in the Bank of Western Canada. The figures
I have been giving you are the aggregate figures with respect to holdings in the
Bank of Western Canada and all companies that are directly or indirectly in our
group which will own shares in the Bank of Western Canada.

Mr. GREGOIRE: But, British International Financial Corporation was incor-
porated in Canada.

Mr. STEVENS: Correct.

Mr. GREGOIRE: And, it is the biggest shareholder.

Mr. STEVENS: Oh no.

Mr. GREGOIRE: Individually, I mean.

Mr. STEVENS: No. The British International Finance Trust is listed among
the non-resident shareholders and it is the biggest non-resident shareholder.

Mr. GREGOIRE: Are there some Canadian shareholders with more shares in
dollar value than this company?

Mr. STEVENS: No—

Mr. GREGOIRE: That is what I am pointing out.

Mr. STEVENS: I cannot follow exactly what you mean, Mr. Grégoire. The
bank will be owned by four different main groups. The first group is a group
which owns shares directly in the bank and are now holding trustee certificates.
Now, altogether they number a total of about 5,100 odd. The next largest
shareholder in the bank will be the Wellington Financial Corporation, which
owns approximately 30 per cent of the proposed bank.
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Mr. GREGOIRE: And, is it a Canadian company?

Mr. STEVENS: Yes. In turn, it is controlled by British International Fi-
nance, Canada.

Mr. GREGOIRE: Did you say controlled or is controlled by?

Mr. STEVENS: No, it is controlled by British International Finance, Canada.

Mr. GREGOIRE: So, British International Trust has about 5 per cent of the
shares directly?

Mr. STEVENS: No. It has shares in the Wellington Financial Corporation
which, in turn owns about 30 per cent of the Bank of Western Canada.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Grégoire, do you understand what Mr. Stevens is
saying?

Mr. GREGOIRE: I do not understand it too well.

In dollar value what does British International Trust Company hold?

Mr. STEVENS: Approximately $1,400,000; that is in Wellington Financial
Corporation.

Mr. GREGOIRE: That is the amount of the shares they have in Wellington
Financial Corporation.

Mr. STEVENS: Yes.

Mr. GREGOIRE: Then, they are not direct shareholders of your company?

Mr. STeEVENS: No. I am sorry but I was only giving you the figure of our
entire group and I was wanting to show there is no non-resident ownership of
substance in our entire group. Now, we can start with the first premise; there is
no direct foreign ownership in the bank.

Mr. GREGOIRE: So, your main shareholder in dollar value would be Well-
ington Finance Company?

Mr. STEVENS: Correct.

Mr. GREGOIRE: And, that is a Canadian company?

Mr. STEVENS: Yes, incorporated in Guelph in 1926. It still has an office in
Guelph but the executive offices are in Toronto.

Mr. GREGOIRE: And, this company is controlled by Canadian residents?

Mr. STEVENS: Yes. Wellington Finance Corporation is a public company
listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange.

Mr. GREGOIRE: Suppose we divide Canada into four parts: Western Canada,

Ontario, Quebec and the Maritimes; would it be possible to have the dollar
value in percentages in respect of each area?

Mr. STevENS: Do you mean in the bank?
Mr. GREGOIRE: Yes, the actual shareholders.

Mr. STevENs: Yes. I can tell you that there are a total of 430,000 shares
which will be issued directly to people in the Bank of Western Canada. I
am referring to the people who hold trustee prescription certificates at the
prese:nt time. Now, of that figure of 430,000, 283,735 are in the four western
provinces and the territories; 128,135 are in Ontario; 10,655 are in Quebec,
and 7,475 are in the Atlantic provinces, and there are no others outside Canada.
I believe that should total 430,000. If you like, I could give you a breakdown
in the four western provinces. Would that be helpful?
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Mr. GrEGoIRE: No. You have given me sufficient information. I see that
out of the five people mentioned in article I that three are from Ontario.

Mr. STeEVENS: Correct.

Mr. GrEGOIRE: That is, three out of five. Will the most importént sharehold-
ers come from the western provinces?

Mr. STevENS: Yes. Now, upon the formation of the bank it is anticipated
that the board will be larger than five and that additional bank directors will be
added, the majority of whom will come from the four western provinces.

e (11: 00 a.m.) iy

Mr. GREGOIRE: May I ask a question of Mr. Coyne? I know he has much
experience with the banking system. With a capital of $25 million, how much do
you expect to be able to lend?

Mr. CoyNE: We ‘expect we will have $13 million actually paid in. Some of
that will have to be invested in liquid securities, in government bonds and
things of that sort, but a large proportion of the capital will go out in loans and
an even larger proportion of the deposits, as they are received, will go out in
loans.

Mr. GrREGOIRE: But how much do you expect that your bank will be able to
lend within, let us say, three years? What do you think will be the sum loaned
in three years?

Mr. CoynE: I think you will find that the total assets of the existing banks
are roughly 20 times their capital. That is because they have been able to
acquire deposits and they think a ratio of 5 per cent of the capital to deposits is
satisfactory. If we had $25 million capital all paid in and if we had 20 times as
much as that in deposits, we could then lend $525 million, but it would take a
long time to get $500 million deposits from the public.

Mr. GREGOIRE: Will your interest be 6 per cent of the $500 million?

Mr. CoyNE: The loan interest rate?

Mr. GREGOIRE: Yes, would it be 6 per cent of the $500 million?

Mr. CoyNE: It would be less on some investments, but if this were all in
loans then you are correct.

Mr. GREGOIRE: Are there trust companies or finance companies with such
capital investment that can lend 20 times their capital?

Mr. CoyNE: No, under the federal law they are limited to 15 times their
capital. The volume of deposits they may accept is limited to 15 times their
capital and therefore the volume of loans and investment they can make is
limited that way.

Mr. GREGOIRE: Mr. Coyne, I have another question on the banking system.
When a bank lends money do they expect to be paid back?

Mr. CoyNE: Yes.

Mr. GREGOIRE: That is normal?

Taking some capital short term securities or government bonds, is the
direct debt of the Government of Canada roughly $18 billion? But if we consider
the sum of all the money—the monetary mass—either legal or credit, it does not
amount to that.
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Mr. CoyNE: It is rather more than that, is it not? I do not think I have the
figures on hand but my impression is that the banks total assets—

Mr. GrEGOIRE: I do not mean the bank’s total assets, I mean the total money
in circulation.

Mr. CoyNE: You mean the Bank of Canada’s liabilities?
Mr. GREGOIRE: Plus the credit money.

Mr. CoyNE: It depends on how many different kinds of credits add to your
total. If you include commercial credit, it would be larger.

Mr. GREGOIRE: I do not include that.

Mr. CoyNE: But commercial companies do buy government bonds and so do
life insurance companies.

Mr. GREGOIRE: It is a little less than the total debt of the Government of
Canada. Is that right?

Mr. CoyNE: I do not understand the particular definition you are using to
say that something is less.

The CHAIRMAN: Can I interject at this point? This is an interesting line of
questioning but I would like to suggest to the committee that we are dealing
with a specific matter. I want to make a suggestion which may or may not meet
with your approval. It is likely this committee will have before it some wide
ranging amendments to the Bank Act which it will have an opportunity to go
into in detail, including the matter which you are touching upon, Mr. Gregoire,
which is very interesting and important, as well as other areas which may be
considered. Maybe, therefore, you would prefer to withhold this type of
questioning.

Mr. LEwis: Mr. Gregoire wants a rehearsal.

Mr. GrEGOIRE: I would like now to put some questions regarding the
operation of this particular bank, not the whole system. My argument is that
the debt of the Government of Canada is higher than the whole monetary mass
in Canada so that the Government of Canada will never be able to pay back its
debt. Do you think it is a good idea to lend money to the Government of Canada
when you know that it is impossible for the Government of Canada to pay it
back? Do you think it is a good risk to lend to the Government of Canada?

Mr. CoyNE: I do because the Government of Canada’s debt is not payable
all at one time; the payment dates are spread over 20 or 30 years.

Mr. GREGOIRE: Will they have to borrow to pay back?
Mr. CoyNE: They could increase taxes.
Mr. GREGOIRE: Is that a suggestion?

Mr. CoyNE: Most people would not consider it desirable. Normally they
would borrow again from somebody else.

Mr. GREGOIRE: So to pay back its debt, the government has to borrow.

Mr. CoyNE: Yes, in other words the government itself does a sort of
banking business.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Gregoire, did you finish your questioning?
Mr. GREGOIRE: I have one more question.
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Considering the value of the shares of other banks today as compared to
that when they started, what do you expect to be the value of the shares of
your bank in, let us say, five years’ time?

Mr. CoyNE: I will not say what the value will be in five years but I will say
that I hope that after the same length of time as the other banks had our shares
will have gone up the same amount.

Mr. GREGOIRE: Do you calculate it would be a good investment?

Mr. CoyNE: In the long run, yes.

Mr. HorRNER (Acadia): I would like to put a question to Mr. Stevens. What
is your connection with the Wellington Financial Corporation, the Canadian
Finance and Investments Limited and the York Trust and Savings Corporation?

Mr. STEVENS: I am president of all three.

Mr. HorNER: What is your connection with the British International
Finance (Canada) Limited?

Mr. STEVENS: I am also president of that company.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): I think you mentioned in your talk that British
International owned part of the Wellington Corporation, part of the Canadian
Finance and Investments Company and part of the York Trust. Am I right in
that?

Mr. STEVENS: British International Finance owns part of the Welling-
ton Financial and of the Canadian Finance and Investments. In turn, the
Wellington Financial owns part of the York Trust.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): Who owns and controls British International Finance?

Mr. STEVENS: This is a good question. All I can tell you is that, as you
probably know, this question was raised in the Senate. At that time we
submitted a shareholders’ list of the “A” shareholders and the common share-
holders of British International Finance. Would you like to get an up-to-date
current list, especially with regard to the common shareholders?

e (11: 10 am.)

Mr. HorNER (Acadia): I would like to have the up-to-date list. In the
Senate it was pointed out that out of the 64,000 outstanding shares you and
your associates owned a controlling interest of British International Finance.
Am I correct?

Mr. STEVENS: If uou mean by control the largest single block, the answer to
your question would be yes. If you mean control as 51 per cent in voting
power, the answer to your question is no.

Mr. HorRNER (Acadia): I realize that while you may not hold a positive
control, you hold a general control.

Mr. STEVENS: The term sometimes used is “effective control”.
Mr. HORNER (Acadia): Yes, this is what I mean.
Mr. STEVENS: It is effective as long as anyone does not line up against you.

Mr. HorNER (Acadia): Generally speaking the large shareholder, par-
ticularly one who is near the 50 per cent mark, pretty well controls everything.
In other words, you and your company own British International Finance, and
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British International Finance has effective control of the Wellington Financial
‘Corporation and Canadian Finance and Investments. Am I right?

Mr. STEVENS: Yes, in the terms I mentioned.

Mr. HorNER (Acadia): Would I be right in assuming that you would have

nearly 50 per cent of the paid in capital, of the $13 million in this proposed
chartered bank?

Mr. STEVENS: You mean in our various companies?
Mr. HORNER (Acadia): Yes.

Mr. STEVENS: At the beginning that was true. As you will recall, it was
contemplated in the proposed amendment to the Bank Act that was introduced
in the last parliament, and is also referred to in the Porter Commission Report,
that initially there should be an exception made when a new bank is starting. In
other words, while it may be considered desirable to have the share ownership
of banks spread around into relatively small holdings and certainly no large
block, it is accepted, I believe, that initially some organizational group is
likely—and in fact it would be very difficult not to do it otherwise—to have a
very dominant block in any new bank that is being formed. Our intention is
that while we should start with, say, effective control, in all likelihood it would
not be maintained, and the suggested changes in the last Bank Act are quite
acceptable to us in the sense that we would divest our holding if asked to do so
by the Treasury Board or whoever is in authority. We would also agree not to
exercise rights or warrants in this type of thing to maintain our position.

Mr. HorNER (Acadia): I think Mr. Porter stated in his banking report that
while competition between banks is increasingly great, the banks still have a
very dominant influence on the Canadian economic system. He also stated
somewhere that banks should be broadly based, and that the directorship of the
banks should, if possible, represent as many segments of the economy as
possible. Would you agree with my summation of that particular paragraph?

Mr. STEVENS: I do not think there is anything wrong with that principle.

Mr. HOoRNER (Acadia): How can you come before this committee stating
that you have nearly 50 per cent of the paid in capital of this bank and at the
same time agree with the principle that it should be a broadly based bank? I do
not think that you are broadly based if you ask parliament to give you a
charter whereby you could multiply your money, as somebody said, 20 times.

Mr. STEVENS: Initially it would be difficult to organize a bank and have that
type of diversification right from the beginning because two things could easily
happen, one is that you would end up in utter chaos and confusion regarding
who should take the lead in organizing and establishing branches, hiring
management and so on. The second thing that is probably more likely to happen
is that the ownership being so widely spread, you would quickly find a fight for
control and some group, completely unknown to parliament, could potentially

come in and take over the bank. In that sense parliament would have no control
over who owns the bank.

Mr. Horner (Acadia): What you are saying is that you are better than an
unknown factor.

Mr. STEVENS: At least you know us.
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Mr. HoRNER (Acadia): Going back to how well we know you, what has been
your line of business with regard to British International Finance? In other
words, I believe it is the Inspector General’s duty to recommend through the
banks from time to time that they diversify their investments. If he feels a bank
has gone too far in any direction, he can recommend or advise such a chartered
bank to diversify. Could you give the committee some idea of the activities of
British International Finance so that we may be made aware of the trends of
this bank in the future?

Mr. STEVENS: We have felt in British International that there is room for
the creation, organization and expansion of new Canadian financial enterprises,
and having this view we first of all established—I will refer to the main
companies—a company in Toronto called York Trust and Savings Corporation.
We raised capital substantially from the public to start the base for that
company and it, in turn, has expanded in Toronto and presently has 15 branches
in that city.

Mr. HOrRNER(Acadia): May I interject here? In other words British Inter-
national Finance’s purpose in the years gone by has been to foster finance
companies. Would that be a correct interpretation?

Mr. STEVENS: No. I am using the term “financial companies” in the broad
sense. York Trust is not a finance company.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): Is it an investment company?

Mr. STEVENS: No, it is a trust company that was formed under the Loan and
Trust Corporation Act of Ontario and is supervised by the Department of
Insurance in Ontario. It has exactly the same status as National Trust which is
incorporated under the same act.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): And deals mostly in second mortgages.

Mr. STEVENS: No, under our act—the Loan and Trust Corporations Act—we
are specifically not able to go into second mortgages.

Mr. HorNER (Acadia): What line of business do they go into?

Mr. STEVENS: In the main it holds mortgages of the type that are generally
referred to as conventional first mortgages. That means that you cannot go
higher than 75 per cent of the appraised value of the property on which you are
loaning. In Ottawa the comparable act is the Trust Companies Act which in
turn has the same general type of rules regarding loans.

If T might go on now, with this view—that there is room for more
institutions of this type in Canada and that they should be encouraged—we
started the York Trust in Toronto. We purchased control of the Lambton Loan
and Investment Company in Sarnia with a view to expanding that company.
That is a company that is again under the Ontario Loan and Trust Corporation
Act, and in fact is the oldest company of its kind in Canada. It started in 1844.
Since getting control of that company, we have doubled the number of branches
from two to four. We feel that a very worthwile company could be built up in
western Ontario. In Winnipeg we raised funds for the establishment of the Fort
Garry Trust Company. That company is now active in Winnipeg and is
supervised by the Dominion Department of Insurance with the arrangement
that the province of Manitoba has. In Alberta we have purchased a 30 per cent
interest in the Alberta Fidelity Trust which, in turn, is another company fitting
into this trust and loan field to which I have referred.
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Mr. HorNER (Acadia): In other words, you encourage trust and loan com-
panies rather than finance companies? I do not know whether it is a worth-while
business and whether or not it lends support to your charter. In my opinion it
does not.

e (11:20 am.)

Let us go back to the fact that you and your associates will own 50 per cent
of the proposed capital of this bank, which is already in trust. Am I right in
saying that you make your headquarters in Toronto?

Mr. STEVENS: Me personally? Yes.

Mr. HOoRNER (Acadia): Why should I as a westerner believe that all of a
sudden, because you have formed another company and want a charter, you are
going to direct your interests to western Canada when until recently, when you
bought the 30 per cent in Alberta Fidelity, they were solely directed in and
around Ontario?

Mr. STEVENS: Perhaps the best way to answer you is by mentioning Alberta
Fidelity. We have predominant control interest in Alberta Fidelity. Mr. Bodie
would confirm I think today—and he is President of the company—that we in no

" way interfere with the operations of Alberta Fidelity in Edmonton. If they wish
to make a loan to someone or carry on their day to day business we do not
interfere at all. Their business is managed in Edmonton and the only contact we
have is in directorship in that two of our people sit on the board of Alberta
Fidelity. They in turn pass on whatever comes before them at board meetings.
The effective running of Alberta Fidelity Trust, however, is in Edmonton.

Mr. HorNER(Acadia): I noticed in the Senate committee two years ago, Mr.
Stevens, you stated in your opening remarks that you would be a permanent
director of the proposed bank. You did not state that this morning.

Mr. STEVENS: I hope to be.
Mr. HORNER (Acadia): A permanent director?
Mr. STEVENS: Yes.

Mr. HorNER (Acadia): I gather from that statement that you hope to be a
permanent director for life.

Mr. LAMBERT: As opposed to a provisional director.

Mr. HorNER (Acadia): We are still supposed to assume that, giving you 50
per cent to start with, you will begin to divest your interest in the company?

Mr. STEVENS: Yes. As I said, the proposed amendment to the Bank Act
introduced in the last parliament is quite acceptable to us. We feel it is
necessary, in order to have control of this type of situation, to place effective
control in somebody’s hands initially.

Mr. HorRNER (Acadia): How would the proposed amendments to the Bank
Act force you to divest? Could you not overcome them by backing three or four
other companies as you have already said British International has backed
Wellington? Could you not then divest other companies unknown to the
Minister?

Mr. STEVENS: If you were to do that you would certainly not be abiding by
the intent of the amendments as they were proposed in the last parliament. As

far as our group is concerned, we certainly would not do it.
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Mr. HorRNER (Acadia): I would like to believe you, but I have a very
sceptical view of finance companies and trust companies too; I think they have
shown in the past that there are plenty of ways to get around the intent of the
act.

Mr. STEVENS: I would like to assure you without any hesitation that on this
question of control, one or more of our existing banks—

Mr. GREGOIRE: Which one?

Mr. STEVENS: One or more of our existing banks is certainly more tightly
controlled today than our bank will be in relation to shareholders. In practice
the executive of a bank has little problem through proxies.

Mr. GREGOIRE: Which one?

Mr. STEVENS: Any one, if you wish. The executive of a bank has little
difficulty in obtaining proxies or some such support from shareholders to make
sure that their control is carried on from year to year. I feel that the actual
shareholdings are perhaps not as important as you would ordinarily think.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): I notice in this Bill you state that you shall have a
$25 million capital stock, yet you have only $13 million in trust and you had $13
million back in 1964. Have you made any effort to acquire the other $12
million?

Mr. STEVENS: No, generally when one forms a new company one asks for an
authorized capital greater than one intends to issue to save going back to ask
for more.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): In the last Bill you stated the capital stock was $10
million.

Mr. STEVENS: In the first Bill it was $10 million and in the second Bill it
was $25 million. In the third Bill the $25 million was repeated.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): I missed the second Bill.

Mr. STEVENS: We are now up to the third Bill.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): I gather from your comments this morning that you
intend to open offices in Calgary, Edmonton, Regina and Vancouver and to have
your head office in Winnipeg.

Mr. CoYNE: And in other places as well.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): You did not really state that in your remarks.

Mr. CoyNE: I thought you said I did.

Mr. HOorNER (Acadia): You stated Regina, Calgary, Edmonton and Van-
couver.

Mr. CoyNE: I suppose I could think of some more names.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): I am sure you could. Can you give the committee
some idea of the proposed number of branches your bank intends to start out
with, say inside two or three years or four or five years.

Mr. CoynE: I think a great deal will depend on how the first one or two
branches succeed. We will start in Winnipeg with our head office. That requires
a considerable staff, of course, and banking facilities. We may open more
branches in Winnipeg before going anywhere else. I think a great deal will have
to be determined in the future by the board and management of the bank once
it has been established.
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I would contemplate—and I am not trying to evade your question—that as
soon as we found we were getting as good a reception as we hope for we would
start plans to put branches into the other western provinces. Again, we would
have to start with one or two towns in each province. The next step beyond
that, depending again on how well the initial branches succeed, would be to go
into smaller towns. I do not think it would make sense for a new bank of this
sort to start in very small towns. There are 1,600 towns in Canada in which
there is only one branch bank; it would not be practical for us to go into those
areas, certainly not in the early stages.

Mr. HorNER (Acadia): Do you intend to build up your banklng business by
deposits from the general public?

Mr. CoynNE: Yes.

Mr. HorNER (Acadia): And with connections with a few large companies
such as trust companies or loan companies?

Mr. CoyNE: No, we expect to depend entirely on the deposits of the general
public. We will have some connections with trust companies, as do the other
banks. In western Canada all our people are already associated with two local
trust companies, the one in Winnipeg, the Fort Garry Trust, and the one in
Edmonton and Calgary, the Alberta Fidelity. I would expect those would be the
trust companies with which we would have closest contacts, but we would not
for instance contemplate lending money to them or have them lend money to
the bank. It would be just a normal business relationship.

Mr. HorNER (Acadia): With regard to your vision of western Canada and
the tremendous potential there, and the need for a western oriented bank,
which this would be in my view to start with in any event, what industry or
what segments of the economy out there do you feel your bank will be able to
move into immediately?

Mr. CoyNE: I do not know.
Mr. HORNER (Acadia): You have not made any studies of it?

Mr. CoyNE: No. I would like to think we could do some financing in almost
any field of industry that showed prospects of success in western Canada. You
are not speaking of farming or some particular industry?

Mr. HorNER (Acadia): No, I am just throwing it open to you to tell me.

You are going to start a bank and you feel there is a great need. I am asking
you in what industries you feel the need is most urgent.

e (11: 30 a.m.)

Mr. CoynEe: I think there is a great deal of room. There are many banks
and many branches, but I think there is room for rather more than all your
banks concentrated in just a few institutions. I would like to see half a dozen or
a dozen banks in western Canada.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): I am wholeheartedly in support of your view that
there should be more banks, and I am wholeheartedly in support of your view
that there should be more banks in western Canada, but I find this bank is
controlled in Toronto and I am questioning you on what ideas you have for

western Canada, and I find you can give me none. So I go back to my statement
23648—3}
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that it appears your interests are not in western Canada; it appears you are
using this idea of a bank for western Canada to obtain a charter for a bank. If I
am wrong, I want you to correct me.

Mr. CoyNE: I will correct you. If you mean we are interested in getting a
charter and operating a bank in some part of Canada other than western
Canada, that simply is not so. This proposal is to establish a bank which is based
in western Canada, which has its mass in western Canada, its staff, personnel
and operations in western Canada. I certainly hope—but this will perhaps not be
until I have passed from the scene—that it could one day grow into a national
bank. That would depend on many factors.

Mr. HOorRNER (Acadia): You stated that this was a regional bank. I remem-
ber when the Imperial Bank and the Bank of Commerce merged. I think it was
those two banks, but it could have been the Toronto-Dominion, I am not sure
now. Their argument was that they complemented one another; on very few
occasions did their branches overlap, and they went well together. Now you are
setting up a regional bank. I think something like 60 per cent of one of the
other major bank’s business is in Ontario alone. Do you see any feasible merger
in the years ahead, bearing in mind the reasons for which the Toronto and
Dominion merged in years gone by?

Mr. CoyNE: No, I do not contemplate that at all.

Mr. HorNER (Acadia): You stated in your earlier remarks that there was
room for many more banks in Canada. What were your views at the time of the
mergers of the Imperial Bank and the Bank of Commerce and the Toronto and
Dominion banks?

Mr. CoyNE: In the case of the Toronto-Dominion, I was in the Bank of
Canada at the time as, I think, Deputy Governor although it may have been in
another position. Naturally, it was the Governor who expressed any view that
may have been expressed on that occasion. In the case of the other merger, I
was not consulted. ’

Mr. HorNER(Acadia): You were not consulted in regard to the Imperial
Bank and the Bank of Commerce merger?

Mr. Coynk: ‘That is right. I was not consulted nor was I informed.

Mr. HORNER(Acadia): But you did have some views in regard to the merger
of the Toronto Bank ‘and the Dominion Bank?

Mr. CoyNE: I may have had views on all these things, but it was not my
business to give advice on that merger.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): I will pass.

Mr. STEVENS: On this question of the type of business we do in western
Canada, may I say that while we do not propose to hold ourselves out as an oil
bank or as a grain bank or something like that, we would carry on an active
banking business through those four western provinces with whoever will deal
with us. The point I should mention is that the United States controlled bank, the
Mercantile Bank, has expanded into Winnipeg and Alberta. They tell us they
are very pleased with the business they have found waiting for them in
Manitoba and Alberta; and we feel likewise that there is good business to be
done in those provinces.
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Mr. LEwis: Mr. Stevens, perm1t ‘me to make a short statement before I put
a question.

I am not very concerned about your statements w1th regard to control not
because I do not believe them—I am sure you mean them as you state them
now—but because I have no doubt at all that whether or not you, a certain group,
control the bank today or tomorrow, eventually a group will control it, as is the
case with every other such corporation. I suspect that eventually your group
will control it because you are on the ground floor. So your protestations about
the control leave me a little cold.

Having made it clear to you that whatever words you may use I am darned
sure your group will control this bank, may I ask you this. Can you tell me
what kind of distribution of shares there is among the 5,000 or so people who
now own the shares to the value of about $6 million?

Mr. STEVENS: Yes.

Mr. LEwis: The large number of 5,000 sounds very impressive and I would
like a breakdown.

Mr. STEVENS: There are 1,261 persons in the province of Manitoba who own
137,320 certificates which will be represented in shares. There are 456 people in
the Province of Saskatchewan who own 23,565 certificates. There are 1,065
residents of Alberta who own 56,270 certificates. And there are 1,362 residents
of British Columbia and the Territories who own 66,580 certificates. That
subtotal is one I think I gave earlier, which is 283,735 shares which are owned
by 4,145 persons.

In Ontario we have 750 people owning 128,135 certificates. In Quebec, we
have 104 people owning 10,655 certificates, and in the Atlantic provinces we
have 198 people owning 7,475 certificates. That I believe totals 430,000 certifi-
cates in the hands of 5,197 Canadians.

Mr. CoyNE: Mr. Chairman, I wonder if I may just add a comment which is
not in answer to the question at all.

You have before you in this application, I think, the situation that for the
first time a group has come to parliament with a list of shareholders and with
capital subscribed before getting their charter, except of course in the cases of
the two foreign banks which were wholly owned by their parents. This
widespread distribution and this fairly large sum of money is some evidence, I
think, of the work which Mr. Stevens has done in seeking to prepare in advance
an indication to parliament of the fact that a large number of people are
prepared to support a new bank and want to support a new bank in Canada. It
has never been done before so far as I know. All the others obtained their
charters first and then, if they could, obtained their capital afterwards, which
was a very easy proposition. If you had your charter today you could get your
capital without any trouble; to get it in advance is more difficult.

Mr. LEwis: You have people who say they will take the shares if you
obtain the charter.

Mr. MoRre (Regina City): Of the 750 persons in Ontario, is Wellington the
only one of your companies that has shares?
Mr. LEwis: I gather these figures apply to humans.

Mr. STEVENS: These are individual holdings in the bank directly. The
Wellington block will be an additional block to the figures I have given to you.
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Mr. LEwis: These are persons with a bottom to kick and a heart to feel!

Mr. STEVENS: As far as I know, Mr. Lewis, the largest holder in the
breakdown I have given you is the Great West Life, which has 33,000
certificates and would be included in the Manitoba breakdown. I say that in
that breakdown there could be other people who own shares of whom we are
not aware.

Mr. LEwis: Then I am wrong about that. How about the 750 in Ontario?

Mr. STEVENS: They are quite representative of small holdings. To the best
of my knowledge there is no large holding in the Ontario block.

Mr. LEwis: Just out of sheer curiosity may I ask this question? You said in
February there were two meetings and you had unanimous consent for extending
the holdings for another year. Where were the meetings held?

Mr. STEVENS: The first meeting which dealt with the trust deed certifi-
cates—the 430,000—was held in Winnipeg on February 9.

Mr. LEwis: Did it have the 5,000-odd people there?

Mr. STEVENS: The Canada Permanent Trust Company, who is the trustee,
wrote to each of the certificate holders and advised them that it was proposed to
extend the agreement by one year, which was mentioned in the original
prospectus. They asked the certificate holders to attend the meeting. It was run
not like an annual meeting but something similar in that the certificate holders
were made aware of the proposal and asked to attend personally or give their
proxy. I think there were about 50 or 60 people who attended personally and
the proxy was with respect to about half the total holding. Of the number of
shares voted, as I say, 100 per cent voted in favour of extending the agreement.

Mr. LEwis: I am always amused by corporation spokesmen talking about
these meetings of thousands of people. I want the record to show that there
were 50 or 60 people present.

Mr. LAMBERT: Just like union meetings!

e (11:40 am.)

Mr. Lewis: Has Mr. Lambert ever been to a union meeting in order to
ascertain what proportion was there?

The CHAIRMAN: Order, please. This may be a subject which will be
referred to us at some future date. However, it is not before the committee at
the present time.

Mr. LEwis: That will not stop Mr. Lambert from showing his prejudices,
nor me either.

Mr. LAMBERT: Mr. Chairman, I am just trying to restore a balance to this.
Mr. LEwis: Mr. Stevens, may I ask you about the second meeting.
Mr. STEVENS: Yes. The second meeting was held by Wellington because the

agreement there was with respect to Wellington financial shares. That was held
in Toronto, and the same procedure was followed.

The trustee holders in reference to the Wellington proposal were asked to
attend the meeting in person or by proxy in respect of the proposal to extend
for one year. I might mention that there was a 98 per cent vote in favour of it.
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There were 2 per cent who said they would like their money back. I understand
what they meant by that was that they had not in any way lost interest in the
idea of a new bank but they were discouraged by the fact we had waited two
years and still did not have a charter. They felt it could go on another year and
they would still not have a charter. In the meantime, they felt they should have
their money back. But, the tone of the meeting was substantially in favour of
extending the deadline by one year.

Mr. LEwis: I suppose you or Mr. Coyne, or both of you, chose western
Canada for your operations, at least to start with, because, quite frankly, you
were interested in making a success and a profit out of the business, and that is
the area where you thought you could do best in present day Canada, where
there is perhaps less competition. Is that the reason you have chosen that area?

Mr. CoynNE: If I could answer your question, Mr. Lewis, in my own view I
thought there would be the widest public response in respect of that area.

Mr. LEwis: Yes, the opportunity for success would be greatest. You
thought there would be a need for more capital outlets, as it were, and if you
concentrated on the western area you would have appeal to the western people
and make a success of it.

Mr. CoYNE: Yes.

Mr. LEwIS: There are one or two points that I would like to discuss with
you, Mr. Coyne, which are of a general nature.

You say there is need for more banks in Canada. Is that because the
existing banks are not equipped to meet the monetary and credit requirements
of the country?

Mr. CoyNE: If I have said there is need for more banks I will have to
explain it further. I tried to say there is room for more banks and it is desirable
that there should be more. Undoubtedly, the existing banks are providing
financial facilities far and wide throughout the country. There are eight of them.
If there was only one I suppose it could provide just as many branch offices as
if there were eight. And, if there were 30 there might be the same total number
of branches. My view on this general question is that it is desirable to have
more centres of decision, more head offices, more decentralization of decisions
and of initiatives in this field and in a good many other fields as well.

Mr. LEwis: What would be the limit in that respect? I am questioning this
very seriously as a citizen. What would be the limit? Suppose this parliament
and this committee had before it 25 applications for the incorporation of banks.
When you say there is room for more banks are you saying there are now only
eight banks and, therefore, Canada can do with a few more, or are you
suggesting that this parliament, this committee, the Department of Finance, the
Bank of Canada should not care how many banks are set up?

Mr. CoyNE: I do not think as a mere abstract theory you can set any limit. I
cannot see how one can set any arbitrary limit. I do not suppose you ever will
have 25 applications before you at any one time. My own view, which is not
directly germane to our application, on this general question is I would allow
almost any respectable sort of person who could raise capital and who was
being adequately supervised by the public authorities to start a bank or any
other worth-while business.
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Mr. LEwis: I am not saying this, Mr. Coyne, to raise any doubts about the
institution you propose, but when was the last time that a bank in Canada
failed? : i

Mr. CoyNE: It was in 1923.

Mr. LEwIs: And, that was the Home Bank?

Mr. CoyNE: Yes.

Mr. LEwis: And, have there not been many more failures than that in the
United States since then?

Mr. CoynNE: Undoubtedly.

Mr. LEwis: Would you not say the number of failures in the United States
was somewhat related to the huge number of banks in that country?

Mr. CoyNE: Yes.

Mr. LEwis: Then I repeat my question. Is there not a danger in extending
the right to just anyone, to any respectable person, of course, because I assume
any one who requests a charter is likely to be respectable.

Mr. CoYNE: Yes.

Mr. LEwis: You think that this right should be given to any respectable
person?

Mr. CoyNE: There may be more danger of this under private auspices than
under public auspices, but there is no danger of depositors losing any money
and, in any event, it could be covered by some form of deposit insurance such as
they have in the United States. But, I think the provision for inspection by the
Federal Government ought to be such that the depositors are protected, and
then, so far as the shareholders are concerned, that would depend on a number
of factors, on the quality of the management, on sheer accident or good fortune.
But, that is why people become shareholders, to take their risks in respect of
profits or losses.

Mr. LEwis: I was more concerned with the depositors than the sharehold-
ers. I know the shareholders take the risk, and that is their business. But, do
you agree that deposit insurance would be a good thing for Canada?

Mr. CoynE: Oh yes, undoubtedly; I have been of that opinion for a long
time. I am not referring to just banks but all deposit making institutions.

The CHAIRMAN: Members of the committee, I would like to remind you that
we are dealing with the specific bill to incorporate a specific bank.

Mr. Lewis: I thought I was dealing with that very thing because the first
point Mr. Stevens raised was: Is there room for more banks? I want to know
exactly what that statement means and how far this committee or parliament
should go.

The CHAIRMAN: But, Mr. Lewis, this committee may have to decide first
whether there is room for this bank.

Mr. LEwis: I am prepared to say, assuming that their associates are as
respectable as Mr. Stevens and Mr. Coyne appear to be, that there may be room
for this bank, but that does not answer my general question, which concerns me
very much.
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Mr. CoyNE: Of course, you have to make a start. I would hate to think
that you may refuse to start one because you do not know how many
applications you may get from subsequent applicants.

Mr. LEwis: Nor would I. Now, my final question: A large number of other
financial institutions have done banking business and are doing banking
business, are they not?

e (11: 50 am.)

Mr. CoyNE: Well, a semi-banking business called near banks. The Porter
commission called them banking institutions but I do not think the chartered
banks like that description very much.

Mr. LEwis: Well, the fact is that they do give checking privileges.

Mr. CoyNE: Yes. A trust company and certain other companies, not loan
companies or mortgage companies, have deposit accounts with checking privi-
leges.

Mr. LEwis: And, is the business of these near banks very considerable in
western Canada, and is it growing?

Mr. CoyNE: Undoubtedly it is growing, but I doubt whether there has been
as much development as in Ontario. I am not too familiar with the eastern part
of the country, but I think probably Ontario has had a bigger development of
that sort than any other part of Canada.

Mr. LEwis: With regard to this idea of there being room for more banks
should one take into account the operations of these near banks as well?

Mr. CoyNE: Well, they are not banks; they are under a different statute and
they do not have the powers, some of the facilities or recourse of banks as such.

Mr. LEwis: What would they lack, not as far as the problem we would be
concerned with, namely the size of the over-all lending or deposit institutions,
but what would the near banks lack that banks have.

Mr. CoyNE: Before dealing with that, if it is germane, may I say that I am
not suggesting there is a lack of facilities in western Canada or anywhere else;
all I am saying is that it is right people who want to add to these facilities on
competitive basis should be encouraged to do so.

Mr. LEwis: Well, I am seeking certain information from you as a man with
a great deal of banking experience. If the country is being served and served
well and adequately why is it that some of you want to get into a business
which you feel is profitable, not from the social point of view? Is it necessary
for me as a member of the Canadian Parliament to support an application for a
new bank? What will Canada get out of it—and I am not saying this in any
personal sense—as distinct from Mr. Stevens and his associates.

Mr. CoyNE: I do not say that banking is much different from other forms of
businesses; of course, it has its own characteristics. But, my feeling is that it is a
good thing to have fairly open access on the part of any person in Canada to
any line of economic endeavour he wants to go into, and over the long run this
will be good for the economy of the country as a whole by livening it up and
bringing in new ideas and initiatives, as well as helping to decentralize decisions
instead of taking everything right from the one place.

Mr. GREGOIRE: Mr. Chairman, I have a supplementary question.
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The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Grégoire, I think it would be unfair to others if I
allowed you to put your supplementary question at this time.

Mr. LEwis: As I say, I think there is a use for a bank only if it can assist to
develop and expand the economy of a country and thereby assist the people of
the country. I am not the slightest bit interested in giving anyone an opportuni-
ty to make profits.

Mr. CoyNE: But, the more people you give the opportunity to the more you
will tend to reduce the profits.

Mr. Lewis: That remains to be seen; subject to arrangements, agreements,
collusion, mergers, subject to all this which takes place daily if your statement
is right.

Mr. CoyNE: I do not see any necessity for any new banks to enter into
collusive agreement, and I understand in the draft of the Bank Act there was a
provision to prevent or outlaw that. All I am saying is that it is a good thing to
have more enterprises rather than fewer in any given line of activity and how it
serves a social purpose by giving people as wide a choice as possible—and, I am
referring to the customers—and giving the producers, the management groups,
the opportunity to enter into this line of business.

Mr. LEwis: Do you contemplate opening your lending facilities in directions
which other banks subject to the law have not opened, or are you simply taking
some of the business now done by other banks that you hope will come to you,
or new business that would be coming to you?

Mr. CoyNE: That is right. In respect of new directions, of course, the bank
can go into any type of lending they wish with one or two exceptions in the
Bank Act, so there is not much scope to go into something entirely new. But,
the proportions in which we go into these things may be different from the
other banks, and we may lend to a man that the other banks would not.
However, I hope we do not do that too often. Certainly we will be lending to a
man who wishes to do business with us by his own free choice rather than do
business with another bank.

The CHAIRMAN: If I may interrupt, gentlemen, it is almost noon and we
have been sitting almost continuously since shortly after 9.30 a.m. Perhaps we
might pause for a moment and have some discussion with regard to our
procedure for the remainder of the day. First of all, do you wish to continue
sitting past the noon hour? I, as your Chairman, do not object to this.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): I think we should stop at noon, Mr. Chairman.

The CHAIRMAN: Next, we should consider whether we contemplate sitting
this afternoon in view of the fact that we have witnesses here and there are
many members who have not had the opportunity to put questions to them.

As you know, the report of this committee to seek permission to sit while
the House is sitting has been tabled to today, and if it is the general wish—and I
do not find it necessary to ask for a motion in this regard—to continue while the
House is sitting I will continue with this motion in the House at 2.30 today.

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): Mr. Chairman, I would like an opportunity to
ask some questions of the witnesses and I am sure there are others who wish to
do likewise. It seems to me, Mr. Chairman, you have been allowing the members
from that side of the room to put questions and, as a result, we have not had an
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opportunity of doing so. But, I think there would be a general disposition of the
members throughout the House, in view of the fact that these witnesses are
here, to allow the committee to sit later on today.

Mr. MoNTEITH: That is, with the exception of the hon. member from Hull.

Mr. CLERMONT: Mr. Chairman, I am sure he will accept on a special
request.

Mr. GREGOIRE: Mr. Chairman, because of the matters which are being
discussed before the House at this time I, personally, would not favour sitting
today while the House is sitting. I do not think it would be a good idea to bring
this motion during the estimates. However, I do understand the circumstances.

Mr. MoRrE (Regina City): Mr. Chairman, Mr. Grégoire has had an oppor-
tunity of putting his questions, and if he wants to sit in the House this
afternoon he may do so.

Mr. GREGOIRE: But, Mr. Chairman, I would like to be here in order to listen
to the further questions put and answers made by remaining members who
have not had the opportunity up until now.

Mr. LEwis: Mr. Chairman, the discussion on the estimates is apt to go on
for a long time yet and if we do not sit while the House is sitting it may be
some time before we dispose of this bill.

Mr. GREGOIRE: I agree that there is a difficulty in that connection.

e (11:57 am.)
The CHAIRMAN: I would like to invite other brief comments.
Mr. MonTEITH: I think we should try to meet this afternoon.

Mr. CoATEs: I think we should meet if we get the permission to do so. What
we are doing is talking about a hypothetical situation.

The CHAIRMAN: It is my intention, having received the general point of
view of the committee—which I agree is not completely unanimous—to seek to
proceed with the motion in the House when the House convenes. If the motion
is received, I would ask the members to return at 3.30 p.m. or after Orders of
the Day. There is one final point on which we should decide right now. Do we
wish to continue in the afternoon?

Mr. MoNTEITH: I have not been to my office yet.

There is one more question I would like to ask. Are we going to have Mr.
Elderkin?

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Elderkin has been kind enough to be here throughout
the morning and is prepared to be with us as soon as we have completed the
questioning of the gentlemen who are before us.

Mr. MonNTEITH: I have one further question. I would like to go into it in
some detail eventually. What is the makeup of British International Finance,
the Wellington Financial Corporation and the York Trust, and how are they
correlated? I wonder if the witnesses could develop some sort of chart that
might assist us.

Mr. MAcpoNALD (Rosedale): Do the witnesses have a copy of the 1964
report?

Mr. STEVENS: I have only one copy.
Mr. MAcpONALD (Rosedale): Is that the most recent one?

B e =

o e —

B o o

e

——



44 FINANCE, TRADE AND ECONOMIC AFFAIRS  March 1, 1966

~ Mr. STEVENS:Yes. ?
Mr. MonTEITH: Could we have a photo copy of this?

The CHAIRMAN: I will ask the clerk to consult with the parliamentary agent
to see if copies could be made for the next sitting.

I suggest therefore that this committee stand adjourned either until after
the Orders of the Day or until another date which might be acceptable if our
motion in the House is not accepted.

The meeting is adjourned.

AFTERNOON SITTING

e (4:15 pm.)
The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, I see a quorum, so today’s session of this
committee is now resumed.
At the luncheon adjournment I believe the next person I had noted to
recognize was Mr. Laflamme.

Mr. LarLaMME: I would just like to ask a few questions of Mr. Stevens and
Mr. Coyne.

I would like to know if all the shares of this proposed bank are sold in
advance.

Mr. STEVENS: The total authorized capital for the proposed bank is $25
million. If one divides that by $10 par, that is 2} million possible shares. We
intend to issue initially slightly under $13 million including the premium, which
is $5; therefore we intend to issue initially something over 8,000 shares out of
the total of 2} million shares. Of the number we intend to issue initially, all
are in effect spoken for in that cash is either in trust or has been committed by
the companies and groups to which we referred this morning.

Mr. LAFLAMME: Is there any maximum amount of shares that could be held
by a single person or individual?

Mr. STEVENS: There is not under the present bill or under the present Bank
Act.

The CHAIRMAN: I will next recognize Mr. Monteith.

Mr. MoNTEITH: Mr. Chairman, at the moment I have just a few unrelated
questions to ask. At some later stage I would like to go into holdings other than
the individual holdings which have been outlined earlier, but I would like to
ask a question now which arises from Mr. Stevens’ evidence of this morning. He
made the statement that the Bank of Canada’s statistical summary shows the
net current operating earnings for the eight banks at an increase of 25 per cent
in two years. I presume that statement was made to show that there really is
room for another bank.

Mr. STEVENS: That is right.

Mr. MONTEITH: Why were there so many sponsors in the first bill and only
the qualifying number of sponsors in the last one?
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Mr. STEVENS: I hope I am not speaking out of turn when I say that this was
largely a mechanical problem. Initially, when we had our 100 petitioners the
clerical staff in Ottawa said there were a fair number of problems in getting
all the names and addresses correct and in order. When we did it the second
time we had nearly 100 names again in the second bill and, again they
were aghast and asked if it was really necessary to show all these names each
time. On the third run we felt perhaps it was unnecessary, and that is why we
came down to the minimum of five. However, substantially all the people shown
in the initial bill are still in the picture. As far as I know certainly a majority
of them are holders of certificates and will be shareholders of the bank.

Mr. MoNTEITH: Your first bill in 1964 stated there would be $10 million
capitalization. I think the 1964 evidence indicated that you at that time had $12
million to $13 million sold. What did you propose to do? Had you ever any
intention of recapitalizing at $25 million?

Mr. STEVENS: The original capital was to be $10 million of $10 par. We are
now issuing the shares at a $15 price with $5 going into reserve.

Mr. MonTEITH: During the questions by Mr. McLean this morning Mr.
Coyne said he did not know of an instance where the inner reserves had been
published. This is now done in the United States, is it not?

Mr. CoyNE: You mean by the public authorities or by the banks them-
selves?

Mr. MoNTEITH: By the banks.
Mr. CoyNE: I am not sure. It may be that some banks do and some do not.

Mr. MonTEITH: I do not say it is common, but I think it is done in some
instances.

Mr. CoyNE: I think probably it is done, yes.

Mr. MonNTEITH: On the eight per cent deposit with the Bank of Canada
there is no interest allowed, is there?

Mr. CoyNE: That is right.

Mr. MoNTEITH: If there is an over amount, is interest allowed on that
overage?

Mr. CoyNE: No.

Mr. MoNTEITH: No matter what the amount is, there is no interest?

Mr. CoyNE: I would support any movement to have interest paid.

Mr. MONTEITH: It sounds reasonable.

Did I understand both of you gentlemen to say that you are willing to live
with the present Bank Act as it is or with any amendments that may come
forth when it is reviewed?

Mr. CoyNE: Both, yes.

Mr. MoNTEITH: Even if the powers of the near banks were widened
considerably?

Mr. CoyNE: Yes.

Mr. MoNTEITH: There is one question which I have not been able to
straighten out in my mind. Mr. Leboe was asking some questions on this
subject this morning, and it is something I have never understood although it is
probably very elementary. How does more money get into circulation?
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Mr. CoyNE: I am at the disposition of the committee, Mr. Monteith.

Mr. MONTEITH: Is this a very long story?

Mr. CoyNE: No, I do not suppose so, but if everyone wants to pursue that
question it can take quite a long time. It has taken a long time on previous
occasions. :

The CHAIRMAN: Since I have interrupted other members who have wanted
to extend the area of discussion, I think I should do so here.

Mr. LEBOE: On a point of order, Mr. Chairman, I do not think you can rule
out Mr. Monteith’s question. When we are dealing with a charter of a bank we
are dealing with everything a bank does and everything a bank anticipates
doing under law. I do not think for one moment this committee can be
short-changed in any way. If Mr. Monteith does not want to pursue the
question, that is quite a different matter, but I do not think we can put
ourselves in a box by saying we cannot pursue a question similar to the one
asked by Mr. Monteith in connection with banking. This is an occasion when a
charter for a bank is being requested. It covers everything that is in the act and
everything the bank does or hopes to do. I think this question should be
allowed.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): On this point of order, Mr. Chairman I think this
question is perfectly in order. We are here discussing banking in Canada and
the application for a charter for another bank in Canada, and I think this
question comes within those perimeters. How much money is in circulation?
‘Would more banks create more money in circulation? Those questions are well
within the perimeters of this discussion. I would like a brief definition of it,
alocng with Mr. Monteith.

The CHAIRMAN: I have not ruled Mr. Monteith’s question out of order. I used
the Chair’s prerogative to suggest to him that if the question was wandering
farther afield it might not come within the proper business of this committee at
this time. Therefore, while I do not think it is necessary to produce any ruling
on the question or order at this moment, I would like to say that the committee
may not say we are discussing banking in Canada generally but, at the very
widest, banking in Canada as it is reflected by the incorporation of this bank.

As I said before, whilst it is not my intention to limit the discussion, I think
the committee will agree that the range of the discussion, even when touching
on very important topics such as this, should attempt to link this discussion
with the actual bill before us.

Mr. MonTEITH: I wonder if Mr. Coyne could give us a reasonably brief
explanation. We are neophytes in this game. Can he explain whether this bank
will create more money which will go into circulation?

The CHAIRMAN: You are referring to this bank for which application for a
charter is being made?

Mr. MONTEITH: Yes.

e (4:25 p.m.)

Mr. CoyNE: I think the answer to that is that the creation of a new bank
will not add to the volume of money nor will it add to the total volume of
bank deposits which I presume is what you are calling money. It may affect
the distribution of them. Some of those deposits may be with this bank instead of
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with other banks. We must also assume that the total volume of deposits will
grow, because it does every year, rain or shine, some years more than others.
Therefore, to the extent that this bank acquires deposits, it may mean that other
banks do not grow quite as much as they might have done without this bank; it
does not mean they would be decreased.

Mr. MoNTEITH: Is it possible that you will obtain business that would not
have gone through any other bank?

Mr. CoyNE: That is possible, yes.
Mr. MoNTEITH: Perhaps someone has had it in a sock!

Mr. CoyNE: That is one way, but I was thinking of business in a different
connection. If someone comes to us to make a deposit, so far as we are
concerned it is money that existed either in cash already in circulation or as a
deposit they previously had in another bank. We send it to the Bank of Canada
and they debit the other bank and send it to us.

Mr. MoNTEITH: I will not pursue that but I will reserve it for a later date
because it is a question I would like to have answered.

I do not think I have any more questions until we get to the chart showing
the tie-up of various companies, and then I would like to get back into the
discussion.

The CHAIRMAN: The next member on my list is Mr. Macdonald.

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): There is one point I want to clarify, and that is
in respect of the participation of 2,000 persons through Wellington Financial.

Do I understand that they have deposited funds contingent upon the issue
of the charter, and that when the charter is issued they will get shares not of
the bank but of Wellington Financial?

Mr. STEVENS: That is correct.

Mr. MAcpoNALD (Rosedale): Is British International Finance one of those
2,000 persons?

Mr. STEVENS: Yes.

Mr. MAacpoNALD (Rosedale): Can you say what the relative effect will be of
that operation from the standpoint of British International Finance’s current 60
per cent control of Wellington?

Mr. STEVENS: Yes. When the Bank of Western Canada becomes a reality
and the shares are issued, it will mean that the control or the 60 per cent block
to which you have referred falls below 50 per cent in relation to Wellington
Financial.

Mr. MAcDONALD (Rosedale): Let me refer to your remarks of this morning
with regard to the attitudes of the chartered banks now in existence. You
referred to Mr. McLaughlin’s remarks and particularly his welcome to new
banks with “equal rights, privileges and obligations to all.” I am reading from
something you referred to this morning. Have you run into any obstruction or
difficulty from the other chartered banks with respect to obtaining personnel?

Mr. STEVENS: Do you mean with respect to our existing operations and trust
companies?

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): I meant specifically with regard to the initial
formation of the banking group.

T

S
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Mr. STEVENS: No, but in saying that I would have to say also that I do not
think we are at that point at which there would be any opposition. Purposely
we have not gone in and tried to win away any personnel from an existing bank
because it would put them in a very embarrassing spot.

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): What about York Trust? Have you had any
friction with any banks in regard to employees engaged in York Trust?

Mr. STEVENS: No. While generally speaking any institution does not like to
lose a good employee, they accept the fact that people do change their
employment. If they prefer to work with us, there seems to be no strenuous
objection. We have had some rather amusing incidents where people have come
in and said they are going to be employed with us, and then the bank offers
them a new position with a salary increase, and everyone ends up happy. The
bank is happy and the employee is happy, but I guess we are not too happy
because we have lost a man we thought was a good fellow.

Mr. MAacpoNALD (Rosedale): Have you had preliminary discussions with the
Canadian Bankers’ Association?

Mr. CoyNE: No.

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): You have had no discussion about clearing
rights or clearing agreements?

Mr. CoyNE: No, but that would be premature; obviously we cannot presume

on that. Of course, under the Bank Act every chartered bank is automatically a
member of the Canadian Bankers’ Association.

Mr. MAacpoNALD (Rosedale): You mean under the Canadian Bankers’ Asso-
ciation Act?

Mr. CoyNE: No, under the Association itself. Perhaps you are right; perhaps
it is under the Act. However, it does follow under law.

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): Have you had discussions with any representa-
tives of chartered banks with respect to entering into agreements in regard to
service charges, personnel, or anything?

Mr. CoyNE: No.

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): Is it a fact that chartered banks have agree-
ments among themselves or through the Association to accept rates or establish
policy of personnel?

Mr. CoynE: I do not have much direct knowledge of that and will not have
until two or three months have elapsed.

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): Is that a completely foreign concept to your
ears? ]

Mr. CoyNE: No. There was an interesting development there though. We
hear a lot nowadays about how subsidiaries in Canada of United States
companies are required by United States law to do things that otherwise they
might not do, mainly because they are Canadians. I believe it has been said that
when the Mercantile Bank came under the ownership of a United States bank
they declared that they could not, because of United States law, become a party
to any agreement under Canadian acts.

Mr. MAcpONALD (Rosedale): The Sherman act extends to services as well?

Mr. CoynNE: Yes.
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Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): In that connection do you foresee in the early
days of the bank the establishment of an agency in New York or any other
city, such as the chartered banks have now?

Mr. CoynNE: You mean outside Canada?
Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): Yes, I mean outside Canada.

Mr. CoyNE: We might have to have one in New York and possibly one in
London, but not right away even for foreign exchange dealings. I believe there
is adequate provision for foreign exchange dealings in Canada. The dealings in
the foreign exchange market are largely in Montreal and Toronto, and the
dealings in government securities are largely in Montreal and Toronto. There-
fore we would have to have an office in Montreal and Toronto, and probably in
Ottawa for the government securities.

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): To carry on effective banking business you
would not require a New York agency?

Mr. CoyNE: I will take that under advisement. I do not know enough about
it to answer now, but we will find out when we come into the foreign exchange
field and service to exporters, and things like that.

e (4:35 pm.)

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): Just as a matter of interest, in any such
planning which you have carried forward to this date have you had associated
with you any personnel with actual chartered bank experience as opposed to
your own and central banking experience?

Mr. CoyNE: Yes, we have, but I would not want to give you names or to go
into the details or anything of this sort at the present time.

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): At page 378 of the Porter Commission
report there is this statement:

Thus, in our view the federal banking legislation must cover all
private financial institutions issuing banking liabilities; that is,
claims which serve as means of payment or close substitutes for
them. With certain exceptions to be noted below, it should cover
those financial intermediaries issuing claims which may be trans-
ferred immediately or on short notice by cheques or on customers’
orders.

Probably this question would be more appropriately directed to Mr.
Stevens. Mr. Stevens would you regard York Trust as being included in
those two sentences?

Mr. STEVENS: Yes.

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): What view would you take as the spokesman
for related institutions of the incorporation of York Trust and others under the
banking legislation?

Mr. STeVENS: I think at the time that the proposal was first raised we went
on record as saying we would be interested in applying for such licensing, if I
am using the correct word, to allow us to become part of the general banking
fibre of the nation.

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): Have you taken legal opinions as to the
possibility of extending federal jurisdiction over—
23648—4



50 FINANCE, TRADE AND ECONOMIC AFFAIRS  March 1, 1966

The CHAIRMAN: If I may interrupt, Mr. Macdonald, I think in all fairness to
other members whom I have interrupted when they have gone in a way which I
considered a bit too far afield from the subject matter of the bill that perhaps I
should extend the same stricture to yourself?

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): Well, Mr. Chairman, it seems to me we have a
bank to be incorporated under the Bank Act and it is relevant to the future of
this company to know whether it is going to be directly under the same
legislation as the other companies in the corporate group.

Mr. CoyNE: If I may say something at this stage, the Porter Commission
suggested that all companies performing banking functions should be subject to
federal legislation, and I agree with that. But, they also contemplate there
would be more chartered banks created notwithstanding the fact that other
institutions would also have banking powers. Members of the government, as
well as others, seem to be in favour of the general idea that there ought to be
more chartered banks created. But, the other matter of bringing non-banks
under federal jurisdiction has been opposed by some of the non-banks and
rejected by the government in the drafting of the Bank Act revisions. From our
point of view it is pretty academic.

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): You have intimated that it is a matter of
indifference to you whether or not York Trust comes in under the federal
legislation.

Mr. CoyNE: We certainly have no objection to it.

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): Have you taken any legal opinions as to the
validity of extending federal legislation to a provincial loan company?

Mr. CoyNE: That is getting into our own private affairs and I would rather
not answer that question, if you do not mind.

Mr. STEVENS: We are not that far advanced.

Mr. MAacpoNALD (Rosedale): As a graduate member of very rare vintage
from Osgoode Hall, have you formed your own personal opinion in respect of
this matter?

Mr. STEVENS: No.

Mr. MacpoNALD(Rosedale): Do you have any views with regard to competi-
tion in the Canadian chartered banking field vis-a-vis the American banks and,
more particularly, in connection with their earnings on invested capital.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Macdonald, I wonder—and, I am in the hands of the
committee—if we are not getting into a matter which we will have an opportuni-
ty to discuss in greater detail when the amendments to the Bank Act are
discussed. Perhaps these gentlemen may want to come back and visit us at that
time.

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): Surely we are getting into the question of
whether or not the addition of another chartered bank will be valuable from the
point of competition in the Canadian banking field, and I think this is
fundamental.

The CHAIRMAN: Then, will you phrase your question in a way which shows
some link to the order of reference.

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): In your consideration of launching an applica-
tion for a Canadian chartered bank had you considered the competitive
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character of the other Canadian chartered banks by way of comparison with,
say, United States institutions through earnings on investment capital?

Mr. STEVENS: Yes, and I think some of the members of the committee may
have noticed that I made a speech for the Society of Analysts in Toronto when I
touched on that general subject. I would not want to emphasize it although I
think it is fair to say that our type of banking system is a relatively costly
system and that if you do compare it with certain American banking institu-
tions, which I think are comparable, for instance, the Bank of America, which is
an extensive branch banking concern, you will find that the overhead—and I am
referring to the overhead in most banking concerns—is mainly made up of
salaries of executives and more junior personnel. You will find that the
overhead of Canadian banks is somewhat higher than comparable American
banks, and this has a necessary result on the net earnings of the Canadian
banks. »

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): Do you feel that you will be able to plan in
such a way that you will be able to lower salary overhead, on a percentage
basis, to a greater degree than your competitors. Is this one of the things that
motivated you?

Mr. STEVENS: We feel that to some degree it is not necessary to branch in
the same sense that the Canadian banks have been prone to do, and to some
degree we could have branches which would have a few more senior personnel
in them; they would be larger in scope, and in that way the cost of the branch in
reference to the total volume of business which the branch is performing would
be lower than you would generally find certainly in the smaller Canadian bank
branches.

Mr. MAacpoNALD (Rosedale): And, as I observed, you remarked at the time
that the Canadian bank gross money spread was in approximately the 3% per
cent range.

Mr. STEVENS: Yes.

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): Do you feel with the lower overhead you could
reduce that spread and, therefore, operate at a lower cost?

Mr. STeEVENS: We feel there is some room there to minimize costs and,
consequently, either pay higher earnings or pay more for your money.

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): And, it was for this reason you felt you could
live with a 6 per cent ceiling.

e (4:45 p.m.)

Mr. STEVENS: In dealing with the 6 per cent ceiling, the newspapers
referred to the fact that I said I did not feel it was necessary to raise the 6 per
cent ceiling; but what I actually said was that the 6 per cent ceiling in the
present Bank Act, as the Bank Act is now interpreted, is something that we can
live with. But, I would put stress on the fact, as now interpreted, in that in
several ways the existing banks do charge an effective rate of interest higher
than 6 per cent, the most notable of which are consumer loans, where the figure
is something over 11 per cent in some cases.

Mr. MoRrE (Regina City): You will be engaging in that business as well.
Mr. STEVENS: Yes.

Mr. MAcpoNALD (Rosedale): I have some questions in respect of foreign
ownership but I will hold these until we reach clause 5.
23648—43
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The CHAIRMAN: Yes, there will be an opportunity at that time for discus-
sion and questioning with regard to that point. I understand the principal
witnesses and their parliamentary agent will be here for clause by clause
discussion.

I now will recognize Mr. Lambert.

Mr. LAMBERT: Mr. Chairman, I would like to follow the discussions initiated
by Mr. Macdonald and others with respect to competition and so on, and I am
wondering, Mr. Stevens, about your observation that some of the American
banks may have somewhat of a lower overhead; in other words, that the
overhead costs per se, loaned dollar, or whatever index you want to use, would
be lower, and that this is attribuable to their higher volume of business.

I also put it to you that some of the chartered banks—and I think this would
be one if it was in business—would also come to recognize that a part of the
service of a chartered bank is a public service and because of competition they
feel they must branch out. We have evidence here of the number of branches
that have been opened since the end of the war. Perhaps we might interpret
your remarks as you saying: “we will work where there is a lot of cream and
leave the skim milk to the others”; in other words there is a certain reluctance
on your part to work in the vineyard under the noon day sun. Perhaps a lot of
the chartered banks would like to operate in other ways but because it gives
public service this is part of the cost of doing business as a chartered bank. I
know this is a problem that you will not face, to start with.

In regard to competition I was interested in going back to some of the
quotations you gave, particularly from the Porter Report. I found that the
interpretation of the word “competition” was somewhat selective, not meaning
necessarily competition between chartered banks. May I take the one par-
ticularly referred to at page 563 where, under a competitive banking system we
see that the commission referred to trust, loan and other companies coming
under the banking legislation to compete for commercial and personal lending
business. I quote:

We have, however, recommended that all banking institutions be
required to maintain uniform cash reserve ratios against their short-term
liabilities, the ratio being lower against genuine notice claims than
against demand obligations.

Also, reference has been made to the banks being permitted to enter the
mortgage field, all this making for competition, to which they refer, and not
excluding more chartered banking. But, I would not give it that rather
exclusive meaning that you tended to give it in your citations. Mr. McLaughlin’s
message comes through loud and clear in respect of lifting the ceiling, and so
on. Now, dealing with competition and the need for additional banking facilities
in western Canada, do you maintain that this is a regional bank and that your
funds will be raised by deposit or that a proportion of the funds will be raised
by deposits from where you operate? I am subject to correction but it seems to
me that western Canada is a deficiency area in regard to capital. Now, if that is
so, then the deposits that the Bank of Western Canada would gather unto itself
would be either at the expense of other banks or of the trustee loan companies
which are proliferating across western Canada at the present time, including
your own affiliated companies. Therefore, it does not provide additional credit
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facilities for people in western Canada. It may provide some option but nothing
additional unless your flow of funds are from eastern Canada into western
Canada. Is it envisaged you will be able to tap sources of funds in eastern
Canada in order to put them into western Canada to give additional credit
facilities.

Mr. STEVENS: Generally speaking, I think what you say is quite correct in
that if we are going to depend on deposit business in western Canada that
deposit business has to come from some deposit taking institution at the present
time, and in that sense it is a re-arrangement as to who holds the money.

When we speak about competition—and I hope I do not create any other
impression—we speak much in the context of the Porter Commission, and that is
competition in the true sense, with no private agreements or no rate structures
being observed, and competition among all institutions who are qualified to
compete. This would result in the possibility, if not the probability, of, firstly,
some funds from the east and, secondly, our bank in Winnipeg which, in turn,
would be routing funds from the east into that area of western Canada. I can
give you what I regard as an interesting example of what happens when banks
break their agreement. When we raised our money in the Bank of Western
Canada over two years ago the trustee in consultation with the provisional
directors decided to put the money with only chartered banks in Canada. The
money has been with these chartered banks exclusively since we received it.

Now, initially, the agreement among the banks was that, for example, on a
30 day placement of these funds they would pay you 4} per cent. Now this, you
will find, was uniformly observed, and with regard to all the banks in Canada
you would find the exact same 4} per cent. After the Porter Commission Report
came out and especially when the Bank Act was under consideration last year,
we found that the Mercantile Bank of Canada and the two French banks, the
Provincial Bank and the Canadian National, started to break its rate agreement.
I spoke to one of the officers of the Canadian National Bank and asked him if
they were doing it deliberately and he said they were doing it in the sense that
they felt they were getting into the competitive field. As a result, you find that
today the money we have out is still held in trust but on deposit with these
chartered banks. You will note that the high point got up to 5.97 per cent, and
this in spite of the fact that certain of the banks are still observing the rate
agreement and are quoting 4} per cent on the same money.

Mr. LAMBERT: I do not know which charter bank is still adhering to that
agreement but I was going to refer to this. Is there not any rationalization in
that they are competing with the major trust companies who are prepared to
give one quarter of one per cent. They will meet any offer of any chartered
bank because with this kind of money, this kind of short-term or medium-term
money, they can turn around and they have no limit on the interest rate they
can charge.

Mr. STEVENS: But, they have the limit of the market place.
Mr. LAMBERT: Yes, but this is competition.

Mr. CoyNE: But, they can only make approved investments under the act
under which they operate; they can only make first mortgage investments. They
cannot make second mortgage investments, so there is an effective limit.
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® (4:55 p.m.)
Mr. LAMBERT: Granted, but it is fairly competitive.

Mr. CoyNE: May I just say also that in point of fact we have seen, during
the last twelve months, a situation in which the banks quite frequently outbid
the trust companies for short-term money and the banks increased their
deposits of this character, the term deposits and corporation deposits bearing
interest by very large amounts, $700 or $800 million in 1965.

Mr. LAMBERT: Thank goodness there is competition.

Mr. CoyNE: They were protesting that they could not afford to do it «but
they did do it. The banks have many advantages which the trust companies do
not have.

- Mr. LamBeRT: Still, as to the source of funds, one of the almost exclusive
avenues that the Bank of Western Canada would have of raising funds in
eastern Canada for use in western Canada is actually obtaining some of these
term deposits.

Mr. CoyNE: I myself do not see that as a probability on any large scale.
There may well be something that has to be worked out in the future. The
banks themselves may say that they lend money in western Canada more than
they take in there; they have never given a breakdown of their deposits or
loans geographically. My impression is quite the contrary. I am quite sure in my
own mind that the provinces, other than Ontario and Quebec, provide sums for
bank loans in Ontario and Quebec. It is true that these other areas are deficient
capital areas even more so than Ontario and Quebec but they do not get that
capital in the form of bank loans, as far as I understand the situation; they get
it through the capital market, through mining companies, paper companies and
elevator companies raising equity capital or debenture capital in the capital
market and investing in their undertakings in these other provinces. However, I
will be convinced in my own mind, until banks provide evidence to the
contrary, that the volume of bank deposits in western Canada is substantially
greater than the volume of bank loans in western Canada.

Mr. LAMBERT: I am subject to correction but I know this varies with banks
in cities, that certain banks within a city will be known as real saver banks and
others will be quite the contrary.

Mr. HorNER (Acadia): I wonder whether we could not have the Inspector
General comment on that to see whether or not he can add anything to what
Mr. Coyne has said with regard to whether or not western Canada is a surplus
or a deficit area.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Horner, it is my intention to ask the committee to hear
Mr. Elderkin as a witness on his own once we complete our questioning of these
two witnesses before us now.

Mr. LAMBERT: I have two questions left. On March 18, 1964, when this
application was first before the Senate committee, Mr. Elderkin indicated that
at that time there were almost 6,500 branches in Canada, which was almost
double the number that there was at the end of 1945, and that there was
roughly one branch office for every 3,300 persons in the country. This was a far
greater number than the corresponding figure for either the United States or
the United Kingdom. Does this not take into account in the province of Alberta
a peculiar institution which exists there known as the treasury branches which
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are nothing but undisguised branch services carrying on every activity of a
chartered bank? Is it felt that there is a deficiency of banking services on the
prairies?

Mr. STEVENS: Are you relating banking services to branches?

Mr. LAMBERT: To the treasury branches. I will not mention credit unions
and loan companies which are offering limited bank shares.

Mr. STEVENS: We are not suggesting that. We are saying we can see no good
reason why the expansion should be restricted to the existing chartered banks,
and there have been, as I mentioned, 277 branches brought into existence in
1963.

The CHAIRMAN: Before we proceed to the next member on my list perhaps
it might be convenient to break for a moment and take up the question of our
proceedings for the balance of the day. We had Mr. Elderkin, the Inspector of
Banks, with us throughout the day, and I see it is 5 o’clock. I do not know if it
is the usual procedure to ask officials to stay on past what might be considered
to be the usual hour for these officials. Perhaps this should be taken under
consideration. Secondly, we may want to consider whether we want to sit this
evening, and I thought it would be a convenient moment to invite some
expression of opinion.

Mr. MoNTEITH: Mr. Chairman, actually it is not vital that I be here but I
would like to be here because I am interested. It certainly seems to me that we
are not going to get on to a discussion of the various companies that make up
the group that are really instigating this bank. Unfortunately I cannot be here
this evening. I can sit here until 6 o’clock or very shortly afterwards. However,
that is my own personal position.

The CHAIRMAN: I will say this. I have on my list for the first round—and
there may be others who have not given me an indication of their wish to
speak—Messrs. Stafford, Comtois, Coates, Clermont, Basford and More. It may
appear unlikely that we will complete our questioning of the principal wit-
nesses, the protagonists of the bill, by six o’clock. It may even be unlikely we
will complete our questioning if we proceed this evening. What I am driving at
is that it is unlikely we will get into a clause by clause discussion of the bill
today in any event. If that is the case, the committee may feel that in so far as
the Inspector of Banks is concerned, unless he wants to remain to hear the
discussion so as to permit him to answer questions more easily when his turn
comes, that aspect may not be reached in any event.

Mr. MonTEITH: I think it might be suggested to Mr. Elderkin that he does
not have to stay unless he feels like it because we will not get to him today.

The CHAIRMAN: He has not been summoned here by officials of this
committee so he is permitted to use his own judgment on whether or not it will
assist him to hear the balance of this discussion.

Mr. MoONTEITH: Another thing we might bring up at this moment is whether
we should consider having any officials of the Bankers Association before us, or
are they going to be notified? I believe that at the time of the Senate hearings
they were notified that the Senate would be happy to hear them but I do not
think there was any response, if I recall correctly. Am I right?

Mr. CoyNE: That is right.
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Mr. MonTIETH: I wonder if they should at least be given the opportunity.

The CHAIRMAN: A representative of The Canadian Bankers Association was
in the audience as an observer this morning. I had a word with him as a
courtesy and he did not indicate to me any interest in having anyone appear,
but I think we could state that obviously anyone in that capacity would be
welcome.

Mr. Basrorp: The bankers are free enterprisers; they believe in more
competition.

Mr. CoaTES: There are some pretty important estimates before the House,
and I may say that I did not know that this committee was going to meet this
afternoon. I came into the House shortly after the question period had started
and I was not informed that the committee was meeting. There are estimates
before the House know in which I am interested so I hope we will not be sitting
tonight.

The CHAIRMAN: I am in the hands of the committee.
Mr. MoNTEITH: Why not sit here and see how far we get by six o’clock?

The CHAIRMAN: The only reason I raised this question is that our permis-
sion to sit while the House is sitting is only for today, and if it comes to the
question of scheduling our further meetings, say our next meeting which could
be on Thursday, we could only meet from some point in the morning until the
House sits at which time we will have to ask for further permission.

® (5:05 p.m.)
Mr. MonTEITH: I think that would be a good time for a fresh start on the

chart of the various companies and deal with that at that time, or at least start
with that.

The CHAIRMAN: Let us proceed until six o’clock and we will see what
happens at that time.

I think Mr. Lambert is coming back; he was checking on the progress of
work in the House.

Mr. LAMBERT: I think it would be chancy to schedule anything for the
evening.

The CHAIRMAN: Let us resume our questioning and we will determine the
next sitting at six o’clock.

Mr. STAFFORD: I just want to ask Mr. Stevens if he or any one of his group
had any substantial interest in any consumer finance companies.

Mr. STEVENS: We have a company called Simcoe. There are actually three
companies but they operate together. There is Scarboro and Simcoe. This is a
consumer finance company which acts almost completely as a supplemental
activity to our main activities which are the trust and loan activities which have
been referred to. By supplemental I mean that they do not have branches
themselves and they are not dealing with the public in that sense, but we have
people who will say that they want a personal loan and, as Mr. Coyne has
mentioned, we, as a trust company, cannot make an unsecured loan to a person.
We therefore refer to the consumer finance company in our group. However,
outside of that we have no contact with consumer finance companies. I would
point out that the rates that we charge are deliberately set by us at the same
level as those charged by the chartered banks. In other words, we use the same
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procedure in charging that they do. The total amount we would have out in
consumer finance credit in our entire group would be approximately a million
dollars at the present time, and our total assets are about $135 million.

Mr. STAFFORD: You still loan money out the same as other finance compa-
nies do on automobiles, furniture and so on? :

Mr. STEVENS: I would prefer to say, because of our rate structure, the same
as other banks in the sense that we charge the same rates that, say, the Bank of
Nova Scotia charges, if you want a parallel.

Mr. STAFFORD: But not the ordinary bank interest. You mean an interest of
about 12 per cent?

Mr. STEVENS: That is right; it works out to something over 11 per cent.

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): Is Scarboro Finance registered under the Small
Loans Act?

Mr. STEVENS: No.

Mr. STAFFORD: Would there not be a slight conflict of interest there, that is
a finance company of that particular type having also an interest in a bank?

Mr. STEVENS: I would think that it is unlikely that there would be a direct
conflict of interests.

Mr. STAFFORD: Do you not find that as you are dealing with an operation on
such a large scale it is a disadvantage to commence in such a limited and
regional way as you intend to do?

Mr. STEVENS: When we say regional I think the point should be made that
in effect any bank is regional when it begins. We want our head office in
Winnipeg, as has been stated. We feel that we can branch out throughout
western Canada, but we are not saying that we would not, at some future date,
have branches right across Canada. What we are saying is that you have to
decide to start some place and that it would be inadvisable, in all likelihood, to
propose to have branches from Halifax right through to Vancouver. From an
administrative standpoint it would create problems which would be unneces-
sary.

Mr. StarroRrD: I have a couple of more questions, going back to the fact
that you said that two per cent of the holders wanted to sell their certificates or
turn them in. This morning you started off by saying they purchased them for
$14.50. If they can be sold on the open market for $16.50 why would anyone
want to turn them in for $14.50?

Mr. STEVENS: We were talking about two things: the reference to the $14.50
related to the fact that the regional Bank of Western Canada certificates were
sold for $15 and subsequently they sold around $16. At a meeting of those
holders we received their unanimous approval for the extension. The two per
cent dissension was when the Wellington trustee holders were asked to extend
for a further year and two per cent of those people said they preferred to have
their money back.

Mr. More: Was their investment in Wellington?

Mr. STEVENS: Yes.
Mr. CoaTEs: I have two questions. The first one I would like to direct to

Mr. Coyne because it is one that has given me some concern and I would like to
have his views on it. I have mentioned this in the House as well. We have, or
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are about to have, the Bank Act before us and amendments to it. I wonder if we
are not putting the cart before the horse in considering this bill now even
though it has already been before the House, when, in a very short while, we
are going to consider the Bank Act and policies relating to banking generally.
We are then going to know just exactly what the definite policy is with regard
to banking and the proliferation of banking institutions in the country. I would
like to know whether you believe that it might be better to have this bill
considered after we have studied the amendments to the Bank Act and if there
would not be some advantage to us as members of parliament to have the Bank
Act before us before a decision is made on whether or not another banking
institution should be established in their country.

Mr. CoyNE: That is a matter we have considered. Our feeling on the point
of principle was that we did not see any conflict or any reason why an
application for a charter under the existing Bank Act should be held up until
the new Bank Act is passed. You might also say that all the other banks are
going to have their charters expire but in the meantime they are going on with
their operations under the old act. We think we could be set up and get our
operations started under the old act. No suggestion has been made anywhere
about possible changes in the Bank Act causing us any embarrassment. This
question came up in our inquiry in the Senate. That was two years ago and still
there is no revision of the Bank Act. We do not feel we should have to wait
much longer if we are going to have this bank at all, and it is really pretty hard
on our shareholders to have to exist in this state of suspense.

By way of a precedent, the same question was raised at the time of the
application for the Mercantile Bank Charter in 1953 and Mr. Graham Towers,
amongst others, said he saw no point in waiting for that reason. He could not
see why the charter should wait for a revision of the Bank Act, and if
amendments were made, the bank would have to live with them, so the
Mercantile Bank was given its charter in 1953. I would hope that this committee
would be willing, in view of all the circumstances and the long time we have
waited for this, to try and go ahead with it now.

Mr. CoaTES: While I appreciate your answer and the reason you gave, the
thing that concerns me, and I am sure concerns other members sitting on this
committee and members in the House—for it is the House which decides whether
or not you should be allowed to set up your banking institution—is whether you
think that this committee can be fully appreciative of all the aspects of what is
to transpire when we do not know exactly what is going to be incorporated in
the way of amendments to the Bank Act. We have heard mentioned here today
on numerous occasions the Porter Report and the recommendations contained in
it. We have heard a good deal of discussion about the 6 percent interest ceiling,
but we are not in a position to know whether or not the government is going to
propose these things be done or whether or not parliament in fact is going to
approve the recommendations for amendments to the Bank Act when the Bank
Act in fact is approved. In the light of this do you still feel that the committee
should be considering this bill at the present time?

Mr. CoyNE: If you ask for my opinion I would say yes, I do, because, for
one thing, I have not heard any suggestion from any quarter that the Bank Act
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should be revised in such a way as to discourage the incorporation of more
banks. If anything, the talk from all quarters has been that there is a desire to
encourage incorporations.

® (5:15 pm.)

Mr. CoaTES: My next question, Mr. Stevens, relates to your statements with
regard to the 277 new branches. What I would like to know is the difference
there will be in banking in this country if your charter is granted in view of the
fact that, as you state, the present eight banking institutions seem to be moving
in the areas that need new branch banking institutions. What value is there in
Parliament approving another charter?

Mr. SteveNns: I think that has possibly been partly answered, in our
discussion Mr. Coates, especially touching on what Mr. Lambert had to say in
the question he put to me.

We feel that the one advantage will be that a competitive financial system
is generally good for the country. Where you have true competition, where there
are no agreements or understandings, or those kinds of arrangements, you have
a more competitive system; and I think the Porter Commission is advocating a
true competitive system for the country. One of the things that will contribute
to that type of financial system is more participants in the banking field in that
at the present time the three largest banks dominate the entire industry and
have about 70 per cent of the total assets of the system.

We are suggesting that they in their own way are providing a good service.
Surely, however, that does not mean that the service should be restricted one
can almost say to three with regard to 70 per cent of the system, but certainly
to eight banks for 100 per cent of the system.

It is interesting to note that the life insurance industry, for example, is one
in which I think Canada has a world-wide good reputation as to solidity and the
type of companies we operate. In this instance there have been new life
companies formed and put into operation since the end of the war. I think I
have the figures here on that with regard to the federal companies.

At the end of the war there were 28 life companies that are known as
Canadian companies in the sense that they are under federal jurisdiction. In
1964 there were 39 such companies. In other words, 11 new companies have been
created and are in operation. We feel that this is good. It is not that there will
be any radical departure through the incorporation of the Bank of Western
Canada; it is just that we feel a trend should be encouraged to create more
banks in Canada and that nine banks would be better than eight. The question
was raised this morining, “Where do you stop?” That is difficult to say.
gertainly I would say there is no reason why there could not be 15 banks in

anada.

‘ Mr. CoaTEs: I believe you made some statement to the effect that the three
major banks have held about 70 per cent of the nation’s business for some great
number of years.

Mr. STEVENS: For 40 years.

Mr. CoATes: Just what effect do you feel your bank will have on the
percentages? This is really pretty important because if you are not going to have
any effect on it, what value is there in Parliament setting up more banks?
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Mr. STEVENS: We certainly could not anticipate having any drastic effect,
such as that figure suddenly falling to 60 per cent; but I think what we can
suggest is that the incorporation of our bank will create a trend. I would hope it
would probably trigger the incorporation of further banks. In fact, the two
applications that were proposed give an indication that if it is shown it is
possible to form new banks in Canada there will probably be more banks
applied for. This trend will be good. If it should change say 5 per cent of the
total banking system, in that the new bank will end up with collectively 5 per
cent of the system, I think we will find we have a better system.

The fact that we are able to get tenders and I think the gentlemen at that
end of the table are aware of this fact—from the two French banks and the
Mercantile Bank at a better level than some of the other banks, I think is good;
it shows the market place is in operation.

Mr. CoaTES: Another thing that concerns me is that in recent years there has
been a trend towards some of the smaller banks—and they are quite substantial,
a good deal more substantial than yours is at this time— have found it necessary
to merge in order to stay in business in a competitive way, and yet we are being
asked now to approve another charter which may very well lead to your
deciding in a very few years that you have to negotiate a merger.

Mr. CoyNE: I do not think the recent mergers were imposed by necessity,
because the banks could exist in competition. I do not know what were the
precise reasons or motivations, but there was no indication at the time that the
Toronto or Dominion Bank could not continue to operate.

Mr. CoatTes: But they felt they could better survive in competition by
merging, otherwise they would not have merged.

Mr. CoyNE: We do not know why they wanted to merge or what were the
views of the directors. They may have felt they would make more money if
they merged.

Mr. CoATEs: I am sure that would be the incentive.

Mr. CoynNE: Some may have got tired of carrying on the business them-
selves and wanted some other fellow to carry on for them. There could be a lot
of reasons other than sheer necessity.
® (5:20 p.m.)

Mr. STEVENS: It certainly was not unanimous in the opinion of the directors.

There is another thing, Mr. Coates. Our banking system in Canada since the
war has changed drastically, and this has been speeded up in the last ten years
to a great degree. It is a system today because it is a more retail banking system
as opposed to a wholesale banking system that can successfully have smaller
banks participating.

The CHAIRMAN: Le prochain sur ma liste est Monsieur Comtois.

Mr. Comrtois: I have a question for Mr. Stevens.

Mr. Stevens, you stated this morning that there were over 5,000 persons who
actually control a block of 430,000 shares. There is another block of shares that
you control, and as I can see they are the majority. You control the majority of
shares in the second block. How many persons does that second block
represent?

Mr. STEVENS: What might be helpful, Mr. Comtois, is a chart that has been
prepared. At this morning’s session it was suggested we might prepare some

|
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kind of chart to show how these companies fit together. In the luncheon
adjournment we made photostats of a chart which is taken out of the centre
page of our British International Annual Report for 1964. If the Chairman
wishes, we can circulate these charts now and with the aid of those charts I
think I can describe just how these companies fit together.

The CHAIRMAN: I think this will be a convenient time to have the charts
distributed, and I will ask the clerk to assist in that operation.

Mr. MoNTEITH: It occurs to me that we may be some little time on that. I
would just suggest for your consideration the possibility of clearing up any
general questions first and then starting on this topic on Thursday morning.

The CHAIRMAN: The procedure we have been following today has been to
call on members to ask questions on any general aspect they wished to discuss
in the order in which their names appeared on the list. I do not think we are
proceeding by way of topics. We have come to this topic now because Mr.
Comtois wished to raise it.

Mr. ComTors: My question was how many persons are represented by those
companies. My question was as to the effective control of those companies. Are
there ten or 100 or 500, disregarding the number of companies? How many
persons control those companies?

Mr. STeEVENS: I think the charts have been distributed now and if I may
refer to them I would point out that the relative companies are those on the left
hand side of the page. Starting at the top we have British International Finance.
That is the central company in our group, and the group assets that are now
combined under that company are approximately $130 million to $135 million.
The $90 million that we show here is at the end of the last year, 1964. Starting
from that point, we have two arms that have some relevance to the Bank of
Western Canada; one is the Wellington Financial Corporation of which we are
shown here as owning 62 per cent and which, as Mr. Macdonald mentioned, will
become less than a 51 per cent controlled company when further shares are
issued in Wellington to give effect to the participation in the Bank of Western
Canada. That is one arm.

The second arm is Canadian Finance Investments. Here again we have a
company which is, as you can see, 40 per cent controlled. The 40 per cent to
which we refer there is a voting control. As far as equity is concerned, we hold
a comparatively small amount of the actual equity of Canadian Finance. The
bulk of the money in Canadian Finance is held by the 2,600 people that I
mentioned this morning.

Just to try to bring it into perspective, those two arms in turn will own 17
per cent and 32 of the Bank of Western Canada. That added up is 49 per cent.
York Trust, which I mentioned earlier, is shown in a lower line. That will own
$495,000, which I think is about three percent.

If you add up those you come to approximately 50 per cent to 51 per cent—
Mr. HORNER (Acadia): Absolute control.

Mr. STEVENS: As I say, you come to approximately 50 to 51 per cent of the
Bank of Western Canada.

The other companies that were mentioned today are, for example, the Fort
Garry Trust Company, which is shown immediately under Canadian Finance.
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That is controlled by Canadian Finance. Alberta Fidelity should now be added
as we consummated that deal in 1965, and that should be shown under
Canadian Finance. That is a 30 per cent ownership. The York Trust Company,
which is also referred to, and The Lambton Loan you will see on the bottom
line as having a 52 per cent ownership and a 51 per cent ownership. Those in
turn are held by the Wellington Financial Corporation.

Mr. Comrois: You cannot give us the number of persons in British
International Finance actually controlling that one?

e (5:30 pm.)

Mr. STEVENS: Yes. I wanted to give that understructure. Let me now come
up to British International. There are two classes of shares in British Interna-
tional, one being Class “A” shares which are listed on the Toronto Exchange and
are entitled to one vote per share, the other class being common shares, which
are entitled to ten votes per share and which are more tightly held. Now, the
total number of shares out at the end of 1964 in those two categories were
460,538, class A shares; I am speaking about British International here. The
common shares outstanding were 76,905. The number of people that hold those
two classes were 1,419.

Mr. Basrorb: Is that class A?

Mr. STEVENS: And common.

Mr. Comrtolis: Both.

Mr. LarLaAMME: Were they of American or Canadian citizenship?

Mr. STEVENS: I see we have eight shareholders listed as holding 2,000 shares
who are non-resident in Canada, and I cannot tell you who that block is.

Mr. ComrTo1s: Do you mean 2,000 shares each or altogether?

Mr. STEVENS: No, as a whole.

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): How much of that 2,000 is common?

Mr. STeVENS: I can check that. There are none.

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): They are all class A.

Mr. STEVENS: All class A. Of course, that is out of the total that I have
given you, which is 460,000 some odd plus 76,000.

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): But that 76,000 is multiplied by 10.

Mr. MoRe (Regina City): How many common are there?

Mr. STEVENS: I would estimate about 30 to 40. Now, if you like, I can give
you quickly the breakdown of the major holders of the common. The first is
Bansco and Company, the nominee for the Bank of Nova Scotia and when I say
nominee I do not want to suggest it is the Bank of Nova Scotia, but the bank is
holding the shares on someone’s behalf. There are 3,086 registered in that name.

Mr. Comro1s: And, that is all common?

Mr. STEVENS: Yes. There are 2,250 registered in the name of Mary Ann
Hassard, and 1,200 in the name of Mary Charlebois. I would mention that Mrs.
Charlebois is my mother-in-law.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): Well, you might as well.
Mr. LEBOE: How many shares was that?
Mr. STEVENS: It was 1,200.
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Mr. MONTEITH: And, those are all common you are listing?

Mr. STEVENS: Yes, I am referring to common here, in that the class A are
very widely held; I do not think there are any significant blocks. Now, Peter
Charlebois holds 1,050 and, again, he is a relative, a brother-in-law of mine.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Stevens, to assist the committee would you tell us from
what document you are quoting.

Mr. STEVENS: Yes. This is a list of these common shareholders which was
given at the Senate hearings and it appears in the proceedings of the Senate
standing committee on Banking and Commerce, Wednesday, May 6, 1964, at
page 102. What I am doing is making any necessary changes to bring it up to
date. Then, there is Phil Charlebois, and he is listed as having 1,807, He is my
father-in-law.

Mr. McLeaN (Charlotte): How many did you say he had?

Mr. STEVENS: He has 1,807. I am only stating the ones with 1,000 or more.
Then, there is Gill Construction, which has 4,074.

Mr. CoATEs: They have increased their investment.

Mr. STEVENS: Yes, by almost 1,800.

Mr. LEBOE: Do you have any interest in that company?

Mr. STEVENS: Yes, I have approximately a 27 per cent interest in that
company.

Mr. MoNTEITH: Do the Charlebois have any interest in that company?

Mr. STEVENS: No, they do not. Inverness Investments have 9,375 shares.

Mr. CoaTES: Do you have an interest in that company?

Mr. STEVENS: I have about a 30 per cent interest and, again, it is not
effective. There are two others with 30 per cent interests.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): No brothers-in-law.

Mr. STEVENS: No.

Mr. MonTEITH: Do Mr. Mollard or Mr. Bell have any investment in
Inverness?

Mr. STEVENS: No. The next is Jamelynn Holdings, and it has 7,500. That is
the personal holding company of a Mr. James Houston in Toronto, and he has
no other connection with the group other than this holding. Macron Holdings
should be deleted. That was a company which I had, I think you would say,
effective control of but they no longer have this block of company stock. My
wife, Noreen Stevens, has 5,250 of these common shares and I myself have
registered in my name 7,400.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): That is an increase?

Mr. STEVENS: Yes. Stevens Securities has registered 19,020.

Mr. CoaTEs: There is effective control there?

Mr. STEVENS: Effective control in the family. A company called Dice
Holdings is registered with 7,500 shares, and that is a holding company of
W.E.N. Bell. Incidentally, Dice comes from the first initials of his four boys, so it
has no significance. There are two other entries: Philip B. MacDonald, executive
vice-president of British International, has 3,333 shares, and Torbay, which is
the nominee company for the Toronto-Dominion Bank, has 2,000 shares regis-
tered. I am not sure who they hold those for, and like the Bank of Nova Scotia
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holding, the Bansco one, I can only tell you it has nothing to do with me
personally or, to the best of my knowledge, with all the other people who have
been mentioned.

Mr. ComTo1s: Those are all the questions I have for Mr. Stevens. I have
another question for Mr. Coyne. Do you believe, sir, that if under the new Bank
Act the near banks move into the banking business there will be still room for
more banks?

Mr. CoyYNE: Yes. Of course, we do not know to what extent they will move
into the banking business if the federal government makes it possible. Most of
them are under provincial charters and the provincial governments may not
give them the authority to go into these activities. But, even if they did the near
banks, all put together, are comparatively small compared to the banking
system, and I would think there still would be room for real chartered banks in
the future—and, when I say that, I am referring to new ones.

Mr. Comrto1s: I have another question for Mr. Stevens. You mentioned this
morning that there were 104 persons from the province of Quebec who are
shareholders. Are there any French Canadians represented in that group or is
there any French Canadian group or company in that figure of 104?

Mr. STEVENS: I am sorry but I cannot tell you that because I just do not
know. This could be checked and I can file that information with the Chairman,
if you would like it. I could mention that my in-laws certainly are French.

Mr. Comtois: Is your mother-in-law from Quebec?

Mr. STEVENS: No, from Penetanguishene but they originated in the 1600’s
from Quebec.

Mr. CoyNE: But, there are French Canadians in western Canada who are
shareholders of the bank and several at least signed the original petition; they
were in the group of 100.

Mr. Comtors: I have a further question. It was stated in some areas that
some branches of actual banks operated at a deficit. Do you not think that some
of these branches will close because of the new competition and by doing so this
will deprive some citizens of essential services in certain areas.

Mr. CoyNE: I must say I think that some branch banks should be closed
from time to time. Banks have closed branches and at least a few are doing it
every year. There was a period from 1930 to 1943 when the banks closed 1,000
branches in Canada.

I do not share the view that the banks open branches as a form of public
service or out of a sense of duty but only for strict business reasons, including
the reason mentioned by Mr. Lambert, for competitive purposes. A particular
branch may not make money but they think by having it there this will enable
the bank as a whole to make more money. I think it is possible and desirable
from time to time that some branch banks should be closed and others should be
opened.

Mr. ComToIS: So you think the banks are only there to make money?
Mr. CoYNE: Yes.

Mr. Comrois: And, not to render a public service to the citizens of the
country.

e
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o (5:40 p.m.)

Mr. CoyNE: They are to do that for a remuneration. Unless a bank operates
with a view to making money, the directors are guilty of breach of trust.

Mr. LAFLAMME: But at the same time do you not think that they should be
giving some service to the population as a whole?

Mr. CoyNE: In the same sense that the railways should, the grain elevator
companies should and the manufacturers and others, no doubt, should.

Mr. HorNER (Acadia): We hope you will do a better job than the C.P.!

I wonder if I might just speak on a point of order so it can be considered
between now and the next meeting. I think you have done a wonderful job as
Chairman but I want you to consider the fact of supplementary questions. I
have a number of them and I know you will rule me out of order so I am not
going to raise them now, but I want you to consider this method which you
have followed in the committee. I have no real objections to it, you have been
really fair with me, but the question as supplementary questions and the order
when they should come up should be considered by you, Mr. Chairman. I think
the committee proceedings would go along in a more interesting way if you
would allow supplementary questions.

Mr. CLERMONT: Mr. Chairman, on a point of order, at the next meeting I
hope you will change the order of members who are allowed to ask questions
because when you come to the end of the roll there are not many questions left
to ask.

The CHAIRMAN: Dealing first with Mr. Horner’s suggestion, I will be happy
to take that under advisement, and also I will be happy to consider Mr.
Clermont’s suggestion. Of course, this morning there was some criticism, I
gather, made rather facetiously.

Mr. CLERMONT: I do not think anybody is criticizing.

The CHAIRMAN: All I am suggesting is that this morning I had some
comments from the other side of the table regarding the order in which I call
the names of members wishing to ask questions. Now I have comments on this
side of the table so I feel I am taking the middle course.

- Mr. Coates: Could you also take under advisement the fact that members
of the committee now have had a chance to ask their initial questions which no
doubt were on their minds at the start of the meeting—

Mr. Moreg: I hope you are speaking for yourself.

Mr. CoaTEs: I will amend that to say that I hope when those members of
the committee who have not had an opportunity to question witnesses will have
had it, we will fall into the routine of supplementary questions on the other
aspects so that there will not be a prolonged questioning by one individual.

The CHAIRMAN: That is a constructive suggestion and I will bear that in
mind as well. However, perhaps I should let Mr. More continue with his
questions.

Mr. MoRE: My colleagues were very kind. I thought he would carry on until
six o’clock.

Mr. Chairman, I just have a couple of questions. In the former holdings,
Mr. Bell was listed as having 5,000 shares. Is that part of the 7,500 now held by
Dice or does he still have the 5,000?

23648—5
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Mr. STEVENS: That interest has gone over to Dice and the only increase
there is a stock split. I should also have mentioned that. You may have noticed
that certain of the holdings seem to have gone up. The main reason for that is
because of the 1} to 1 stock split.

Mr. MoRre: Mr. Mollard is listed as having 750 shares. Is that his complete
interest or is he interssted in some of the companies named? I understand his
holdings are larger than that.

Mr. STEVENS: That was something that came out during the Senate hearings
and the sequence was simply this: Senator McCutcheon asked me if I felt I
controlled British International Finance. I said I did not. He then said “You plus
who?” He also asked me whether I would add Bill Bell, and I said no. We got
into a discussion of effective and absolute control and he finally asked ‘“Whom
would you suggest should be mentioned?” I mentioned Bill Mollard who did
have a holding in Macron Holdings at that time. The reason I mention that was
that if Bill and myself voted together it would have been sufficient to control
Macron, which in turn would have given us, including Bill Bell’s holding, what
you would call effective control. However, that was the only reason that
Mollard’s name got involved.

Mr. More: But his holdings are 750 shares?

Mr. STEVENS: In his personal name. He also has a holding of 9 per cent in
Gill Construction.

Mr. MoRE: I am very interested in Mr. Coyne’s statement that you are going
to depend to a large extent on deposits. What I heard mentioned in regard to
banks was that when they did not have much competition they closed their
branches, up to 1955 or around that point. When they got competition they
opened branches not for service to the public but to gain deposits. My
understanding is that this was the purpose of these small branches, to gain
deposits. Do you feel you are going to be effective in gaining deposits if you are
going to have only a few large branches at the start?

Mr. CoyNE: Yes, I do, but we do not propose to stop there. We have said we
do not want to try to go too fast at the first. After we have found that our first
group of branches do gain deposits and are successful and we have loans and
investments growing and so on, then we will be in a position to open more
branches. What I was partly doing was drawing a distinction between what we
propose and what the two foreign owned banks which were granted charters in
1929 and 1953 set out to do. They started out with big connections with big
companies which could give them various kinds of business, including deposit
business of course. What I meant to draw by way of contrast was that we would
be going for the deposits of the general public just as, of course, most of our
banks do.

Mr. More: Can a bank designate an agent to accept deposits on their behalf
without opening a branch?

Mr. CoyNE: Apparently it is just a use of words, I think. It is a kind of
branch but they have certain separate branches or agencies. Sometimes you find
a bank’s branch or agency is only open for one hour on Wednesday afternoon.
There is a travelling cashier who is around. This is probably more common in
Quebec than in the rest of the country, but I have seen it in Ontario.

Mr. More: I have not seen them in the West.
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Mr. CoyNE: I am subject to correction on this. Mr. Elderkin would know
better than I do. You could have an agent almost anywhere to receive deposits
and pass them on to the bank.

Mr. More: Personally I have always felt that a combine exists among our
banks. They seem to take the same measures and reach the same agreements. It
is difficult to change banks. No other bank would accept you if you are doing
business with another branch.

~ Mr. CoyNE: That generally happens in periods of strong demands for loans,
but in periods of smaller demands for loans the banks are pretty competitive in
trying to steal each other’s customers.

Mr. LAMBERT: Whenever there is a general assignment of book debts you
are not going to get any changes either.

Mr. MoRE: You spoke about short-term money. Could you tell me why you
got this 5.9 percent, Mr. Stevens? Recently I noticed that the city of Regina got
5.76 percent for short-term money. It seems to be a competitive thing.

Mr. STEVENS: I was giving that as an indication of the fact that the
breaking of these agreements is instrumental in having the banks really
compete for money.

Mr. Mogre: I thought you said it started in Quebec.

Mr. STEVENS: No. The money that we held was originally put out at 4%
percent and you got a uniform price from the banks. Then the Mercantile Bank
started to bid higher than 4} percent. The two French banks followed and
started to increase their bids. This annoyed the other banks who said they
should not be breaking the agreement. On the other hand I think this is an
illustration of what happens if you do get a competitive force into this type of
market. Perhaps partly in line with one of the points you are making is that we
are not saying that branch banking is bad. What we are saying is that if you
have a truly competitive system where banks do not necessarily pay you the
same amount for your money or give you exactly the same service, you will find
that it is not the branch itself that necessarily dictates where the business will
go. On the other hand, the existing banks which are abiding by their agreement
and paying a uniform rate on deposits have very few competitive advantages
over each other, other than branching. In Toronto, for example, you get the
ridiculous position of finding that there are three branches of one chartered
bank within a block, and this, we suggest, is not necessary.

e (5:50 p.m.)

Mr. MoRe (Regina City): You are not going to quarrel with the way they
conduct their business!

The CHAIRMAN: Members of the Committee, it is about four minutes to six
o’clock and I gather it is the general consensus of the committee that we do not
sit this evening. If that is the case, I suggest we adjourn and, subject to other
supervening events, meet on Thursday morning.

Mr. BAsrorDp: Before you adjourn may I say that I have been unusually
quiet today. Am I still on your list?

The CHAIRMAN: I want to make it clear there are several members who
have not participated in the first round of questioning.

Mr. BAsrorp: Before we go further I think I should say that this chart
should be appended to today’s record, otherwise it will be meaningless.
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The CHAIRMAN: I understand the committee is agreed to having this chart
printed as an appendix to today’s proceedings.

It is the intention of the Chairman to ask that the next meeting take place
this coming Thursday at 9:30 a.m. in this room. I will ask the witnesses to make
themselves available at that time. This is subject to supervening events which
cannot be foreseen at this time.

Mr. LEBOE: Mr. Chairman, there was one question I asked to which Mr.
Coyne did not have the answer. Could I get that answer when we meet again? I
have another list of questions here. My question relates to the matter of your
bank having a fully-owned real estate company and whether or not you can
loan money to that real estate company. Could you get me that information?

Mr. CoyNE: Yes. You might let me have your second list of questions so
that I can do some homework on it.

The CHAIRMAN: The other members of the committee may have some
comments about that.

Gentlemen, this meeting is adjourned.
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REPORT TO THE HOUSE
MARCH 3, 1966.

The Standing Committee on Finance, Trade and Economic Affairs has the
honour to present its gk

SEcOND REPORT

Your Committee recommends that it be authorized to sit while the House is
sitting, such authority to have effect for this day only, Thursday, March 3, 1966.

Respectfully submitted,

HERB GRAY,
Chairman.

(Concurred March 3, 1966.)
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

THURSDAY, March 3, 1966.
(4)

The Standing Committee on Finance, Trade and Economic Affairs met at
9:40 a.m. this day, the Chairman, Mr. Gray, presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Basford, Cashin, Clermont, Gray, Grégoire,
Horner (Acadia), Irvine, Laflamme, Lambert, Leboe, Lewis, Macdonald
(Rosedale), McLean (Charlotte), Monteith, More (Regina City), Munro—(16).

In attendance: Messrs. J.-T. Richard, M.P., sponsor of Bill C-111; D. Gordon
Blair, Parliamentary Agent; J. M. Coyne, Parliamentary Agent; Sinclair M.
Stevens, Toronto; James E. Coyne, Toronto; Max Ritchie, Edmonton; C. F.
Elderkin, Inspector General of Banks.

The committee agreed to defer the question of the composition of the
sub-committee on agenda and procedure to the next meeting.

The committee resumed consideration of Bill C-111, An Act to incorporate
Bank of Western Canada.

Messrs. Coyne, Stevens and Blair were recalled and questioned, assisted by
Mr. Ritchie.

On motion of Mr. More (Regina City), seconded by Mr. McLean (Charlotte),

Resolved,—That the committee seek permission to sit while the House is
sitting, such permission to have effect for this day only, Thursday, March 3,
1966.

The questioning continuing, at 12:00 noon the committee adjourned until
3:30 p.m. this day, if permission to sit is granted by the House.

AFTERNOON SITTING
(5)

The committee resumed at 3:55 p.m. this day, the Chairman, Mr. Gray,
presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Cashin, Chrétien, Clermont, Coates, Gray, Hees,
Horner (Acadia), Irvine, Laflamme, Lambert, Lewis, Macdonald (Rosedale),
McLean (Charlotte), Monteith, More (Regina City)—(15).

In attendance: The same as at the morning sitting, with the addition of Dr.
P. M. Ollivier, Q.C., Parliamentary Counsel.

73



74 FINANCE, TRADE AND ECONOMIC AFFAIRS March 3, 1966

Questioning of Messrs. Stevens and Coyne was continued, and the witnesses
were permitted to stand down, subject to recall.

Mr. Elderkin was called and questioned and permitted to stand down,
subj ect to recall.

The commlttee then proceeded to clause by clause consideration of the Bill.

On motion of Mr. Lambert, seconded by Mr. Monteith,
" Resolved,—That the Preamble be allowed to stand.

. Clauses 1 to 4 inclusive were carried.

‘Onclause 5

Mr. Blair introduced his colleague, Mr. J. M. Coyne, Parliamentary Agent,
who made a statement explaining the purpose and intent of certain amendments

which .the promoters wished to make to the Bill. Copies of the proposed
amendments were distributed.

Dr. Ollivier was questioned concerning the amendments.

After further discussion and questioning, it was moved by Mr. Lambert and
seconded by Mr. Coates that: Clause 5 of Bill C-111 be deleted and the

following substituted therefor: (for text of proposed amendments see Appendix
“A” to these Minutes, page 75.)

Mr. Lewis, seconded by Mr. More (Regina City), moved in sub-amendment
that: Wherever in the amendment “twenty-five per cent” occurs as a total for
stock-holdmg by non-residents, it be changed to “ten per cent”.

After further discussion, on motion of Mr. Lewis, seconded by Mr. Cler-
mont, -

Resolved,—That this committee stand adjourned to 9:30 a.m., Tuesday,
March 8, 1966.

At 5:45 p.m., the committee adjourned until March 8, 1966.

Dorothy F. Ballantine,
Clerk of the Committee.
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APPENDIX “A” TO MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

Moved by Mr. Lambert, seconded by Mr, Coates,

That Clause 5 of Bill C-111 be deleted and the following substituted
therefor:

“5. (1) In this section and sections 6 to 9,
(a) “agent”, in relation to
(i) Her Majesty in right of Canada or in right of a province, or

(ii) the government of a foreign state or any political subdivision
thereof,

means an individual or corporation empowered to perform any

function or duty on behalf of Her Majesty in either such right or on

behalf of the government of a foreign state or any political subdivi-

sion thereof, other than a function or duty in the administration or

management of the estate or property of an individual;

(b) “corporation” includes an association, partnership or other organiza-
tion;

(¢) “non-resident” means
(i) an individual who is not ordinarily resident in Canada,

(ii) a corporation incorporated, formed or otherwise organized, else-
where than in Canada,

(iii) the government of a foreign state or any political subdivision
thereof, or an agent of either,

(iv) a corporation that is controlled directly or indirectly by non-
residents as defined in any subparagraphs (i) to (iii),
(v) a trust
(A) established by a non-resident as defined in any of subpara-
graphs (ii) to (iv) other than a trust for the administration
of a pension fund for the benefit of individuals a majority
of whom are residents, or
(B) in which non-residents as defined in any of subparagraphs
(i) to (iv) have more than fifty per cent of the beneficial
interest, or
(vi) a corporation that is controlled directly or indirectly by a trust
defined in subparagraph (v) as a non-resident; and

(d) “resident” means an individual, corporation or trust that is not a
non-resident.

(2) For the purposes of sections 6 to 9, a shareholder is deemed to be
associated with another shareholder if
(a) one shareholder is a corporation of which the other shareholder is an
officer or director;

(b) one shareholder is a partnership of which the other shareholder is a
partner;
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(c) one shareholder is a corporation that is controlled directly or in-
directly by the other shareholder;

(d) both shareholders are corporations and one shareholder is controlled
directly or indirectly by the same individual or corporation that
controls the other shareholder;

(e) both shareholders are members of a voting trust where the trust
relates to shares of the Bank; or

(f) both shareholders are associated within the meaning of paragraphs
(a) to (e) with the same shareholder.

(3) For the purposes of this section and sections 6 to 9, a “shareholder” is
a person who according to the books of the Bank is the holder of one or more
shares of the capital stock of the Bank and a reference in sections 6 to 9 to a
share being held by or in the name of any person is a reference to his being the
holder of the share according to the books of the Bank.

(4) For the purposes of sections 6 to 9, where a share of the capital stock of
the Bank is held jointly and one or more of the joint holders thereof is a
non-resident, the share is deemed to be held by a non-resident.

(5) Where a corporation or trust that was at any time a resident becomes a
non-resident, any shares of the capital stock of the Bank acquired by the
corporation or the trust while it was a resident and held by it while it is a
non-resident shall be deemed, for the purposes of sections 6 and 7, to be shares
held by a resident for the use or benefit of a non-resident.

“6. (1) The bank shall refuse to allow a transfer of a share of the capital
stock of the bank to a non-resident to be made or recorded in a register of
transfers of the bank

(a) if, when the total number of shares of the capital stock of the Bank
held by non-residents exceeds twenty-five per cent of the total
number of the issued and outstanding shares of such stock, the
transfer would increase the percentage of such shares held by non-
residents; or

(b) if, when the total number of shares of the capital stock of the bank
held by non-residents is twenty-five per cent or less of the total
number of the issued and outstanding shares of such stock, the
transfer would cause the total number of such shares held by non-
residents to exceed twenty-five per cent of the total number of the
issued and outstanding shares of such stock.

(2) The bank shall refuse to allow a transfer of a share of the capital stock
of the bank to any person to be made or recorded in a register of transfers of
the bank

(a) if, when the total number of shares of the capital stock of the bank
held by such person and by other shareholders associated with him,
if any, exceeds ten per cent of the total number of the issued and
outstanding shares of such stock, the transfer would increase the
percentage of such shares held by such person and by other share-
holders associated with him, if any; or

(b) if, when the total number of shares of the capital stock of the bank
held by such person and by other shareholders associated with him,
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if any, is ten per cent or less of the total number of the issued and
outstanding shares of such stock, the transfer would cause the total
number of such shares held by such person and by other sharehold-
ers associated with him, if any, to exceed ten per cent of the issued
and outstanding shares of such stock.

(3) The bank shall refuse to allow a transfer of a share of the capital stock
of the bank to

(a) Her Majesty in right of Canada or in right of a province or an agent
of Her Majesty in either such right, or
(b) the government of a foreign state or any political subdivision thereof
or an agent of the government of a foreign state of any political
subdivision thereof,
to be made or recorded in a register of transfers of the bank.

(4) The bank shall not accept a subscription for a share of the capital
stock of the bank

(a) by Her Majesty in right of Canada or in right of a province or an
agent of Her Majesty in either such right or by the government of a
foreign state or any political subdivision thereof or an agent of the
government of a foreign state or any political subdivision thereof, or

(b) except as otherwise provided in subsection (5), in circumstances
where if the subscription were a transfer of the share the bank
would be required under subsection (1) or (2) to refuse to allow
the transfer to be made or recorded; but in the case of a subscrip-
tion pursuant to an offer under section 36 of the Bank Act the bank
may count as shares issued and outstanding all the shares included
in the offer.

(5) Subject to paragraph (a) of subsection (4), where an offer of shares of
the capital stock of the bank is made under section 36 of the Bank Act, the bank
may accept any subscription

(a) if the terms of the offer contain provisions to the effect that in the
case of a share offered to a shareholder whose recorded address, at
the time fixed for determining the shareholders to whom the offer is
made, is a place within Canada and who is not at that time, to the
knowledge of the bank, a non-resident, a subscription will not be
accepted if the share is to be recorded in the name of a non-resident;

(b) if the subscription is accompanied by a declaration by the subscriber
(i) as to whether the person in whose name the share is to be
recorded is a resident or a non-resident, and
(ii) to the effect that the total number of shares of the capital
stock of the bank that will, if the subscription is accepted, be
held by such person and by other shareholders associated with
him, if any, will not exceed ten per cent of the total number of
the shares of the capital stock of the bank that will be issued and
outstanding on the issue of all shares included in the offer; and
(c) if, on the basis of such declaration, the acceptance of the subscrip-
tion is not contrary to the terms of the offer.

(6) Default in complying with the provisions of this section does not affect
the validity of a transfer of a share of the capital stock of the bank that has
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been made or recorded in a register of transfers of the bank or the validity of
the acceptance of a subscription for a share of the capital stock of the bank.

“7. (1) Notwithstanding section 34 of the Bank Act, where a resident holds
shares of the capital stock of the Bank in the right of, or for the use or benefit
of, a non-resident, the resident shall not, in person or by proxy, exercise the
voting rights pertaining to those shares.

(2) Notwithstanding section 34 of the Bank Act, where the total of

(a) the number of shares of the capital stock of the Bank held in the
name or right of or for the use or benefit of a person, and

(b) the number of shares of the capital stock of the Bank held in the
name or right of or for the use or benefit of

(i) any shareholders associated with the person mentioned in para-
graph (a), or
(ii) any other person who would be deemed under subsection (2) of
section 5 to be associated with the person mentioned in para-
graph (a), if both he and such other person were shareholders,
exceeds ten per cent of the issued and outstanding shares of such stock,

(¢) no person shall, in person or by proxy, exercise the voting rights
pertaining to any of the shares referred to in paragraph (a) that are
held in the name of a resident, and

(d) no person shall, in person or as proxy, exercise the voting rights
pertaining to any of the shares referred to in paragraph (a) that are
held in the name of a non-resident.

(3) Notwithstanding Section 34 of the Bank Act, the voting rights per-
taining to any shares of the capital stock of the Bank shall not be exercised
when the shares are held in the name or right of or for the use or benefit of

(a) Her Majesty in right of Canada or in right of a province or an agent
of Her Majesty in either such right; or

(b) the government of a foreign state or any political subdivision thereof
or an agent of the government of a foreign state or any political
subdivision thereof.

(4) Where it appears from the register of shareholders of the Bank that the
total par value of the shares of the capital stock of the Bank held by a
shareholder is less than five thousand dollars, a person acting as proxy for the
shareholder at a general meeting of the Bank is entitled to assume that the
shareholder holds the shares in his own right and for his own use and benefit
and that he is not associated with any other shareholder, unless the knowledge
of the person acting as proxy is to the contrary.

(5) If any provision of this section is contravened at a general meeting of
the shareholders of the Bank, no proceeding, matter or thing at that meeting is
void by reason only of such contravention, but any such proceeding, matter or
thing is, at any time within nine months from the day of commencement of the
general meeting at which the contravention occurred, voidable at the option of
the shareholders by a resolution passed at a special general meeting of the
shareholders.




March 3, 1966 FINANCE, TRADE AND ECONOMIC AFFAIRS 79

“8. (1) The directors may make such by-laws as they deem necessary to
carry out the intent of sections 5 to 9 and in partlcular but without restnctmg
the generality of the foregoing, the directors may make by-laws

(a) requiring any person in whose name a share of the capital stock of
the Bank is held to submit a declaration.

(i) with respect to the ownership of such share,

(ii) with respect to the place in which the shareholder and any
person in whose right or for whose use or benefit the share is
held are ordinarily resident,

(ii) whether the shareholder is associated with any other share-
holder, and

(iv) with respect to such other matters as the directors may deem
relevant for the purposes of sections 5 to 9;

(b) requiring any person desiring to have a transfer of a share to him
made or recorded in a register of transfers of the Bank or desiring to
subscribe for a share of the capital stock of the Bank to submit such a
declaration as may be required pursuant to this section in the case of
a shareholder; and

(¢) providing for the determination of the circumstances in which any
declarations shall be required, their form and the times at which
they are to be submitted.

(2) Where pursuant to any by-law made under subsection (1) any
declaration is required to be submitted by any shareholder or person in respect
of the transfer of or subscription for any share, the Bank may refuse to allow
such transfer to be made or recorded in a register of transfers of the Bank or to
accept such subscription without the submission of the required declaration.

(3) The Bank and any person who is a director, officer, employee or agent
of the Bank, may rely upon any information contained in a declaration required
by the Bank pursuant to this section or any information otherwise acquired in
respect of any matter that might be the subject of such a declaration; and no
action lies against the Bank of any such person for anything done or omitted in
good faith in reliance upon any such information.

(4) Where for any of the purposes of section 6, the Bank requires to
establish the total number of shares of the capital stock of the Bank held by
non-residents, the Bank may calculate the total number of such shares held by
non-residents to be the total of

(a) the number of shares held by all shareholders whose recorded
addresses are places outside Canada; and

(b) the number of shares held by all shareholders each of whose
aggregate individual holdings of such shares has a par value of five
thousand dollars or more and whose recorded addresses are places
within Canada but who to the knowledge of the bank are non-resi-
dents; and such calculation may be made as of a date not earlier than
four months before the day on which the calculation is made.

(5) Where by any calculation made under subsection (4) the total number
of shares held by non-residents is under twenty-five per cent of the total issued
and outstanding shares of the capital stock of the Bank, the number of shares
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the transfer of which by residents to non-residents the Bank may allow to be
made or recorded in the registers of transfers of the Bank shall be so limited as
not to increase the total number of shares held by non-residents to more than
twenty-five per cent of the total issued and outstanding shares of the capital
stock of the Bank.

(6) Notwithstanding subsections (1) and (2) of section 6, where in the
case of a transfer of any shares of the capital stock of the Bank to a transferee
it appears that

(a) the aggregate par value of all shares of the capital stock of the Bank
held by the transferee as shown by the register of shareholders of
the Bank at a date not more than four months earlier is less than
five thousand dollars, and

(b) the aggregate par value of the shares included in the transfer and
any shares acquired by the transferee after the date mentioned in
paragraph (a) and still held by him as shown by the register of
transfers of the Bank in which it is sought to have the transfer
made or recorded is less than five thousand dollars,

the Bank is entitled to assume that the transfere is not and will not be
associated with any other shareholder and, unless the address to be recorded in
the register of shareholders of the Bank for the transferee is a place outside
Canada, that he is a resident.

“9. Nothwithstanding section 6, the Bank, upon its incorporation and with
the prior approval of the Treasury Board, may, either before or after the first
general meeting of the shareholders of the Bank, accept subscriptions for shares
by residents without regard to the provisions of section 6, but no such
subscriptions for shares may be accepted by the Bank except in accordance with
and subject to such terms and conditions as the Treasury Board may by order
prescribe.

“10. Sections 5 to 9 inclusive of this Act shall have effect notwithstanding
anything in the Bank Act but unless otherwise provided by Parliament shall
cease to have effect upon the last day upon which the Bank may carry on the
business of banking under the provisions of section 6 of that Act.”
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The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, I see a quorum. I will now call the meeting to
order.

We have before us a motion and an amendment dealing with the composi-
tion of the steering committee. Since our time is again limited today, I would
invite the committee to consider tabling this motion for further discussion at the
next meeting.

Mr. LAMBERT: I so move.

Mr. LEwis: I second the motion.

Motion agreed to.

The CHAIRMAN: We will now resume our consideration of Bill No. C-111 to
incorporate the Bank of Western Canada. We have with us again Mr. Coyne and
Mr. Stevens and the parliamentary agent.

I believe Mr. Coyne wishes to make a correction before we begin our
questioning.

Mr. James E. CoyNE (Proposed provisional director, Bank of Western
Canada): This is just a statistical point. Reference was made the other day to
the fact that the chartered banks had made large transfers in their reserves
in the last two years. The figures are given in the statistical summary of the
Bank of Canada. I have not read the transcript so I am not quite sure what I
said but I may have failed to say that the figure included provision for losses;
it was not purely a transfer to inner reserves.

Mr. CLERMONT: There was no question of provision for losses?

Mr. CoyYNE: The figure we were speaking of, $75 million, included provision
for losses in addition to inner reserves. It does not give separately the amount
of losses in any one year but it shows that over the past 25 years the average
provision for losses was $10 million a year.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Clermont, you are next on my list.

Mr. CLERMONT: You mean, Mr. Coyne, that in the $75 million there would
be the figure of $10 million?

Mr. CoyNE: I do not know how much it would be. It was a prosperous year
but whether it would mean a bigger or a smaller loss I do not know. The only
information that has been made available is that over the past 25 years the
average annual amount for losses was $10 million; it could have been bigger in
some years and smaller in others.

Mr. CLERMONT: Mr. Stevens, in your opening remarks you said there would
be room for another bank. You also mentioned that between the years 1963
and 1965, 270 further branches were opened of which 91 were from the four
provinces. The member from Edmonton West said that after the war up to 1965
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the number of branches opened in Canada had doubled. Mr. Lambert, would
you include in that number the credit unions or do you only speak of bank
branches?

Mr. LAMBERT: I am basing myself on the testimony of the superintendent of
banking before the Banking and Commerce Committee which met in 1964. He
spoke of 5,500 branches of banks.

Mr. CLERMONT: That means that we have to add to that credit unions,
credit corporatives and caisses populaires because we know very well in Quebec
that the caisses populaires have flourished for the last 20 years. I understand
that now the caisses populaires have over a billion dollars in deposits. Suppose
the Bank Act is revised and the new banks are included in the Bank Act, will
there be room for another bank or banks?

Mr. STEVENS: Yes.

Mr. CLERMONT: In your remarks you said the total assets of the eight
existing banks from 1963 to 1965 have gone up from $22.1 billion to $25 billion.
Is that a normal kind of growth in the context of the economic expansion we
have exnerienced in the last few years?

Mr. STEVENS: In terms of Canadian prosperity and expansion I would not
want to say it is abnormal. It is fair to say though that right until the war
period the entire Canadian banking system was less then $4 billion and in two
years it has almost grown to the size that it was in its total in, say, the 1939
period.

Mr. CLERMONT: In your remarks you said—I think Mr. Coyne made a
correction here—that the banks have tripled their inner reserves and their
provision for loss allocation in 1965. Could you say what percentage of that $75
million was in reserve and provision for loss in 1965?

Mr. CoyNE: I do not know that figure. So far as I know, that figure or a
figure of that nature has never been published.

Mr. LEwis: If I may interject here, Mr. Chairman, how would they know
the reserves for loss over the years if they do not have it year by year?

Mr. CoyNE: Somebody knows it but I do not. These figures are collated by
the Inspector General of Banks and by the Bank of Canada from reports that
the individual banks make.

Mr. LEwis: But the information is available at the Bank of Canada; it is
just not published.

Mr. CoyNE: That is right. It could not be published without the authority of
the Minister of Finance.

Mr. CLERMONT: Mr. Coyne, in your remarks or in a reply to a question, you
said you hoped that there will be more banks in western Canada and in the
Maritimes. Did you indicate by that that you are satisfied that in central Canada
the existing banking system is adequate?

Mr. CoyNE: No. I think what I had in mind was that all the present banks
are located in central Canada and none of them have their head offices in the
Maritimes or in western Canada.

Mr. CLERMONT: Why are you emphasizing so much a head office in one
centre rather than in another? Do you mean that if there were head oﬁ'ices_ in
western Canada or in the Maritimes that, say, a commercial loan would receive
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a more favourable reply than if it were studied by a head office either in
Toronto or Montreal?

Mr. CoyNE: The answer to that is yes, but there is also another factor of
great importance. I think the people concerned would be more satisfied that
they had received adequate consideration if it were done by a head office in
their own town or in their own region.

Mr. LAMBERT: May I ask a supplementary question at this point? Do you
feel then, Mr. Coyne, that the practice of the chartered banks in raising the
status of their provincial or regional supervisors to that of assistant general
manager is merely a step in the public acceptance of a transaction; that if an
assistant general manager in Calgary, Winnipeg or Vancouver ruled on that
particular matter it would be better than if it had been done merely by the
superintendent?

e (9: 50 am.)

Mr. CoyNE: I do not suppose changing the name makes any difference but
if, in fact, there is a process of decentralization of authority, that is a good
thing.

Mr. LAMBERT: Is it actually a decentralization of authority in your opinion
and your knowledge of the banking business, or is it merely window dressing,
as Mr. More said?

Mr. CoyNE: I really do not know. I think you would have to find out what
authority had been given to the regional officers both in form and in practice.

Mr. LAMBERT: You are not aware of it?
Mr. CoynNE: No.

Mr. CLERMONT: Are you also aware that the local branch managers have
some kind of authority over the granting of loans?

Mr. CoyNE: Most local branch managers have virtually no authority in
loans, or a very small amount. That would be true of at least 75 per cent of the
branches.

Mr. CLERMONT: Even if they are, say, in the west where they are far away
from headquarters?

Mr. CoynE: Yes, except for certain routine types of loans where procedures
are laid down, such as home improvement loans and guaranteed farm loans.
There must be considerable administrative authority in the local manager, but
in terms of passing a risk-bearing loan such as a commercial loan, most of the
branches do not make those loans anyhow. Most of the branches do nothing but
take in saving deposits and run current accounts.

Mr. CLERMONT: I know some bank managers have authority to make loans;
it may not be in the case of $25,000 or $50,000 loans.

Mr. CoyNE: I am remote from it both in time and in some other ways. It
used to be true of very few branches in the very largest cities.

Mr. CLERMONT: Mr. Stevens, in your opening remark when you said that
you were forming a bank, you mentioned on Tuesday, I think, that one
insurance company showed interest as a shareholder, I believe it was the
Great-West Life. I think it was indicated in the Senate that another insurance
company with a head office in Winnipeg might be interested either in depositing
in your bank or being a shareholder. Is that right?
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Mr. STEVENS: I think there are four. I am not sure whether Sovereign
moved their head office.

Mr. CLERMONT: It was mentioned that there were four big insurance
companies with head offices in Quebec and that they were interested either in
buying shares or becoming depositors in your bank.

Mr. STEVENS: I know that initially the Great-West Life held a $495,000
investment and the Monarch Life held I think 3,300 shares and Sovereign 2,000.
I am just relying on my memory. I know that the Great-West still have their
block; I am not sure whether Monarch or Sovereign have but it could well be
that they have disposed of them—I am not sure.

Mr. CLERMONT: You just mentioned that certificate holders are getting an
interest on their returns.

Mr. STEVENS: They are getting the net proceeds that accrue on the funds.

Mr. CLERMONT: Tuesday you mentioned that banks were fighting to get
your deposits.

Mr. STEVENS: The net result of that interest accrual was paid out to the
certificate holders. I got my cheque on Wednesday when I got home, so I know
it went out at that time and it was $0.60 per certificate, that means that on a
$15 certificate they got $0.60. That is the accrual up to December 31, 1965.

Mr. CLERMONT: You mentioned that you hoped to be permanent director of
the new bank. Could you explain what you mean by “permanent”? For us,
French people, the word “permanent” may have a different meaning.

Mr. STEVENS: I know it is confusing. The Bank Act refers to ‘“provisional
directors” because we are not incorporated. In order to be a provisional director,
in our certificates prospectus we had to say “proposed provisional director”. We
will go through three stages. The five people are now ‘“proposed provisional
directors”. We have to be provisional directors when the bank charter is
granted and then to be permanent directors in the sense that we hope to be
elected by the shareholders initially and will be re-elected at the annual
meetings.

Mr. CLERMONT: What is your reaction to clause 8 in Bill No. C-102 which
was introduced in 1964, which states that no director will be allowed to sit as a
bank director if one fifth of the directors of one corporation formed the bank’s
directorate? Some of the directors of these firms I spoke of might be directors of
the new bank. Will you yourself forget about your directorship in other banks
and stay in the new bank or will it be vice versa?

Mr. STEVENS: We will have to abide by whatever the law is.

There is something I would like to mention in reference to the question you
asked Mr. Coyne concerning the authority of branch managers in the banks.
This was covered in the Royal Commission on Banking, and at page 132 we find
it is stated:

Under their “discretionary limits”, most of which are for $10,000 or
less, the branch managers make final decisions on well over 90 per cent
of loan applications covering at least one-quarter of the dollar amount of
loans. Regional supervisors or assistant general managers outside head
office are responsible for most accounts lying between $10,000 and
$100,000 and an increasing number of them have authority to approve
much larger applications. The remaining large applications which ac-
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count for about half of 1 per cent of the accounts but for a substantial
share of the 50 per cent of loans which were made under authorizations
of $100,000 or more—are passed on to senior officials in head office.

The table that appears shows that 49.7 per cent of the total loans made by
the banks are $100,000 or more and are passed on at head office.

Mr. CLERMONT: In your remarks you say that you will employ professional
bankers, and you mentioned that you had offers from bankers. Will those come
from existing banks or from near banks and do you think you will have
difficulty, if parliament grants you a charter, in getting professional bankers?

Mr. STEVENS: We are quite confident we will be able to get suitable

professional bankers as you say, either from existing banks or so-called near
banks.

Mr. MonTEITH: You also said that it is your intention that the banks
should not operate in a manner radically different from the existing banks. How
can you do that?

Mr. STEVENS: If the transcript says “radically different” they misquoted me
in that. I said, “We will not operate in a manner radically different”. I have
here the printed part that I was reading from. I was using a double negative.

Mr. CLERMONT: I thought that maybe it would be easier for the small firms
to get their credit.

e (10: 00 am.)

Mr. STEVENS: It is not our intention that the bank should operate in a
radically different manner.

Mr. LEwis: Mr. Stevens is not a radical.

Mr. CLERMONT: So, according to your view and Mr. Coyne’s view, if your
application meets with the Bank Act and parliament grants you a charter,
regardless of the existing claims that other banks are satisfactory, do you
consider it would be a sound investment to form a new bank?

Mr. CoyNE: Yes, Mr. Clermont. I believe it would be a sound investment.
The manner in which the bank will conduct its operation will depend upon its
relations with the public and its depositors and customers. It is difficult to be
very precise in advance, and also it is difficult to be asked to say things about
our proposed operations that one would not normally make known to one’s
competitors. I think we have found from observing public opinion and from
conversations with people in western Canada that a lot of people would like to
do business with a new bank.

Mr. CLERMONT: Your head office will be in Winnipeg. Some of my western
friends may say I am talking like an easterner.

Mr. CoyNE: For the same reason, in some degree, in the province of Quebec
a lot of customers deal with the Banque Provinciale du Canada and Banque
Canadienne Nationale because they are regional banks very largely confined to
one province and there is a very strong local attachment to those banks. I do
not think it is really a question of language. The fact that it is a local institution
is of great importance in their operations.

Mr. CLERMONT: On Tuesday you said your views were not sought when the

last merger took place. Have you any idea why that merger took place?
23650—2
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Mr. CoyNE: No, sir, I do not.

Mr. Basrorp: I have a few questions for Mr. Coyne You surmised on
Tuesday that the existing chartered banks had excess deposits of loans from
western Canada. In discussing the policy of your banks you stated that you
would be lending in areas from which you received your deposits.

Mr. CoyNE: Yes.

Mzr. BAsForDp: On what do you base your surmise?

Mr. CoyNE: I do not have any statistical information. I can only say it is the
opinion I have formed as a result of a variety of information and things I have
heard over a period of years. However, I could not prove it until some figures
are provided.

Mr. BasrorD: And those figures are not public at the moment?

Mr. Co¥NE: No, they never have been.

Mr. BASFORD: So it is difficult to say that?

Mr. CoyNE: But there are people who have the information and no doubt
they could make it available if they chose to.

Mr. BASFORD: Such as—

Mr. CoyNE: The banks themselves.

Mr. BasrorD: Are they the only people who would have the figures
available?

Mr. CoyNE: So far as I know.

. _-Mr. Basrorp: Is the policy you propese for your bank in this area the policy
now followed, for example, by the Maritime Mortgage and Loan?

Mr. STEVENS: I do not know whether you are referring to that company
deliberately but it was only incorporated and used by us to enable us to make
mortgage loans in the province of New Brunswick. It is controlled by Well-
ington, and if Wellington wished to make a loan in New Brunswick they would
have to have a company that empowers them to make a loan in that province. It
is not an operative loan company in the sense that it takes deposits or any other
funds from the public.

Mr. Basrorp: I would like to go back to your method of proposed operation
in the area in which you feel you can compete with the existing banks as I read
your evidence in the Senate.

Mr. CoyNE: It has been pointed out that the other banks may be making
changes in that regard themselves. The basis for our operations must be our
success in gathering deposits from the public. Obviously we cannot make loans
unless we have money coming in from deposits. Therefore we must do our best
to provide officers of the bank in suitable locations and provide service and
facilities in a way that pleases our customers. This has to be worked out in
practice, and you cannot very well lay down too detailed a plan in advance. As I
say, we certainly would not want to make known to our competitors anything
in the way of a detailed plan.

Mr. BASFORD: Approximately half of your authorized capital will be issued,
or $13,000.

Mr. CoyNeE: A little under half, a third. The authorized ecapital is $25
million. The par value of what will be issued initially will be about $8 million.

Mr. BAsrorp: What are your plans with regard to the authorized capital?
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Mr. CoyNE: This is covered by the Bank Act. After you make your initial
sale of stock you cannot thereafter issue stock except to the existing sharehold-
ers in proportion to their holdings. So, from time to time, as you know, the
banks may make rights offerings to their shareholders; each one has the right to
subscribe for one share for each ten he already owns at a price which is
determined by the Bank Act, that is to say it is the book value of one share.

Mr. Basrorp: I take it, from the statements in the Senate, that the net
worth of your related companies or your group of companies following incorpo-
ration will go up from $10 million to $20 million. Would it therefore not be
easy, following incorporation, to acquire a much larger block of shares in the
proposed bank than was contemplated?

e (10: 10 am.)

Mr. CoynNE: That is purely a statistical putting together. People said,
“Well, the Bank will be in your group of companies after incorporation”, and
on that basis the capital of the bank, whether we own it or not, was included
in those figures. That is the total net worth of all the companies including the
bank, but the net worth is of course owned by thousands of shareholders, and
only two in the minority position by Mr. Stevens’ group..

I think we should make very clear the difference between voting power and
control and financial interest or profit making. The profits of the bank will be
distributed in the form of dividends to all the shareholders, and the other
shareholders—I should think 90 per cent but I do not know—other than Mr.
Stevens and his group will get say 90 per cent of the profits of the bank. I could
check the figure for you.

In so far as people can make a profit, some shareholders will sell out their
shares at a higher price, and those shares will go to the general shareholders,
not to any management or control group.

Mr. Basrorp: I realize that, but having this large block of unissued stock
would it not be possible following incorporation to issue further stock and, in
this way, fairly shortly after incorporation for the British International group to
gain very substantial control of the bank?

Mr. CoyNE: No, that is forbidden under the Bank Act. It can only be issued
to the existing shareholders, whoever they may be. The British International
group or any other group can buy shares in the open market if they have
money to do so, but the incorporation of the bank will not put British
International in more funds to buy shares.

Mr. Basrorp: No, but the British International group is generating a good
deal of funds of its own.

Mr. CoynNE: That is true, and they will have to make their investment
decisions. They will have to decide whether they buy or sell various shares in
different enterprises. Also, of course, again they will be bound by the provisions
of the Bank Act; and if there is a provision, as we have understood there will
be, to limit the holdings of any one person or group then they will have to abide
by that.

Mr. BasrorD: That is the 10 per cent provision?

Mr. CoyNE: Yes, or whatever it may be, with provision for the interim
period.
23650—2}
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As I said before, I am not really a member of this group in the sense of
having any financial interest of any consequence. I am associated with them
because I think they are competent, sincere people who are able to get things
done. I do not think you will get banks established in any other way than by
having some nucleus group who have to be the originators, the controllers and
the organizers, and who will put a lot of time into it in the first instance.

Conceivably, if you have in the background some very large person such as
we have heard of in connection with another proposed bank, the public may
come in as shareholders and maybe someone would volunteer to organize the
affair without there actually being a control of the shares as such, but that
would be a rather different sort of situation. For ordinary commerc1a1 purposes
someone has to organize a company and someone has to control it in the early
stages; and every other bank I know of was started in that way.

Mr. STEVENS: On that point, Mr. Basford, it has been mentioned that I am
President of British International, and I would like to speak from that position.
Rather than increasing our holding in the bank as you are suggesting, I would
think it would be extremely likely that in the case, say, of a rights issue,
as mentioned by Mr. Coyne, we would sell off our rights and in that way start
diminishing the over-all interest that we have in the bank; but we would have
absolutely no intention of putting more capital into the bank if we are
chartered. We would have no intention of putting more capital into the bank to
gain a still bigger control position. As I say, our position would be probably to
let the percentage fall through the selling off of rights which may accrue to us if
more capital is acquired.

Mr. BAsrorp: Why?

Mr. STEVENS: Because the $6 million investment we have in the bank is a
very substantial investment to have in any concern. The main thing we are
interested in is in effect to seed the bank, to make sure it gets off to a healthy
start and is properly organized and running.

The question of how much money we have in the bank is something that is
only of significance at the beginning. We would have no thought of wanting to
make a bigger investment in the concern than $6 million.

Mr. CoyNE: There is one very well known precedent with which perhaps
you are familiar, and that is the relationship between the Bell Telephone
Company of Canada and the American Telephone and Telegraph in the United
States. I believe at one time American Telephone and Telegraph owned 51 per
cent; certainly they were definitely in control of the Bell Telephone Company of
Canada. Through a period of time as the company grew, American Telephone
and Telegraph did not increase their shareholdings. They have now withdrawn
to a position where they cannot have more than 5 per cent, or 10 per cent at the
outside. This does happen in the normal development and expansion of a
corporate enterprise.

Mr. BAsrorD: There are many Members of the House of Commons who
would still believe that American Telephone and Telegraph still hold effective
control, which is denied by Bell Telephone.

Mr. CoYNE: Any company is controlled by individuals, but who the
individuals are at the moment in that case I would not know. However, I
understand their shareholding is now very small.
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Mr. STEVENS: I could also mention something on that, Mr. Basford, that you
will recall if you have read the Senate proceedings. There were, I think, over 20
investment dealers who participated to a relatively large extent in the distribu-
tion in the Bank of Western Canada shares. In fact, Mr. Chairman, I was
wanting to mention that one of the senior partners in the firm of Sydie,
Sutherland and Ritchie is with us today in support of our application. Mr. Max
Ritchie of Edmonton is here.

In approaching these dealings one of the points they made was that they
found our proposal attractive partly because we were willing to put up our
money along with the public funds that we are raising. It has been mentioned to
me that the best evidence of the future success of the Bank was the fact that we
were willing to put up substantial money from our own resources to finance the
Bank, and that in that way the people who are coming in from the public have
an assurance that it will be run properly. In other words, we have money at
stake to make sure the bank is run properly.

If you approached the same dealers and said you were a disorganized group
who felt it would be a good idea to get a bank charter and raise some capital, I
think you would find there would not be nearly as much enthusiasm.

Mr. BASFORD: I am sure both of you are familiar with the relationships that
exist between the existing banks and existing trust and loan companies, such as
the Roynat Company.

I think it would be helpful if you were to discuss for a moment that
relationship and the possibilities of that relationship growing with your group
of companies.

Mr. CoyNE: This is dealt with at some length in the Porter Commission
Report. I have not chapter and verse in front of me but I can say it is well
known that each of the large banks is intimately associated with one particular
trust company, and in some instances also with a mortgage company or some
other form of financial institution such as Roynat, which is a company whose
purpose is to provide term capital for industry. The banks—or some banks
—sometimes point out that they do not own a preponderance of the stock in a
trust company. However, in so far as Roynat is conterned, a preponderance of
the stock is held. Undoubtedly having a mutual interest of that sort, they
encourage their customers to deal with other companies in the same group. This
may be regarded as an advantage to them and perhaps to their customers.

The banks have in recent years been going more and more into the
mortgage business as you may know, and in some cases new companies have
been incorporated whether or not the bank owns the majority of stock—and
probably it does not in that case because it is not a business they can go into
directly themselves, so I do not think they could own 51 per cent of the stock
that was in that business. Nevertheless, in one case the bank makes all its
branches available to make mortgage loans in the name of a mortgage company,
and there must be a very intimate connection between them obviously. When
the Bank of Western Canada starts it will not own stock in any trust, loan or
mortgage company and has no intention of acquiring such stock as an invest-
ment as far as I am concerned.

Some trust companies, more particularly York Trust Company, will own
some stock in the bank. In the case of York, it is a substantial holding perhaps
—30,000 shares or about 3 or 4 per cent holding. If the Bank Act makes changes
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which prevent that sort of thing, of course we will be bound by it in the same
way as the other banks. We would expect in the course of its operations in
western Canada that the Bank of Western Canada will be friendly at least with
Alberta Fidelity in Edmonton and the Fort Garry Company in Winnipeg and the
other towns in which those companies operate, including Calgary at the moment
and Camrose, Alberta. If there is a public policy in this matter we of course will
respect it and abide by it.

We feel it will be an advantage to us in the early stages to have close
relations with trust companies of this nature in the same way as the other
banks have at present. If we find in practice this is not an advantage, well
nothing will come of it. Of course, we will do business with all trust com-
panies as do the other banks.

Mr. BAsForD: Most of the investments—correct me if I am wrong—of the
whole British International finance group are in Ontario; is that correct?

Mr. CoyNE: Yes.

Mr. BASFORD: Is there not a danger that the money raised by way of deposit
in the Bank of Western Canada could be used to assist the British International
group in Ontario?

Mr. CoyNE: I do not know what you mean by danger. I can give you a
categorical assurance that it will not. I was asked that question in the Senate
and I said there was no such intention. The Bank of Western Canada will not
have enough money to assist by making any loan in that regard. The size of the
loan it can make for a good time to come will be small. With $13 million capital
and by the time we have $5 million in deposits, what size of loans will we be
making? I cannot see us doing anything over $100,000 in any one loan.

Mr. BASFORD: Your membership in the Canadian Bankers’ Association was
touched on briefly the other day, I think, by Mr. Macdonald. You acquire that
by right, I think.

Mr. CoyNE: So I understand, yes. We do not have any choice in the matter.

Mr. BAsrorD: What are the services you acquire by right of membership?

® (10: 20 a.m.)

Mr. CoyNE: As far as I know, the only concrete and definite thing is
membership in the clearing house. Another function of the Canadian Bankers’
Association used to be to supervise the note issue by the banks. That has gone,
of course, because the banks do not have any rights of note issue. It is also a
meeting place where bankers get together and discuss problems.

Mr. BAsrForDp: And agree to do away with overdrafts.

Mr. CoyNE: You may reach a certain amount of consensus about how a
sensible banker will go about dealing with such matters. I do not have anything
to say against the banks in the slightest way. The question was raised the other
day about collusive agreements, and that term has a nasty ring to it. Certainly
we will not be parties to any collusive agreement. The Mercantile Bank has
stated publicly that it does not adhere to any agreement that may exist with
any other banks. I should think that probably would be our position too. On the
other hand, in many of the matters which may be dealt with by agreement one
would probably find people following a similar line anyhow, and a small bank
will not be able to step too far out of line in certain matters, for competitive
reasons.
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Mr. MAcDONALD (Rosedale): May I ask a supplementary quest.ion.? g
Do you know if the Mercantile Bank has any difficulty in its clearing
arrangements? .

Mr. CoyNE: I am sure it does not; I have not heard of any.

The CHAIRMAN: I might say at this point that in recognizing a.suppl.emen-
tary question I do so without prejudice to the ruling at an appropriate time on
Mr. Horner’s suggestions.

Mr. Basrorp: But you do not know whether you will be welcome in this
club or not?

Mr. CoyNE: It is a matter of human nature. Some bankers have said they
welcome competition. Other bankers have said they do not think one can run a
bank with its head office in Winnipeg because the money market is in Toronto.

I do not see any difficulty in that. The banks themselves participate in the
money market in New York to a large scale, and their head offices are not in
New York. All the United States banks outside New York deal in the money
markets in New York. Indeed, in Canada the money market is in two cities,
Montreal and Toronto—and perhaps to a smaller extent in Vancouver. The other
bankers may feel sceptical about our ability to succeed. I do not think this is
any reason to deter us or anybody else from making the effort.

Mr. Basrorp: It seems to me it would be useful to have the Bankers’
Association in front of us in order to nail them down on the matter of
cooperation.

Mr. CoyNE: We do not feel any need for that.
Mr. Basrorp: I have no more questions, Mr. Chairman.
The CHAIRMAN: I now recognize Mr. Horner.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): Mr. Coyne, on Tuesday you left the impression with
me that you regarded the banking business and this proposed charter as a
money-making proposition. But do you not consider that the banks today
operate more or less as a public utility in some respects?

Mr. CoynNE: I suppose it is a question of definition, but when you use that
word in that connection it sounds as though you mean it is and ought to be a
monopoly.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): A chartered bank in a sense—there are only 8 of
them—is a pretty monopolistic form of operation.

Mr. CoyNE: I am suggesting that we should take action to reverse that
trend towards monopolization.

Mr. HOoRNER (Acadia): In a sense this is what the Porter Commission said
too. However, to get back to my question, do you not consider that the
chartered banks in a sense operate as a public utility?

Mr. CoyNE: It is very difficult to pin the words “public utility” on to any
business. We regard the electrical business as a public utility. Always in my
mind it has had a connotation of monopoly, and because it was a monopoly and
not subject to competition in any real sense it had to be regulated in the public
interest either by actual regulation or by force of opinion. Therefore, businesses
of that character could not make decisions purely from the point of view of
immediate profit.
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A bank certainly cannot make every decision from the point of view of
immediate profits. It has to look to the future development of its business, to the
welfare of its customers. A bank cannot prosper unless its customers prosper. It
has to have regard I would think, for the welfare of the area, in which it
operates; and certainly this would be more true of a regional bank than of a
bank spread all over the country without attachment to any one particular
place.

Mr. HorNER (Acadia): To some extent, though, you would agree that it
would have to operate for the general good of the public?

Mr. CoynE: Let me put it negatively if I may in order to clarify this. I do
not think a bank should ever make a loan which it thinks will result in a loss.
That is a job for governments, not for private enterprise.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): I agree with this.
Mr. CoyNE: That is an obvious point to make.

Mr. Horner (Acadia): Do you not think that in granting a charter to a bank
the bank has to some extent an obligation to the people of Canada?

Mr. CoyNE: Of course it has.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): It has an obligation to work to the general advan-
tage of all Canadians, and so on?

Mr. CoynE: I think it should conduct its affairs in such a way as to earn a
profit in its operations which are for the general benefit of Canada. I can give a
particular application of this in, let us say, western Canada. You might very
easily find some new industry worth being established and the question will
arise, “Should the bank make a loan to it?” If it were a purely commercial
operation standing on its own feet, ordinary banking principles would apply.
You might find however that public bodies were going to help finance this
industry, and government bodies would want them to be assisted. The Gov-
ernment of Canada now encourages the banks to make certain types of loan to
homeowners, to farmers, to fishermen and various people, and they give a
government guarantee on those loans, or on the mass of the loans if not on each
individual one. That might very well happen in western Canada if there were
some industry that governments in that area wanted to encourage, if they were
to put in part of the capital and needed a bank loan, and specially, of course, if
they gave a guarantee on it. That is a way in which the Bank of Western
Canada could cooperate in the public interest.

Mr. HorNER (Acadia): To follow up the idea that the western Canada area
generally is an excessive deposit area, if I may abbreviate what has been said
today and on Tuesday, you people are moving in mainly with your head offices
and operation in Ontario. I have tried to obtain from you in what direction you
hope to make the loans and in what direction you hope to use this. I received no
satisfaction in answer to my questions on Tuesday, and I could not quite believe
that your group has not made a thorough study of industry, the construction
industry, the oil and gas industry, the potash industry in Saskatchewan, for
example, and the combination of all three in Manitoba. I am sure you must have
made a study and come to the conclusion that there is a need for a bank to fill a
vacuum in any given area.

Mr. CoyNE: Now you are talking in terms of public utilities, because there
are branches already. If there were only a single bank in Canada your
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argument would apply, would it not? You would say we have one, we do not
need another. I am not looking at it from that point of view.

Mr. HORNER (Acadza) I am looking at it from the point of view that a
charter for a bank in Canada is a pretty special privilege, and the Porter
Commission agrees. At the beginning of Chapter 18 the Porter Commission said
that banks today still exert a tremendous influence upon the economy of the
country and the society of the country. It is my opinion, and I think my opinion
is borne out by the Porter Commission, that it is a tremendous privilege; and I
think to some degree it is very much like the case of a public utility. Because it
is a charter granted by Parliament it should be operated with this in mind,
although maybe not directly following the guidelines of a public utility.

Mr. CoyNE: We will operate with this in mind to the same extent as the
other banks do and to the extent that Parliament desires this to be done. I agree
that the granting of a charter by Parliament is a privilege, but surely there is a
purpose in granting those privileges. The wider one opens it up the better it is
in the public interest and the less of an exclusive and special privilege it
becomes. Part of my case in approaching this whole thing is that to have it
confined to just a few hands is too much of a privilege. I think you invite
nationalization and socialization of the banking system to have it in so few
hands.

e (10: 30 am.)

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): I would like to follow up this line of questioning.
Reference has been made to a lessening of the public utility aspect. Mr. Stevens
pointed out that it was a tremendous thing for Canada that Canadians were
starting a new chartered bank. The last two were started with foreign money.

What would happen if a large number of Canadians appeared before this
committee or, say, three or four individuals, who had raised the required
amount of money, to ask for a charter? What I am really suggesting is, does it
really matter? You have 5,000 western Canadians along with your preponder-
ance of power in the 56 per cent ownership.

Mr. CoynE: Well, Mr. Horner, I think it matters a great deal. I would hate

to see a group of only three or four come along without any evidence of who
was going to own the bank or benefit from its operations or profits.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): But, they could do as you do and say: “Oh well, these
shares will be on the market and they will be bought and sold.” Of course, this
is the way the existing banks were started. But, no one has raised the capital
first and then came to parliament and said: “We are ready now; give us a
charter.” But, people came and said: “Give us a charter; we have satisfied the
provisions of the Bank Act.”

Mr. CoyNE: Parliament has never turned down any application for a bank
charter.

Mr. HOoRNER (Acadia): Have you any idea what percentage of the existing
banks any group or any corporation holds?

Mr. CoyNE: Today?
Mr. HORNER (Acadia): Yes.
Mr. CoynNE: No, I do not have exact figures, but I think the banks have said

that their shares are now very widely dispersed and that there are no large
single holdings. But, they did not start that way.
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Mr. HORNER (Acadia): I am not interested in the way they started. As you
know, banking conditions at turn of the century were much different from what
they are today. We now have the Bank of Canada and so on.

Mr. CoyNE: Yes.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): We are now branching out into a whole new concept.
We now have your application and there will be two more in which requests for
charters are made. This is what bothers me. Since this application came before
Parliament—and I am taking note of the Senate committee’s proceedings of two
years ago—British International have gained more control, as I interpret the
situation, than they had then. It is all very well for you to say that after the
charter is granted you will proceed to disperse. I am of the opinion that
as soon as the charter is granted the value of the shares may go up on the
market.

Mr. CoyNE: Well, that is everyone’s hope—that is, everyone who has bought
shares in anticipation will hope that the value will go up.

Mr. HorNER (Acadia): During the Senate proceedings, Mr. Stevens, you
said that nearly $6 million was raised through the sale of trusteeship money and
that this amount was taken up quickly. If that was the case why was not more
issued at that time? Why do you feel you had to hang on to it? And, even since
1964 you have gathered up more of this trusteeship money.

Mr. STEVENS: I am not sure what you mean when you say our control
has increased. I do not think any figures which I gave on Tuesday would
indicate that B.LLF. will own more of the Bank of Western Canada.

Mr. HOrRNER (Acadia): I say they do because you own 49 per cent through
Canadian Finance and Wellington and you own 3 or 4 per cent in respect of
York Trust; then we have British International Finance Trust in Nassau, which
owns 5 per cent, according to what you told Mr. Grégoire the other day. If you
total that up it comes to 56 or 57 per cent. .

Mr. STEVENS: Then there was a misunderstanding. The Nassau reference
was in respect of our holding in Wellington Financial, but the Nassau Company
holds nothing directly in the Bank of Western Canada.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): I thought they had some shares.

Mr. STEVENS: No. Our interest in the Bank of Western Canada is as pointed
out at the time of the Senate hearings, approximately 50 per cent.

Mr. HorNER (Acadia): At the time of the Senate hearings it was pointed
out by Senator McCutcheon that these three companies as set out in the
evidence, would have a total of 250,000 shares, or 43 per cent of the capital.
According to this chart and what is laid out thereon you are going to have a
controlling interest of 52 per cent even with my misinterpretation in respect of
British Financial Trust in Nassau.

Mr. STEVENS: But, if you read further on you will find that Senator
McCutcheon said that perhaps his arithmetic was wrong.

The position at the time of the Senate hearings is exactly the same as it is
today with reference to B.LF. participation in the Bank of Western Canada.

The 43 per cent figure you refer to was a figure he came to prior to the
hearings, and I think you will find in there a reference to the fact he feels he
may have obtained the wrong figures.
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Mr. HORNER (Acadia): I read the evidence two or three times, but I could
be wrong.

Mr. STEVENS: But, for the purpose of clarification I could say that the
position has not changed with regard to B.LF. participation in the Bank of
Western Canada.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): I will accept your interpretation although to me it
appeared otherwise. You said in the Senate committee hearings that the sale of
trusteeship shares was quickly gobbled up. Why were not more sold?

Mr. STEVENS: Perhaps Mr. Ritchie could answer this question better than I
could. But, sale of an issue is a much less predictable thing than you would
ordinarily expect. When you do issue the sale you are hopeful that it will be
well received, but sometimes it misfires. As far as we could estimate, in talking
with our financial people, they were willing to distribute the shares—that is, the
$13 million figure—and it seemed to be an easy mark to reach without running
the danger that the issue would not be well placed.

There is a second problem. Under the Canadian banking system banks can
go up on a leverage basis to as high as 20 times the capital. You will note in the
1965 statement that some are as high as 21 times. With $13 million this would
mean that we could go over the quarter billion dollar size as a bank. It will take
us some time to get to that size. And, it would be unfair to the shareholders to
have such a wide base that it would be years before they get a return on their
capital—that is, a fair return.

e (10: 40 am.)

On this question of a bank’s relationship to the public and the privilege
which may be granted to us, I quite agree it is a privilege to have a charter and
that you should conduct a service for the public; but I think you have to bear in
mind it is the shareholders who are entitled to some return on their money. In
this very point it may be helpful to note what Mr. McKinnon of the Canadian
Bank of Commerce said at the last annual meeting. This is set out at page 32 of
their annual report: “Management’s job is to try and make the maximum
profits they can possibly make for the shareholders.”

Mr. HorRNER (Acadia): I do not expect you to lose money and, in fact, I
think it would be awful if you did. I would like to multiply the money I have in
my sock twenty times so that I might be able to eat.

Mr. BAsrorp: Then put it in the bank and not in stocks.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): But, I am still not satisfied with your decision to
obtain $13 million. Why did your controlling companies immediately gather up
$6 million, or a little over, of this amount of $13 million. Why did they not say
that perhaps 30 per cent interest would have been effective control. Would this
not be enough in view of the fact that the trusteeship money was being taken
up very fast, to use your own words.

Mr. STEVENS: On that, I made a reference earlier to one of Mr. Basford’s
points, that when you are raising capital you, in effect, enter into an agreement
with your financial advisers and those who say they will take the responsibility
of raising the capital. Now, a point that they put a lot of emphasis on is whether
the people who are organizing the venture are willing to put their own
money; and I think if you went back through the history of most of our
companies you would find we have followed a pattern where we put up half the
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money and then there is a general public issue for about half of the money.
Now, the investing of dollars in this way has been found to be a good selling
point when offering shares; in other words, the people behind the organization
have enough confidence in it that they are willing to place their own capital
in the project.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): I do not deny the fact that it would be a good selling
point, but the fact is, was it needed? Again, I remind you that you are asking
parliament for a privilege. But, was it necessary that together with your
holding companies you had to have over 50 per cent of the capital when the
other shares were gobbled up so quickly? Would the shares not have been taken
up nearly as fast if you had a 30 per cent interest?

Mr. STEVENS: Well, it is difficult when you get into these relatives, but I
would say they would not be taken up as quickly.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): I understand that but would it have been taken up
fast enough? I think it would.

Mr. STEVENS: That is a matter of opinion.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): Why do you think that in the proposed banking
legislation last spring the Minister of Finance suggested that no one person or
corporation should directly or indirectly have more than 10 per cent?

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Horner, I think your question is of some interest but at
this point I do not know how it relates particularly to the bill which has been
referred to us. Could you re-phrase your question?

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): Mr. Chairman, I would suggest that my question
does relate very directly to the bill because we have people before us who
have a 52 per cent ownership and the proposed banking legislation of last
spring suggested it should be limited to 10 per cent. This bank legislation is
still to come before parliament. Because of this I think it is a very pertinent
question.

Mr. STevENs: I think in that bank legislation there is provision for the
formation of new banks and that it is allowed that such banks probably will
need higher proportions of shares in the hands of the organizers. When the
legislation was announced we, in no way, felt it would be harmful to our group
or to our proposal, and we were quite willing to abide by the terms laid down
in that legislation.

Mr. HorNER (Acadia): Yes; if you got the charter before the legislation
becomes effective I would think you would be because, as I say, you are going
to have to sell off something of the order of 40 per cent of your holdings.

Mr. STEVENS: Not necessarily sell off; it could be sold off or it could be that
we will not exercise our rights as far as capital is concerned; in other words, we
will sell our rights and, in that way, diminish our percentage ownership of the
bank.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): What do you mean by selling your rights?

Mr. STEVENS: The only way a bank can raise capital is through a rights
issue, which is a pro rata rates issue to all its shareholders. At our first rights
issue roughly 50 per cent of this will go out to the general public, the other 50
per cent would go to our group. What I am saying is that we will not exercise
these rights but we will sell them off.
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Mr. CoyNE: There is another way that could happen. We must remember
that this is quite common in the financing of companies and their growth in
Canada. Mention was made of the case of the telephone company. I think you
will find in the case of the other chartered banks that the same thing happens.
There were some with large holdings at one time but these holdings were
gradually diminished by various methods.

I think there is another method that could be undertaken, if it was desired,
in accordance with the policy of the government. The controlling shares, which
you are speaking about, are not owned by one person but by public corporations
which have many thousands of shareholders and these corporations could, if
they would, distribute the shares in the bank to their own shareholders. This is
another way that it has been done in the past. Without selling them on the
public market they could distribute them as a return of capital to their own
shareholders. There are no technical difficulties in the way of reducing the
degree of control. It remains to be seen what public policy is and what the
desire of parliament is in the matter. We will have no difficulty in doing what is
desired.

e (10: 50 a.m.)

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): But, the thought that bothers me is that, through
one way or another, you are going to have to reduce your controlling interest in
the bank after the new bank legislation comes into effect. The stock then will be
on the market; you will have had a charter and, without a doubt, the stock will
go up and you will make a tidy profit, and capital gains, income tax and so on
has not even come into the picture. This is the way it looks to me but perhaps I
have oversimplified it.

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): But, if it goes to the corporation there is no
income tax anyway.

Mr. CoyNE: I know some people who do not think it is right to derive a
profit, but we are trying to operate in an environment in which the object of
business enterprise is to make a profit, and that includes investments.

Mr. HOoRNER (Acadia): But, this is a privilege granted by Parliament and
the benefits derived therefrom should be given to as many people as possible; I
do not think in the issuance of your trusteeship money that this has been the
case. I do not think you went far enough, and I think this is borne out by the
very fact that these shares were gobbled up so quickly, to use your own words. I
think if you had done it differently your application would have found greater
acceptance for this privilege you ask.

Mr. STEVENS: It would be helpful to me if you would give me an indication
of what, in our circumstances, you felt would have been a fair amount of the
stock for us to have retained or invested in.

Mr. HOoRNER (Acadia): Well, I am not familiar with the issuing of shares or
starting new companies, but I think from reading the evidence that you did not
have to hold on to over 50 per cent; you could have gone down to as low as
perhaps 25 per cent and still had a ready taking up of the trusteeship shares.

Mr. STEVENS: But, earlier you had mentioned 30 per cent.

Mr. HorRNER (Acadia): I was saying you could come down to that at least,
and then if it did not work, if your trusteeship money was not taken up, you
could say: “Well, we are prepared to go a little farther; we will take up
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another 5 per cent and perhaps the public will buy another 5 per cent.” Why
did you start out so high and then expect to come to parliament and say: “Give
me the privilege.”

Mr. STEVENS: I would like to say that the direct participation of B.I.LF.—and
I am talking in dollars and cents—is through Wellington Financial Corporation
Limited; Wellington will end up having 32 per cent of the bank. The way
we got up to the 50 per cent level is through the control route; if you include
C.F.I, it will have another 17 per cent. Now, our control of C.F.I. is in
connection with the common shares of C.F.I, and you will find that the
distribution that you are speaking of, Mr. Horner, actually has been obtained
through C.F.I. because in addition to the trustee certificate holdings which, as
you say, number 5,000 there are another 2,600 people who own shares of C.F.I.
Now, they put up $3 million in total, $21 million to be invested in the Bank of
Western Canada. In a sense, I would suggest that the western participation we
speak of is already there in the form of direct participation in the bank and the
fact that 2,600 people own shares in C.F.I. I can give you these figures.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): You did on Tuesday.

Mr. STEVENS: Certainly, the vast majority of these C.F.I. shareholders is in
the four western provinces. Now, a very quick way that we could get down to a
30 per cent interest in the Bank of Western Canada would be if we lessened our
control in C.F.I. and then we would be right back to the position that you, I
think, indicated would be more satisfactory from your standpoint.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): I will forgo any more questions at this time.
The CHAIRMAN: Would you proceed now, Mr. Monteith.

Mr. MonTEITH: I wonder if I could make sure of just one thing. In this
chart of your interrelated companies, as I understand it, everything on the top
column from the Wellington Financial Corporation over to the right has nothing
whatsoever to do with ownership or subscriptions or anything like this as far as
the Bank of Western Canada is concerned.

Mr. STEVENS: Yes.

Mr. MonNTEITH: And, the same thing applies in respect of the bottom line of
the chart, including the Wellington Credit Corporation; that is, everything from
there on to the right is excluded from any type of ownership of shares or
subscriptions of any kind.

Mr. STEVENS: That is right, subject to any technical aspects that I may have
overlooked.

Mr. MoNTEITH: Is there any possibility of any of these companies having
some subscription rights and this sort of thing?

Mr. STEVENS: Not of any significance. The type of technical thing to which I
am making reference here is this. In the upper line, British International
Finance Trust, we have made a reference to the fact that there is a holding
registered in their name. This came up at the last meeting.

Mr. MoNTEITH: Yes, but what was that?

Mr. STEVENS: That was a. block of Wellington Financial numbering about
200,000 shares.

Mr. MoNTEITH: Of Wellington Financial?
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.Mr. STEVENS: Correct. Actually, the 52 per cent interest that is shown by
B.LF. in Wellington Financial would include that block that is currently
registered in the name of their wholly owned subsidiary, the trust company.

Mr. MonTEITH: Now, I take it that 5,197 persons have deposited $6,450,000
covering 430,000 shares with the Canada Permanent Trust.

Mr. STEVENS: Correct.

e (11: 00 am.)

Mr. MonTEITH: I take it that 2,000 people have subscribed $3,750,000 to
Wellington for stock totalling 250,000 shares?

Mr. STEVENS: That is correct.

Mr. MonTEITH: I understand the Canadian Finance have taken a block of
150,000 shares, totalling $2,250,000.

Mr. STEVENS: That is correct.

Mr. MoNTEITH: While you said there are 2,600 shareholders in Canadian
Finance, this really would be voted as one block, would it not?

Mr. STEVENS: It will, but the point I was making, Mr. Monteith, is that of
those 2,600 shareholders, 2,400 are in the four western provinces. The only way
that we have voting control at the present time over C.F.IL is through ownership
of common shares. For example, if we made a distribution of some of those
common shares—

Mr. MoNTEITH: You could dilute your present holdings?

Mr. STEVvENS: The main point I want to make is that voting control is
one thing, actual ownership is entirely different in that the voting shares are a
relatively small amount in terms of dollars.

Mr. MonTEITH: But the 150,000 shares of the proposed Bank of Western
Canada will be voted en bloc?

Mr. STeVENS: That is correct.

Mr. MonNTEITH: And the York Trust’s 33,000 shares, totalling $495,000, will
be voted en bloc. Then the provisional directors have 2,500 shares, totalling
$37,500.

Mr. STEVENS: Yes.

Mr. MoNTEITH: This comes to 865,500 shares.

I was interested in your discussion with Mr. Horner, and just to follw that
up for one second, may I remind you that you said there would not be as much
enthusiasm if you did not put in approximately 50 per cent of the proposed risk
capital. The actual Bank Act only calls for approximately 1} million.

Mr. STEVENS: One million dollars.

Mr. MoNTEITH: There is a spread between that and $13 million, but in your
opinion this would certainly get it off the ground a lot faster than this sort of
thing.

Mr. STEVENS: This is a point that I think is very interesting. If you went
back to the Senate hearings at the time the Mercantile Bank applied for their
charter, you would find that the Mercantile Bank indicated that they would be
starting with $1 million of capital, and one of the things to which great
exception was taken during that committee hearing was when Mr. Muir of the
Royal Bank appeared and said it was almost ridiculous for a banking concern to
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think of going into business without $1 million capital in today’s banking
climate. Having read that, we felt that we should not come to you in parliament
and say first of all “Give us a charter and we will raise the money later” or
even say that we have $1 million, which is the minimum, because we will then
be open to criticism such as was raised with the Mercantile Bank hearing in
which it was said that $1 million was inadequate. It is difficult to say what is
the proper thing. The $13 million, as you say, I think is a good base from which
to start this type of concern.

Mr. MoNTEITH: Do you have a list of subscribers who will be receiving the
shares from the Wellington Financial Corporation if the charter is granted?

Mr. STEVENS: You mean shareholders?

Mr. MonTEITH: The list of subscribers who will be receiving shares. Do you
have that list? Could it be made available to the committee?

Mr. STEVENS: Yes. It is quite a book, but although I do not know how fast it
can arrive from Toronto I could have it here certainly by tomorrow. There are
2,000 names on that list.

Mr. MoNTEITH: May I ask a question very bluntly? Are you on it?

Mr. STEVENS: Me personally?

Mr. MONTEITH: Yes.

Mr. STEVENS: I cannot answer offhand if I am. However, if I am on it it is
not for a substantial amount.

Mr. HOoRNER (Acadia): Are the Stevens Securities on it?

Mr. STEVENS: Again, if they are, it would not be for a substantial amount.
As I say, the 2,000 shareholders are a representative group. We have put up
$3,700,000. When you ask if I am personally one of them, I would guess I may
have some of it but it is not a substantial amount.

Mr. MonTEITH: I do not like to get personal or anything like this but as a
result of looking over the list of British International I see that the Charlebois
family has quite a few. I was wondering whether you would be in a position to
control their votes and whether there were any immediate family connections
or how many votes out of these 2,000 you might personally control.

Mr. STEVENS: You are speaking in the context of this family?

Mr. MoNTEITH: The 2,000 that are being picked up by Wellington.

Mr. STEVENS: You are speaking in the context of this family type of control.
It will show up on the list but I would take it at a guess that it would be a
small number, maybe a thousand or less even.

Mr. LEwIs: A thousand shares or a thousand shareholders?

Mr. STEVENS: A thousand shares—the family is not that big.

Mr. MoNTErTH: I am assuming—you mentioned this yourself—that the $0.60
per share came from an application deposited with the Canada Permanent
Trust, or is it Wellington?

Mr. STEVEns: With the Canada Permanent. I can tell the number of shares
there because I know what was my dividend. I own 460 shares under the Bank
of Western Canada heading.

Mr. MoNTEITH: That would be in the 750 that has been allotted to Ontario?

Mr. STEVENS: 460 of those are in my own personal name.
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Mr. MonTEITH: How about the provisional directors? I notice they are in for
500 shares each. Have they made an application in any of these avenues?

Mr. STEVENS: I cannot be precise but to the best of my knowledge there is
nothing of significance in the holdings. I think you would find most of the
provisional directors would have somewhere around the 500 figure that I hold in
the Bank of Western Canada trustee certificates.

Mr. MoNTEITH: In the case of Canadian Finance do you have a list of the
shareholders or do you admit that the 17 per cent is, to all intents and purposes,
voted by yourself?

Mr. STEVENS: When you speak of me I just do not know in what context.
Mr. MoNTEITH: I imagine that you have control over these?

Mr. STEVENS: I cannot really say any more than I said last Tuesday on this
subject, that we have put before you a share breakdown of our various share
companies. We have indicated on this chart how the various companies are
interrelated with each other on a controlled basis—I emphasize that. I have gone
further and given you a list of individual common shares in B.L.LF. If you wish
the class “A” holders in B.L.LF., I could give you those.

Mr. MoNTEITH: You gave us some adjusted figures on these.

e (11: 10 am.)

Mr. STEVENS: On the common shares but I mean class “A” holders of B.LF.
which were given at the time of the Senate hearings. If you wanted those, I
could give them to you. Beyond the point of saying what is apparent there and
what is apparent on the chart I cannot say any more. If you add up the number
of shares in B.LLF. I own or are connected with me or my family, in voting
power it is 30 per cent. In other words, I have 30 per cent including all the
family holdings, 30 per cent voting power in British International Finance. That
is the beginning and the end of it. If you call that effective control or actual
control, it is a matter of opinion. From that point down the actual control is all
spelled out on the charts that we have shown to you. I would only emphasize
that control is one thing but the actual ownership of these shares is entirely
different in that the real benefit of the bank and the dividend from the bank are
going to go heavily, as Mr. Coyne said, probably 90 per cent or even higher, to
persons other than those that would be regarded as being in my family or
associated with me.

Mr. MoNTEITH: Ninety per cent?

Mr. STEVENS: I am talking of the dollar value. The point I was trying to
make to Mr. Horner is a thing that could probably clarify this greatly. If the
Canadian Finance were taken in its proper context, when we say 17 per cent
control by Canadian Finance we are talking purely on a control basis. As far as
dollars are concerned, they would not own more than 5 per cent of that amount.
In other words, the $3 million in Canadian Finance is owned in the main almost
entirely, or over 90 per cent of it, by the 2,600 shareholders of Canadian
Finance.

Mr. MoNTEITH: Of which you own 30 per cent?
Mr. STEVENS: No. I have very little direct holdings in B.I.F.

Mr. MonTEITH: What does British International control, 40 per cent?
23650—3
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Mr. STEVENS: No, it owns 40 per cent voting power, but in terms of actual
shares, the equity of the company, it would own less than 10 per cent. I say that
as a rough guess. In fact I could probably give you the figure from the 1964
statement. There has not been any material change since then. The total equity
in Canadian Finance is 3,308,611 shares. Our control of B.LF. is due simply to
the fact that we own the common shares which are the heavy voting shax:es.
They have 20 votes per share. Fifty thousand of those shares are outstanding
and our group owns those 50,000 shares.

Mr. CoyNE: May I interject at this point in answer to some of the questior}s
on control because I am not interested financially to any large extent and in
that sense I am not a member of the control group? This is, of course, a very
typical situation and I am going to name one company in particular because it is
well known and a good company, the Argus Corporation, which itself owns
interest in other companies and may be said to control them. Within the Argus
Corporation the control lies with the voting stock, the common stock. There is,
as well, a great volume of known voting stock with minor voting power which
is owned by the general public, but a certain group of people who are mainly
responsible for the management of the Argus Corporation do in fact have the
greater voting power.

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): Senator McCutcheon is familiar with that.

Mr. CoyNE: I am thinking for instance of E. P. Taylor. He has done a good
job of building up enterprises in Canada and I admire him for it. However, this
type of differentiation between ownership and earning on the one hand and
control of management and direction of policies of the companies on the other
hand is a familiar feature of modern industry. I do not think modern industry
could get along without it on the scale on which it operates.

Mr. MoNTEITH: I am not denying that point. Now we come back to the
present banking system.

Mr. STEVENS: Could I finish on that, Mr. Monteith? Of that $3,300,000, that
is the net worth of the Canadian Finance, we own 50,000 shares. Those 50,000
shares are worth approximately $6 per share, so of that amount we have about
$300,000 of the total picture.

Mr. MonNTEITH: But you do have a complete voting control?

Mr. STEVENS: It is not complete. Each of the class “A” people has one vote.
Here again is where I am making the reference, that that control can be
reduced by us very quickly because if we sell off that 50,000 block of common
shares the company is then controlled by the 2,600 shareholders who have no
connection with us.

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): You are not likely to sell the 50,000, are you?

Mr. STEVENS: It is not unlikely. For example, in answer to Mr. Horner’s
question about how we would respond to some provision in future banking
legislation, one of the very ready and quick ways in which we can respond is by
selling that block off, and B.LF. is then a non-controlled company.

Mr. More: Those shares have 20 votes each?

Mr. STEVENS: The common ones, yes. Of that, 2,600 that is, 2,449 of them,
are in the four western provinces, 1,000 in British Columbia.

Mr. MonTEITH: Is it fair to ask what the “A” shares in Canadian Finance
made last year per share?
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Mr. STEVENS: The “A” shares?

Mr. MoNTEITH: And the common shares.

Mr. STEVENS: They are equal in earnings. They participate equally on
earnings. We have not got the report and I could only give you a guess.

The CHAIRMAN: I am wondering how this relates to the actual subject
matter before us.

Mr. MonTeITH: I admit that particular question was an aside. I was
wondering if the common shares are the ones that tend to get capital apprecia-
tion.

Mr. STEVENS: No, they are exactly the same as you find in Argus. There are
two classes of shares. They both share equally as far as earnings and equity are
concerned and they are only different with respect to voting.

I would like to make a comment here partly in reference to Mr.
Horner’s comment about the very buoyant effect of the market and the fact we
could have sold a great deal more. It is true the Bank of Western Canada’s
certificates have sold with, I think, a very small exception, at issue price or
higher. However, the people who have bought Canadian Finance have not done
nearly as well. The shares came out at $7 and they are currently selling at
$4.50. You can see it is not always a winning proposition.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): Canadian Finance has not got the privilege of
parliament that you are asking us to give you.

Mr. MoNTEITH: In the case of British International, the class “A” shares
carry one vote and the common shares carry ten votes. Is that correct?

Mr. STEVENS: Yes.

Mr. MonNTEITH: Instead of going through all this I will ask whether you
agree with Mr. Horner that 50 per cent of the new Bank of Western Canada
stock is going to be controlled by yourself or your associated companies.

Mr. STEVENS: I would say, on the basis that we have been describing, that
17 per cent is in Canadian Finance and 32 per cent in Wellington Financial.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): And 3 to 4 per cent in York.

e (11: 20 am.)

Mr. MoNTEITH: Has the Alberta company applied for any of these shares in
the Western application?

Mr. STEVENS: Alberta Fidelity?

Mr. MONTEITH: Yes.

Mr. STEVENS: I have forgotten. Do you remember, Max?

Mr. Max RitcHIE (Vice-President, Alberta Fidelity Trust Company): When
the issue came out two years ago they subscribed for 5,000 shares, but about a
year later they had to divest themselves because apparently they could not
qualify. At the moment they hold absolutely none.

Mr. STEVENS: Mr. Max Ritchie is the Vice-President of Alberta Fidelity
Trust Company, and he is the chap I mentioned who is with Sydie, Sutherland
and Ritchie who distributed shares in Alberta.

Mr. MonTEITH: I think that is all I have to ask at the moment, Mr.
Chairman.

The CHAIRMAN: I now recognize Mr. Leboe.
23650—3}
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Mr. LEBOE: I would like to direct questions to Mr. Coyne.

Mr. Coyne, my first question has to do with the actual management of your
bank, and with the anticipated bank legislation. I presume you are the person to
whom I should direct these questions. If you were granted a charter you would
be interested in bank legislation.

In order to guide us in our thinking will you tell us whether you favour
more freedom of action in the field of mortgages on capital account or capital
assets than we have today. At the moment this comes under Section 88, and it is
the biggest area in which they operate. I am thinking now of certain types of
mortgage for the construction of plant and that sort of thing, on which they are
not allowed under the Bank Act to take security.

Mr. CoynNE: That is right, unless it is in the form of a corporation
debenture. They can buy a corporation debenture, including a secured deben-
ture, so in the case of any customer which is a corporation it is possible for the
bank to buy first mortgage bonds or debentures.

Mr. LEBOE: Yes, but I am thinking more of the capital loan structure, which
is not in that category.

Mr. CoyNE: Yes. My view would be generally in favour of opening up the
Bank Act to greater avenues of investment by the chartered banks, but only in
my opinion if other conditions of the Porter Commission Report are adopted
and only if in fact parliament will grant more charters to more chartered banks.

Mr. LEBOE: Exactly. Thank you.

My second question is in regard to the transfer of shares. There has been
some talk about this today. I am thinking in terms of parliament making some
provisions for more control in that connection. I am thinking of the situation we
have, for instance, with the Board of Broadcast Governors—heaven help us!

What I am trying to deal with is some protection, shall we say, for the
Bank of Western Canada—TI am not talking about the owners of the bank but of
the Bank of Western Canada itself—to continue to exist as such without being
forced into an amalgamation with one of the eastern banks.

Mr. CoyNE: Yes, I think you could very well provide that bank mergers
require the approval of parliament,

May I amplify a little my previous answer? My own views, of course, are
now well known to you as to the desirability of more competition and more
banks, and I would seriously suggest, although this is not the right moment for
it perhaps, that giving greater powers and greater opportunities to the chart-
ered banks should not be made effective until there are at least 15 chartered
banks in this country, unless possibly it is made effective to banks whose total
assets are less than $500 million.

Mr. LEBoE: Would you also connect you thoughts there to some degree of
Canadian control or Canadian ownership?

Mr. CoyNE: Yes. I am speaking purely as an individual now. I do not know
how far we can go along this field.

Mr. LEBOE: I should say I value your suggestions in this regard.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Leboe, we are in a very interesting area of discussion,
but at the last sitting I asked other members of the committee who had
questions to relate their questions rather strictly to the subject matter of the
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bill because this other general area of banking is likely to come before us at a
not too distant date. Perhaps I could make that comment again.

Mr. LeBoE: I think the witness did that when he gave his answer. He
related the fact that he wanted to see at least 15 more banks to the suggestions
that were made.

Mr. LAMBERT: Mr. Coyne did not say 15 more banks; he said 15 banks in
all.

Mr. CoyNE: I am speaking purely for myself. This does not represent a
corporate opinion in our group.
Mr. More (Regina City): You got the word, did you, Mr. Stevens!

Mr. CoyNE: I do not know whether I ever mentioned that to Mr. Stevens
before or not.

Mr. LEBOE: Would it be the intention or a possibility that the trust
companies which are the generators, shall we say, of this western bank would
become substantial depositors with the Bank of Western Canada in the initial
stages?

Mr. CoyNE: No, they would not. Each of these trust companies already has
its own banking connection. They maintain a bank account with a chartered
bank. There is no reason why that should be changed as far as we are
concerned. They might have banking connections with the Bank of Western
Canada as well, but not with a view to maintaining a large deposit, because that
is not how trust companies lay out their funds.

Mr. LEBOE: I was thinking about the interrelationship between trust com-
panies and the bank. We have the reverse situation. I shall come to the reverse
situation in a moment. It does have to do, Mr. Chairman, with applications for a
new bank.

I might as well deal with it right now, Mr. Chairman. In many cases it has
happened when a tight money policy has been in the wind, shall we say through
the moccasin telegraph if you want to call it that—

Mr. BaAsrForD: Bankers do not wear moccasins!

Mr. LEBOE: Caribou, then.

Mr. CoyNE: I have heard them described as ‘“barefoot boys from Bay
Street”!

Mr. LEBOE: These finance corporations have had the distinctive advantage
of boosting their line of credit prior to a tight money policy. In my banking
experience I have come slam bang up against the situation, so I know it exists,
and I know from confession of very, very high ranking bankers. Many a person
seeking consideration from a bank has been told to go to a finance company to
get their money. The only reason they could get it from the finance company
was that the line of credit previously established in the tight money policy was
one the bank offered. Therefore, one could take one’s loan out from a finance
company and the finance company would then take the paper over to the bank
and get the money that you should have got from the bank in the first place.
This is the triangle.

What I am talking about is the reverse situation: the trust companies
involved in this situation could make deposits with the chartered banks. As a
matter of fact, I understand in the thinking of the Bank of Western Canada
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there is something along this line in regard to other ways in which they intend
to expand their banking business if they get the charter.

Mr. BasrForp: It is all going into the Social Credit education fund!

Mr. LEBOE: That is a good place for it. We need more education.
I think it is an important area and certainly it would. seem to me that on
the basis of the possibility of expansion it might even be desirable.

e (11: 30 am.)
Mr. CoyNE: It has not entered into our thinking.
Mr. LEBOE: That is fine.

There is very much more I would like to speak about, Mr. Chairman. For
instance, I would like to ask a question about deposits and loans. However, I
will skip that for the time being.

I am thinking now of the conflict of interests. I am speaking of some of my,
shall we say, bitter banking experiences. After all, you want to be a bank in
western Canada, and that is where I live; and there are a lot of people like me
in western Canada.

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): Not too many!
Mr. HORNER (Acadia): Oh, yes, there are many. -

Mr. LEBOE: There are a lot of cases where corporations may be interested in
your area for a certain particular reason. Without going into the reasons, let us
say they have very, very close relations with the directors of the bank. Their
influence in connection with the consideration of someone else has entered into
the picture. This is where I think there is a strong argument for more banks,
because if there are more banks one can move from one bank to another in
order to avoid a situation of this nature.

Let me cite the example of a sale of a large property in which there was
direct influence—which could not be proved but which was known—from the
directors and the corporation that was involved. In this case a change of bank
by the customer did eliminate the difficulty. I am wondering whether or not you
have given consideration to this as one of the things in actual banking practice
that you would put forward as an argument for having more banks in Canada.

Mr. CoyNE: Yes, I think that is a good point. What you say is that an
applicant for a loan finds his application is considered by a board of directors or
a committee of directors which includes competitors of the applicant who obtain
private information therefore about his affairs. It may or may not influence
them; if they are able to conduct their minds in a certain way, it does not
influence them, and they give the application its proper consideration. But it is
not very satisfactory to the party concerned.

Mr. LEBOE: That is the point.

Mr. CoyNE: As you say, if there were more banks, there would be less
chance of this happening.

Mr. Mogre (Regina City): There would be if one did not have collusion to
such an extent that you could not move.

Mr. CoyNE: The more banks there are the more likely you are to find a
bank which does not have one of your competitors on its board.
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Mr. LEBOE: There is one other question I want to direct to Mr. Stevens. This
comes out of some remarks he made about overhead.

I understand you will be the President of the Bank of Western Canada.

Mr. STEVENS: No. I would be a director and probably an executive officer. It
is not definitely decided, but it is much more likely that Mr. Coyne would be
the President.

Mr. LEBOE: The question relates to overhead. In the case of B.C. Electric,
for instance, in certain circumstances it was what we might call just a very
pure way of extracting the cream of the business. Have you any idea what the
amount of overhead in directors would be in the institution, cost-wise, in
salaries? Would they get a dollar a year or five dollars a year?

Mr. STEVENS: It is more than a dollar. This is spelled out in some of the
annual reports pretty clearly. May I just take note of that question? I will see if
I can come up with the figure for you.

Mr. LEBOE: There is one other thing I would like to ask.

Yesterday I asked you a question about real estate and you said you would
be able to give me the answer later.

Mr. CoyNE: It bore on this question of whether a bank could own a
company which in turn owned real estate, did it not?

Mr. LEBOE: Whether it could loan money to a fully owned subsidiary of the
bank, which is the real estate branch of the bank.

Mr. CoyNE: I understand under the Bank Act the bank may carry on some
of its operations through a subsidiary company. I think, though I do not really
know this for certain, that some of the banks have wholly-owned subsidiaries
which own real estate in which the bank is located—the building. The Bank Act
provides that if the bank does have such a subsidiary it must make a special
report on it in its annual report; it must give the balance sheet and operating
results, I understand, of the subsidiary. I gather it can make loans to such a
subsidiary in the same way as it can make loans to anyone else.

Mr. LEBOE: I do not want you to get me wrong; I think we have one of the
best banking systems in Canada today. I may be wrong because I am not a
banker, but that is my view. I think this is important so far as the Bank of
Western Canada is concerned for the simple reason that if by the deposit of
certain funds with the Bank of Canada the ability of that particular bank to
loan money on a ratio basis is increased—roughly, shall we say, twelve times,
just to take a figure out of the hat—it would provide a way in which the bank
itself could loan to its subsidiary real estate company funds at a much more
liberal rate to expand the necessary facilities for meeting the demands of the
public in connection with the operation of the bank itself.

Mr. CoyNE: I do not follow that. I do not think it would make any
difference whether a company to whom it made a loan was wholly owned by
the bank, partly owned, or not owned at all.

Mr. LEBOE: As far as the operation of the Bank of Western Canada is
concerned, surely it would make a difference if you put a deposit in the Bank of
Canada because that would increase your ability to make loans.

Mr. CoyNE: It would not increase our ability to make loans. It might
increase the ability of the whole system. As far as we are concerned, we do not



108 FINANCE, TRADE AND ECONOMIC AFFAIRS  March 3, 1966

place a deposit with the Bank of Canada in order to increase our ability to make
loans. We only place a deposit with the Bank of Canada because we are
required to do so. It is a non-interest bearing deposit, so why should we do it?
We are required to do so as our deposits grow, and the first thing that has to
happen is that our deposits have to grow.

Mr. More: How is the rate on savings deposits determined? Are you
restricted under the Bank Act to a maximum figure?

Mr. CoyNE: You can pay anything you like in Canada. In the United States
they are controlled by federal authorities.

Mr. MoRre: How is it then that they are all alike?

Mr. CoyNE: I will be in a position to answer that in a few months time if
you grant our charter.

Mr. LEBOE: I have just one more point and then I will finish.

Are you saying, Mr. Coyne, that the amount of money you have on deposit
with the Bank of Canada in reserves has no bearing on the amount of loans that
you can make? This is hardly true, is it, according to the testimony of Graham
Towers before the Senate committee?

Mr. CoyNE: I certainly will not challenge the testimony of Mr. Graham
Towers, but I will have to leave that for another occasion because it goes into
the whole theory of monetary policy. As far as a small bank is concerned, it
cannot make loans unless it first acquires deposits.

Mr. LEBOE: It certainly can make loans if it has a deposit with the Bank of
Canada.

Mr. CoyNE: No, that has no bearing on it at all. All that means is that
instead of making a loan at interest, we have made a loan to the Bank of
Canada and obtained no interest on it.

Mr. LEBOE: But you are allowed to expand your credit as a result of that
deposit with the Bank of Canada?

Mr. CoynNE: I am sorry, sir, my view is that you have got it backwards. It is
the other way around. Because you expand your loans and deposits, you must
put a deposit with the Bank Canada. As I say, I really do not think I can get
into a discussion about that today.

Mr. LE.BOE: I will not get into an argument with you about which comes
first, the chicken or the egg, because the result is exactly the same, I will leave it
at. that. But, I think if you look at the testimony of Mr. Graham Towers you
will note he put it the other way around. But, as I say, it has the same result.

e (11: 40 am.)

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, before we proceed to the next member who
wishes to ask a question, I would like to take a moment to discuss our
procedure.

It is now 11.45 a.m. and this committee does not have permission to sit
while the House is sitting; the order of the House was only for last Tuesday.

Mr. Lambert has indicated that he wants to ask some questions and I
believe Mr. Horner has some further questions. Also, there may be others who
have not participated at all in the second round of questioning. Are there any
who have not participated in the second round and who would like to put
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further questions? If not, I would ask someone to make a motion that we ask
permission to sit today while the House is sitting.

Mr. Mogre (Regina City): I so move.

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): I second the motion.

The CHAIRMAN: A motion has been made by Mr. More and seconded by Mr.
McLean that we ask permission to sit today after the Orders of the Day.

Motion agreed to.

Mr. LAMBERT: Mr. Chairman, I hope that running with cap in hand every
time we wish to sit while the House is sitting does not become a practice. I
think this problem has to be cleared by government policy. We will have to
take the necessary steps to clear this up because it is nonsense to go running
with cap in hand to the House every time we have witnesses appearing before
us. We have a courtesy to show these witnesses and we also have a responsibili-
ty to get on with the business which has been referred to us. This is a most
inefficient way of conducting our business.

Mr. BASFORD: I agree with the comments made by Mr. Lambert.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): Are we going to sit until 12 o’clock today?

The CHAIRMAN: That would be my suggestion, and then we would adjourn
to the call of the Chair. If an order to sit after the Orders of the Day today is
granted we will do so and, if not, I suggest we meet tomorrow morning from
9.30 a.m. until 11 o’clock.

I personally feel, as your Chairman, that we are rapidly approaching the
time when the members of the House will have to decide whether we can sit
without going back to the House on each occasion, when the need seems to
arise. In my view, this request should be finalized at some point in the near
future, not only as a courtesy to the witnesses who from time to time appear
before us but in order to permit this committee to carry on the work with
regard to matters referred to it by the House. This is a matter with which
parliament itself would have to deal. It is a matter which I think various
members of the committee representing the various parties who are here should
take up with their particular House leaders so that when the question does arise
it will be possible to decide it without undue or lengthy adversary discussion in
the House.

I will now recognize Mr. Lambert.

Mr. BAsFoRD: The Chairman should be more aggressive in his conversations
with his House leader.

The CHAIRMAN: On that particular point, I think this is a subject which
should be carried forward in equal measure by all members of the various
parties of this committee to their respective leaders. I do not think this is the
time to get into a discussion on the question of responsibility. This is a matter
which must be taken up and clarified with the various parties.

I would now ask you to put your questions, Mr. Lambert.

Mr. LAMBERT: Mr. Chairman, I would refer Mr. Stevens to the testimony
given in 1964, at page 63 of the transcript, and I want to go back to the same
testimony to see whether certain things still apply. We must bear in mind that
although we are anticipating banking legislation we do not know what the
government in its wisdom is going to bring forward. With the change in the
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Minister of Finance there may be a complete reorientation in respect of certain
provisions of the act. 1
In the evidence given before the Senate Banking and Commerce committee
in May, 1964, this question was put to you by Senator McCutcheon:
In selling that control you would thereby transfer eﬁecfcive control of
Wellington, effective control of York, and possible effective control of
[ B

That is, if you were so inclined. And, your answer to the question was:
I think if you use the word “effective” it is generally true, yes.
Does that answer still apply?

Mr. STEVENS: Yes.

Mr. LAMBERT: And, by doing so you would be disposing of effective control
of some 430,000 shares in the new bank.

Mr. STEVENS: Again, I would say in the context we described, that is true.

Mr. LAMBERT: Now, notwithstanding the provisions of your charter that
prohibit foreign holdings you could still transfer as of today effective control in
a new bank to a foreign group—and I am assuming that there is no change in the
Bank Act, in the general banking legislation with regard to foreign holdings.

Mr. STEVENS: You mean if our bank bill is proposed and passed?

Mr. LAMBERT: Yes.

Mr. STeVENS: No. If we sold, the prohibition against foreign ownership
would extend through in effect, upstream to some foreign interest who, in turn,
would then control B.I.LF. I would have to call on our legal adviser in respect of
this but I think that is true.

Mr. LAMBERT: Well, to refresh your memory as to the testimony given at
the time—and I do not know whether or not you have a transcript of this
evidence—this question was put by Senator McCutcheon:

Would you consider that 43.3 per cent of the shares of a bank held
by one group would constitute effective control of the bank?

Your answer was: “Yes”.
I continue:
Senator McCuTCHEON: So that despite the provisions in your charter

that prohibit foreign holdings you could convey effective control of the
new bank to any foreign group you wanted to very readily.

Mr. STeEVENS: Except that we will not, and we will give any
agreement or assurance to that effect that is required. Any company
holdings that we have set up have been deliberately set up by us to be
able to show that there is control in firm hands. We will give any
assurance that is required that that control will not go out of the country.

Senator McCuTcHEON: I suggest that you could only give that
assurance with regard to yourself, and that having sold, as some people
do sell, this assurance cannot pass on down the line.

Now, this is what I want to be sure about.

e (11: 50 am.)
Mr. STEVENS: I would be pleased if you could read Senator Leonard’s reply.
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Mr. LAMBERT:

Senator LEONARD: It could be put in the statute, if necessary. If there
is any question then put it in the statute.

There would have to be a special provision in the act chartering the Bank of
Western Canada, but whether such an entailment would be effective, I do not
know. In any event, it is quite conceivable that even though your intentions
were pure that it should not pass to foreign control it is theoretically possible
today that if the Bank of Western Canada was granted a charter a month later
you and your associates could sell effective control to another group who, in
turn, could sell to a foreign group. Does that situation apply?

Mr. STEVENS: My understanding is no, but I will have to call upon our legal
adviser in that respect.

Mr. LAMBERT: Let us have the answer because, to me, it is a problem.

Mr. D. GorooN BrAir (Parliamentary Agent): This whole matter of the
shareholdings in the company is dealt with in clause 5 of the proposed bill, and
the main effect of this clause—and I think I can summarize it—is that the
non-resident shareholdings in the company in the aggregate amount cannot
total more than 10 per cent. Then, there is in subsection 8 of the clause a
definition of non-resident which not only includes a natural person who is not a
resident of Canada but also any corporation which is by any means whatsoever
under the control of a non-resident of Canada. So, to the fullest extent possible
provision has been made here for prohibitions against transfers of shares which
would have the effect of transferring more than 10 per cent of the share capital
of this company to non-resident natural persons or to corporations which are
controlled by non-residents.

Mr. LAMBERT: But surely you will agree with me that the definition of
non-resident or resident in Canada is your qualification in giving it, and
Canadian content is just window dressing. May I with the greatest respect, say
that there are a number of ways whereby Canadian laws are defeated in this
regard. All a foreign owner would have to do is transfer his man to Toronto or
Winnipeg; he becomes a resident. Or, you could have some people from, say,
London or France, because all it means is residence.

Mr. BLAIR: Perhaps I should have gone into this in greater detail. What Mr.
Lambert is saying, of course, is if the only requirement is that the registered
shareholder is a resident of Canada, then some dummy could be put up as the
shareholder with the effective beneficial share interest being held by a non-resi-
dent. Now, this has been provided against by subsection 3 where it prohibits
transfers to nominees, agents, trustees or other people acting on behalf of
non-residents. And, subsection 6 is an unusual and, I would think, an excep-
tional provision, which provides that the directors are empowered to take
whatever steps that are necessary to satisfy themselves as to what particular
interest is being represented in any shares being presented for registration.

Mr. MAcDpONALD (Rosedale): Mr. Chairman, on a point of order, I was about

to put some questions in respect of clause 5 of the bill last Tuesday but I was
ruled out of order at that time and advised to put the question again when we
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were going through the bill clause by clause. If we are going to deal with this
matter at this time I would ask permission to put my questions.

The CHAIRMAN: Your point of order is well taken. The purpose of calling
the preamble was to permit questions and discussions on the broader aspects of
this matter and I think it would be harmful to the general orderly conduct of
business if we went into clause by clause study at this point.

Mr. LAMBERT: An answer was given in respect of the possibility of what I
was looking at and we have been advised that this is prohibited by a statute.
I suggest we now know what the problem is and when we come to clause 5 we
'will actually see whether it does. This has been the sole extent of my
questioning at this time.

Mr. STEVENS: I can say that when we originally drafted the bill it was
certainly our intention to stop any possibility along the lines you suggest, and if
the provisions are not adequate I am quite willing to have them amended in
whatever way it is found necessary to make them foolproof.

Mr. LAMBERT: It is not so much with you and your group; it concerns the
people thereafter as well.

Mr. STEVENS: And, of course, every existing chartered bank in Canada is in
the same position right now.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, Mr. Horner has indicated he has further
questions. Perhaps I first should inquire whether there are any other members

who have not participated in the second round of questioning and who would
like to do so.

Mr. McLeEaN (Charlotte): I may have one or two questions later on, Mr.
Chairman.

Mr. CLERMONT: Perhaps Mr. Horner will put his question at the time we are
going through the bill.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): No, not the one I have in mind. I would like to put it
at this time. My question arises out of the statement made by Mr. Coyne to Mr.
Leboe in respect of applications for bank charters and merging of banks. You
stated you feel that bank mergers should be approved by parliament.

Mr. CoynNe: Yes. I am not advocating it but that would be a way, if
parliament wished to retain control over mergers as well as over granting
charters.

Mr. HOrRNER (Acadia): In other words, you are disagreeing with the
suggestion laid out in the bank legislation last spring that bank charters should
be granted by Order-in-Council.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Horner, this is a very important question but you have
not related it to this particular bill which is before us.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): I think it is related directly because here we have a
group asking for a charter and there are two others who have indicated their
intention to do so. In my opinion, it has a direct relationship.

Mr. Coyne: I will answer the question. I do not disagree with the proposal
that bank charters could be granted by letters patent, and I would apply the
same thing to any kind of incorporation; I do not see why the procedure that
was adopted, for perhaps good reasons, 100 years or more ago is necessarily the
best way to get companies incorporated.
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Mr. HORNER (Acadia): Do you realize you have just contradicted yourself?

Mr. CoyNE: Well, that is a terrible thing, but I have done it more than once.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): But from what I understood you to say before you
felt that this could be the best way for charters and mergers to be controlled.

Mr. Coy~NE: I did not intend to indicate I opposed the idea of granting
charters by letters patent; it requires an amendment of the Bank Act. But when
is it going to be revised? I do not have any confidence when that will happen.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): Well, this is the whole question that comes before
me and this committee must face it. Parliament is going to be presented with a
new Bank Act this year; we are relatively certain of that. Do you not agree?

Mr. CoyNE: I do not know. The government has said they are going to do so
and that is all I know.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): They are only asking for an extension of the present
act until the end of this year.

Mr. CoyNE: This is the third time.

Mr. HOoRNER (Acadia): This may be but if the government did not feel there
was going to be new legislation presented and passed this year they would have
asked for a further extension until the end of this year, would they not?

Mr. CoyNE: I do not know.

The CHAIRMAN: The present discussions have to do with the business of the
House and I am not too sure that it is pertinent, strictly speaking, to the matters
before us.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): In any case, I see that it is 12 o’clock.

The CHAIRMAN: Yes, and in the light of our previous discussions as to
procedure I now declare this meeting adjourned.

The committee adjourned.

AFTERNOON SITTING

e (4:00 pm.)

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, I think we have a quorum. I will call the
meeting to order.

I believe when we adjourned this morning we seemed to be on the home
stretch in a second round of questioning of Messrs. Coyne and Stevens. Is there

anyone else who has not asked questions in the second round who would like to
do so now?

Mr. MonTEITH: I just have a couple of questions, Mr. Chairman. As I
understand it you said in evidence before the Senate committee that you were
not going to use this bank for the banking of any of your companies, Mr.
Stevens. Am I right?

Mr. STEVENS: Generally speaking, yes.

Mr. MoONTEITH: You said you were going to maintain your present banking
connections.

Mr. STEVENS: We are currently dealing with six of the eight banks. I think
if they deal with us we will carry on dealing with them.
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Mr. MoNTEITH: There was something in the Senate evidence about a deal
with the Empire Life. I think this came up after the committee had been sitting,
did it not?

Mr. STEVENS: I think that is right.

Mr. MoNTEITH: Would you mind explaining that?

Mr. STEVENS: That was only in reference to Canadian Finance and In-
vestments. The Empire Life subscribed initially for some of the stock in the
Bank of Western Canada, and subsequently to that they also bought 10 per cent
of the voting control stocks of Canadian Finance and Investments. To the best
of my knowledge they still retain that, although I cannot say for sure.

Mr. MonNTEITH: Do they still have a subscription to the Bank of Canada
stocks?

Mr. STEVENS: To the best of my knowledge they do. They have never told
me that they sold or disposed of it.

Mr. MonNTEITH: Through what medium was that done? Through Wellington?

Mr. STEVENS: No, directly.

Mr. MoNTEITH: You mentioned the number of connections you had. There
are only some 700 holders in Ontario, so they could not have a lot.

Mr. STEVENS: There are 128,000 shares held by 750 holders. We spoke of
Empire Life. I believe this may not all be in the name of Empire Life and it
would be better to say that the Jackman group took the stock. Whether they
put it into their various companies, I am not sure.

Mr. MonNTEITH: I do not have any more questions except the following one.
Is it true that in the past banks have been opened with head offices in other
parts of Canada, have then decided that eastern Canada was the best place in
which to do business, and eventually have moved back?

Mr. CoyNE: I am not sure if that has happened or not; perhaps Mr.
Elderkin could tell you. However, banks have been started in the past—a few at
least—with head offices in western Canada. Subsequently they have merged
with some other banks.

Mr. MONTEITH: In your opinion, does the present charter prohibit you from
doing that?

Mr. CoynE: I do not believe so. Under the present procedure, the merger, if
that is what you mean, requires the approval of the Treasury Board or the
Cabinet.

Mr. MoNTEITH: I am just talking of changing head offices. If you get the
charter and start with a head office in Winnipeg, is there anything in the present
charter which would prohibit you from moving your head office back east?

Mr. CoyNE: Strictly speaking, so far as the head office is concerned, that is
fixed by the Act and you could not change it without coming back to
parliament.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any further questions?

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): I would like to ask a few questions, Mr, Chair-
man. Of course some of these bank mergers have been made for convenience.
We know that. When a new bank starts out, it is going to be a few years before
any money is made or any profit is made, I think. You have around 49 per cent
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of the shares. Is this only 49 per cent because you want to stay at arm’s length
from your other companies?

Mr. STEVENS: No, it just happened.

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): Mr. Coyne has spoken about the Bell Telephone
Company divesting itself of rights. Of course millions and millions of dollars
were necessary to create A.T. & T. Is it your intention to divest yourself of the
shares and make money in that way if you cannot organize a profitable bank in
four or five years?

Mr. CoyNE: The rights would not be worth very much in that case. I
mentioned this as something that has happened.

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): I beg your pardon, Mr. Coyne. I was asking this
question of Mr. Stevens. It was his idea that he would sell off the rights in the
future and dispose of most of his stocks in order to make a profit, because you
cannot make a profit in the next five or six years, I think, from running a bank.
You have many shareholders in your other companies who are interested in this
bank; and if their money does not make a profit in this bank, where are they
going to make the profit?

Mr. STEVENS: On that point I would say that the selling off of some of our
shares is always a possibility. I would say it is extremely unlikely that we
would be selling off shares to any large degree in the next five years, and I
could say fairly safely within ten years. On the other hand, I would think we
would tend not to exercise our rights if we got to the point of raising more
capital. The third possibility, a more likely one than the selling of shares in the
sense you mentioned, is that the C.F.I. control position could be reduced very
easily by us, and in that way that company would become uncontrolled by us
and would be in the hands of the 2,600 shareholders.

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): I was not thinking of control but of profit for
your shareholders. For a very small amount of cash you have control of this
company, and your shareholders have quite a big investment in it. Is it going to
be profitable to them?

Mr. STEVENS: I could not agree with you when you say it would be five
years before it would make a profit. I do not know that we would make much of
a profit in the first year, but certainly from the third year on there should be a
fairly good profit shown. I would also add that the feeling of our group is very
much more long-term than any immediate gain that might be made. In my own
instance, I am comparatively young and basically I am thinking of a 20-year
type of situation, as opposed to any immediate type of sale.

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): Then your shareholders will not profit from the
bank for some time?

Mr. STEVENS: They will through dividends.
Mr. McLeAN (Charlotte): Do you expect to pay dividends very shortly?

Mr. STevENS: I would say within a reasonable period we hope to be paying
dividends.
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e (4:10 p.m.)

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): This is a question addressed to Mr. Coyne. I wish
here to quote Mr. Graham Towers when he spoke at the 119th Annual Meeting
of the Canada Life Assurance Company.

He said:

To my mind, some of the most interesting features of the economic
scene in 1965 are to be found in the field of credit, both domestic and
international.

In Canada, bank deposits—the major component of the money sup-
ply—rose by 2 billion and 92 million dollars, or 13 per cent in the year
ended 30th November last.

Then he goes on to say:

The offset for the increased deposits in recent times has been, in the
main, bank loans.

Further on he says:
To the extent that business activity is supported by unsound exten-
sion of credit, there is obviously a day of reckoning to be faced.
The problem of deterioration in the quality of credit has been raised
on numerous occasions in recent years.
Do you agree that there has been a deterioration in the quality of credit?
The CHAIRMAN: Order, please.
Mr. McLeAaN (Charlotte): This has quite a lot to do with this bank.
The CHAIRMAN: Could you relate your question to the bill before us?
Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): I am doing so. Let me go on.

Mr. CoynE: I think it is a general experience that in boom times when it is
easy to make loans there may be a tendency for people to get credit in cases
which afterwards prove to be unsound, because some business ventures that are
undertaken in boom times do not do so well when the boom changes to a
recession.

Mr. McLeaN (Charlotte): Mr. Towers goes on to say:

Of course, the whole object of the exercise was to suggest that we
should try to profit in the future from the lessons of the past, and also to
point out that the world is in a much better position to deal with such
problems than it was thirty-six years ago. But to a generation of lenders,
and borrowers, who have never had their fingers seriously burnt until
very recently, it is hard to get such a message across.

When you say the bank will be making money within the next two or three
years maybe you belong to that generation?
Mr. Towers then says:

While all the facts behind the failure of Atlantic Acceptance and the
related difficulties of other companies are not yet known, it is obvious
that their lending and investment policies were unsound.

I notice a number of banks got their fingers burnt in Atlantic Acceptance.
They lent them quite a lot of money.
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Mr. STEVENS: I hope you noticed one other thing. None of our compames
held any stocks in Atlantic Acceptance at all.

Mr. McLeaN (Charlotte): Do you believe that the granting of charters to a
lot of new banks is going to help the deterioration of the quality of credit?

Mr. CoyNE: No, sir. The new banks will be very careful indeed in the kind
of loans they make.

Mr. McLeAN (Charlotte): I still do not think you will make money in the
first few years.

Mr. CoATES: Whose speech did you quote from?

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): Mr. Graham Towers at the 119th Annual Meeting
of the Canada Life Assurance Company.

Mr. LAMBERT: Following what Mr. McLean has been saying, I wonder if the
same strictures have always been considered when we have been incorporating
various trust companies lately, because I think they are engaged in the same
sort of business one way or another.

One problem that concerns me a little, Mr. Stevens, is that if we look at the
Bank Act as proposed last year we see a very serious limitation on the extent of
individual shareholders. On the assumption that western Canada will get its
charter and that the Act, which has not yet been disclosed to us, were to be
brought in, and on the assumption it will be implemented, you would suddenly
be faced with a requirement to divest yourself down to the statutory limits.
Unless there were some sort of phasing out clause do you not think you might
be faced with an almost “fire sale” situation with regard to your holdings?

Mr. STEVENS: No. I believe what was contemplated in that bill was that we
as a new company would be allowed to hold more than the minimum or the
maximum that was prescribed but that we would have to agree to a plan of
coming down to the limit. I believe that before we would receive our licence we
would have to make our peace with the Treasury Board and adhere to what
they felt was the desirable method of doing this. I would say this is something, I
am fairly confident, that we would work out with the Treasury Board rather
than be faced with what you call a fire sale. However, if they insisted on
immediate divestment, some type of rights issued to our shareholders might be
a possibility; but I would emphasize that we sincerely believe it would be
wrong for a new bank to allow control to get too far away from the initial
group because any other group might come in and, through a 10 per cent
holdmg, end up controlling the bank. Therefore we do feel we have a problem
in the sense that, while it would be nice to say there would be complete
non-control in the 1n1t1a1 phase, it is a very critical thing.

Mr. LAMBERT: I agree with you as a matter of pure common sense.

Mr. MAcDONALD (Rosedale): Can I pursue this point with Mr. Stevens? As I
recall it, clause 57 in the last session’s bill says that the terms and conditions
would be imposed by the Treasury Board itself, so that it is ultimately the
government agency which would decide the circumstances under which you
could do so.

Mr. STEVENS: And we have to abide by whatever they require.

Mr. CoyNE: Does not the same thing apply in relation to existing bank

holdings of stocks in trust companies?
23650—4
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- Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): I think it certainly would apply with regard to
any holdings of existing bank stocks. : ; ’

Mr. CoyNE: It could be the other way around. Instead of the case of
somebody owning shares in banks, it is the bank owning shares in trust
companies, and some degree of divestment would be called for there also.

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): Under the investment powers?

Mr. CoyNE: There was a list in the Financial Post of what banks would
have to dispose of what trust companies, and obviously they could not do it
overnight. )

Mr. LAMBERT: If I may interject here, even under the amendments to the
Trust Companies Act of last year, when the Superintendent of Insurance finds
he does not like to mix holdings, the trust or insurance company is given six or
nine months in which to put its house in order.

Mr. CoyNE: It might take longer than that sometimes.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, if there are no further general questions at this
stage, I would ask these witnesses to step aside and I would like to call on Mr.
Elderkin, the Inspector of Banks. You might want to ask him questions relevant
to this bill. i
1 In the meantime I would like to draw to the attention of the committee
that I have received several telegrams from people who identify themselves as
among the original petitioners for the Bank of Western Canada and who urge
the committee to vote in support of the bill that is before them. I do not think it
is necessary to read these telegrams, but I just bring them to your attention. I
might say, Mr. Lambert, these telegrams arrived several days ago. I will hand
them to the clerk to be added to the files and records.

Mr. Elderkin, will you tell the committee what is your official title.

® (4: 20 p.m.) :
Mr. ELDERKIN (Inspector-General of Banks): Inspector-General of Banks.
The CHAIRMAN: What does that mean?

Mr. ELDERKIN: I am appointed under the provisions of the Bank Act to
supervise the chartered banks and the two Quebec savings banks.

The actual duty imposed on me is to inspect the banks at least once in
every year to see that the banks are carrying out the provisions of the Bank
Act, or at least to see that they are not violating the provisions of the Bank Act
in any way, and that they are in a strong financial position.

The CHAIRMAN: What do you have to do with applications before parlia-
ment in connection with new banks?

Mr. ELpERKIN: Nothing except to answer any inquiry and sometimes to give
advice.

The CHAIRMAN: Do you have any comments along those lines that you
would like to make to the committee at this time.

Mr. ELDERKIN: No. Normally, as I think I have said before in other places,
when inquiries are made with regard to possible incorporation of new banks we
suggest that the capital should be somewhat in excess of the minimum
requirements under the Bank Act, namely $5 million subscribed and $500,000
paid up. That is really a very small capital to start out with. We also suggest
that the bank should provide out of its capital contributions some premium on
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shares in order to set up a reserve to start off with because it is possible that
they may not commence on a profitable basis and would not like to see the
paid-up capital impaired.

The CHAIRMAN: Could you confirm or otherwise to the committee that these
capital requirements have been met?

Mr. ELDERKIN: In the case of this bank?

The CHAIRMAN: Yes.

Mr. ELDERKIN: Yes, they have.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Lambert, may I call on you?

Mr. LaMBERT: Just what factor do you apply to the statutory requirements
in order to bring, shall we say, the act up to the present-day conditions taking
into account depreciation of the dollar, etcetera? Do you apply a factor of one
plus 30, one plus 40, or a factor of 1} or 27

Mr. ELDERKIN: No, Mr. Lambert, we have never discussed a factor in the
matter. Any application that has come before the Department and before me
has made provision at least for a very substantial capital contribution, such as
in the present case. I think they are proposing to start off with a paid-up capital
of $8 million and $5 million reserve. Am I right?

Mr. CoYNE: Yes.

Mr. ELDERKIN: This, of course, is greatly in excess of the minimum
requirements of the act.

We have had many inquiries over the past several years, almost entirely
verbal with the exception of two others, and we have given them the same
advice always. But with the exception of two others, none has come back.

Mr. LAMBERT: There is a question that I would like to ask if I may be
allowed to ask a general question.

You will recall your testimony before the Senate Committee of some 20
months ago with regard to this application. Is there any variation in any degree
or in any important matter in what you indicated at that time and what you
would say now that you would care to make known to the committee? Is the
situation the same?

Mr. ELDERKIN: I cannot think of anything, no.

Mr. LAMBERT: Have you any additional information that you would care to
give to the committee, information beyond that which you supplied to the
Senate Committee?

Mr. ELDERKIN: No, I think not with respect to this bank.

Mr. LaMBeERT: Or to the banking system as a whole? I notice a rather
extensive historical inquiry was made by the honourable senators.

Mr. ELpERKIN: This arose, Mr. Lambert, over the question whether a
regional bank can be a success, more than anything else. I think with all due
respect to the senators, the comparison with regional banks of past days is not
really valid. The regional banks that did fail in past decades did not have, for
instance, deposits with the Bank of Canada and were not under any supervision
to speak of at all. But some of them started in almost depressed times, and some
of them were of course not very honestly run.

23650—43}
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I think it has been said before in this committee, and it has been said in the
Senate committee, that every bank you have today was a regional bank at one
time. It had to be. One has to start in some place. One does not start right off
with branches from coast to coast; one has to grow.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there further questions from the members of the
committee for Mr. Elderkin?

Mr. MonNTEITH: I just wonder, Mr. Chairman, how Mr. Elderkin would
explain the recent mergers of the Imperial and the Bank of Commerce, and the
Toronto and Dominion Banks. It has been said that it was so they would be in a
position to handle larger business.

Mr. ELDERKIN: If we were to go back over the mergers since 1954 possibly
it would be helpful.

The first one was the Toronto-Dominion. They found themselves—both of
them—fairly well concentrated in Ontario, percentage wise, as far as branches
were concerned. But the reason they gave for a merger was that the amal-
gamated bank would have sufficient coverage in the province of Ontario and
they could expand their resources to other parts of Canada to make a more
national bank on that scale. This was the main reason for it at that time.

The merger of Barclays and Imperial was I think caused by the fact that
Barclays had rather lost interest in continuing in Canada. They never really
tried to become a national bank. They operated more as an agency of their
parent bank than they did as a Canadian bank.

Then in turn, of course, the Imperial, which included Barclays, was merged
with Commerce. The reason they gave at that time for doing so was that with
the great growth of large corporations and large borrowers in Canada they
would be in a better position to give accommodation with the lines of credit
which were needed.

I would like to add just for the record that not one of these mergers was
occasioned by any impaired financial condition on the part of any of the
amalgamated banks.

Mr. MoNTEITH: May I ask one further question, Mr. Chairman?

If we were faced with an amendment to the Bank Act within the next few
weeks similar to the amendment that was placed before us last year, would you
feel that we would be wise to accept this charter today—and you have heard the
evidence, you know all about it—or do you think we should defer a decision
until that is placed before us? I will go back and just say this: were it to be the
same as last year’s amendment, where would that put us with regard to this
new bank?

Mr. ELDERKIN: I really cannot see that that is something you need to be
concerned about, Mr. Montieth, because you have a peculiar legislation—or I
think it is peculiar—in Canada in that when a bank act is passed it is a charter of
all the banks. In effect, the charter is cancelled and the act becomes the charter.
So the new bank would have to comply with that no matter what its original
provisions were, unless in the charter it over-rode—deliberately over-rode
—the bank act as it existed then; and again, the bank act can override
that when it comes into effect. So the act always is the governing legislation,
regarding the banks, no matter what is in the original charter.

Therefore, I think that is something about which you do not need to be
concerned from that point of view.
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Mr. CoaTEs: Is there not a danger here to certificate holders in that if the
proposed amendments to the Bank Act were of such a nature that the charter
which we would grant could not secure a licence, because of the financial set-up
as is indicated by the evidence, and as a result of that the bank could not
become a going concern? Would there not be a danger to the people who have
already invested their money in certificates?

e (4: 30 p.m.)

Mr. ELpERKIN: If I understand your question properly, you are now
bringing up the point whether the bank can obtain a certificate to commence
business.

Mr. CoaTEs: No, the certificates about which I am talking are the certifi-
cates that have been sold.

Mr. ELDERKIN: You spoke about a license, which in the Bank Act, is called a
certificate to commence business.

Mr. CoaTtes: I am talking about certificates which have been purchased by
individual Canadians and which will become shares as soon as the bank secures
a charter.

Mr. ELDERKIN: Your applicants have already said, Mr. Coates, that they are
quite prepared to bring themselves under the Bank Act when the new act is
brought into effect. I cannot prophesy what is going to be in the Bank Act at all,
not until Parliament decides, but I hardly think that any legislation that would
be harmful to the shareholders and certificate holders of this bank would be any
more harmful to this, if you will, than it would be to any other bank.

Mr. CoaTEs: I will accept that other banks are much more broadly based in
the number of shareholders they have and the fact that effective control is not
so significantly indicated as it is in this particular case. The thing that concerns
me to a degree is that Mr. Stevens has already given his opinion that he would
not want the present financial basis of the bank disturbed, at least for a period
of years, because control would be lost of the way they wished the bank to go in
order to make a profit.

Mr. ELDERKIN: I am rather cynical about that sort of thing because I find
that boards of directors perpetuate themselves, no matter what shares they
control.

Mr. CoAaTes: That is one of the things we have here too.

Mr. LaArLAMME: Do you not think it will be necessary to have particular
provisions for newly incorporated banks when we amend the Bank Act, at least
for the boards of directors, the participation in holdings, and the number of
shares?

Mr. ELDERKIN: I do not think it would be proper for me to offer an opinion
about what should be in the new bank act, quite frankly.

Mr. LAMBERT: Not at this stage.

Mr. ELpErRKIN: This is a matter of whether there are special provisions.
There were special provisions in Bill No. C-102 to which I think Mr. Stevens
referred, and that is that there could be holdings in excess of the limits they
prescribed for a period of time, with consent of the Treasury Board.
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Mr. MoRe: The Treasury Board always had the authority, though, or would
have.

Mr. ELDERKIN: Only in banks incorporated in that period.

Mr. MoRE: That is what I mean—authority rests with them.

Mr. ELDERKIN: That is right.

Mr. MoRE: Supposing this application were to pass the House of Commons,
how long would you anticipate it would be before they would get their
certificate, which in effect is their goal.

Mr. ELDERKIN: The Treasury Board consists of five ministers, and I am sorry
but I cannot prophesy what their action is going to be. Normally, the Treasury
Board has to be satisfied that they are going to start business in a reasonable
position. Probably at that time—and I am simply making a guess, if you will—in
circumstances such as are likely to occur with this bank, they would probably
require an undertaking from the bank about divesting some of their shares, or a
large percentage of their shares, within a stated period of time, particularly if
the new bill is before the House of Commons at that time and has similar
provisions to those contained in Bill No. C-102 in the last parliament.

Mr. LAMBERT: May I ask a supplementary question to that?

What do you anticipate is a normal time—a matter of two or three months?

Mr. ELDERKIN: No. I think, Mr. Lambert, it would have to be two or three
years in normal circumstances.

Mr. LAMBERT: I am not thinking of the period for divesting. Assuming
assent to the bill, then there are certain mechanics which have to take place
between the incorporators and yourself and the Treasury Board before you
issue the certificate and they can open up their doors and say “We are in
business.”

Mr. ELDERKIN: I do not have anything to do with that particular part of it,
unless my advice is asked by the Treasury Board. However, the act as it is
today simply says that the Treasury Board has to be satisfied that the expenses
of incorporation were reasonable. However, they can lay down special provi-
sions before they do issue the certificate, and that is entirely within their
discretion.

I would assume that if they did lay down these particular provisions and
they were accepted by the applicants or by other new banks, it would not take
very long before the certificate could be issued.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Clermont.

Mr. CLERMONT: I understand that at the end of 1965 there were about 5,500
branches throughout Canada. Do you have a rough idea how many of these
5,500 branches were in the four western provinces?

Mr. ELDERKIN: In 1965, if I remember rightly, we had about 5,700 branches
throughout Canada. I am sorry, I do not have those figures in front of me. I
have them in the office, and I can easily get them for the committee. Obviously,
over half of the whole banking system would be in the provinces of Quebec and
Ontario.

Mr. CLERMONT: And in Winnipeg?

Mr. CoyNE: There were 1,641 in the western provinces.
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Mr. ELDERKIN: We can get the figure for the city of Winnipeg if you wish to
have it.

Mr. CLERMONT: Yes, I would like it.

The CHAIRMAN: Have you any further question, Mr. Clermont?
Mr. CLERMONT: No.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Macdonald is next on my list.

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): I would like to ask a question on the point of
the time limit for a certificate. I notice in Bill No. C-102 there is a time limit of
one year. Presumably the experience has been that the certificate has been
given one year after the letters patent become effective. Is that so?

Mr. ELDERKIN: In any of the incorporations since 1929, yes. But this did not
always happen before the turn of the century. :

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): That is all.
The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Horner I think is next.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): If this has been asked I apologize for asking it again.
I notice in the Senate Committee report of two years ago it is stated that it is
part of your job to look into and advise chartered banks with regard to certain
loans they may make or when you feel they have overextended themselves in
some area of their loaning. Am I right in this?

Mr. ELDERKIN: I think, Mr. Horner, not in regard to loans they may make.
It is not my job to tell a bank what loans they may make. I may criticize them
afterwards for making them.

Mr. HOrNER (Acadia): Yes, that is what I mean. But you criticize them in
the sense of advising them not to go any further in that particular area? Am I
right?

Mr. ELDERKIN: It has happened on one or two occasions when a bank
seemed to be getting overextended in one particular industry, and those were in
many years past; but thank goodness it is many years past since industries were
the cause of a great deal of difficulty for a bank which tried to concentrate in
that way. I suppose one could give as an example the pulp and paper industry
in the 30’s.

® (4:40 pm.)

Mr. HorNER (Acadia): To go a little further, when looking at bank loans do
you also take a look at bank deposits?

Mr. ELDERKIN: I can look at anything if I wish, Mr. Horner. If you look
at the Bank Act you will see that everything is open to my inspection.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): What is your view with regard to western Canada
being a surplus depository area, if you understand that phrase?

Mr. ELDERKIN: I understand what you mean. In the first place, I could not
give you any statistics and, if I did, I would be required to say they were not
very reliable. I will tell you why I am of this opinion. It is because you have
deposits that might originate in the western provinces which really were the
result, if you will, of action taken by someone in the central provinces. This is
also true as far as loans are concerned. It can be very true in that respect in this
way: If you have a company which has subsidiaries it might be based in the
central provinces but have a subsidiary in a western province, and the subsidiary
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will be borrowing on its own account. So, it never has been considered that
provincial statistics on loans and deposits are very reliable, and we gave up
collecting them many years ago.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): In other words, you can neither confirm nor deny
Mr. Coyne’s statement that the west has a surplus of deposits?

Mr. ELDERKIN: I cannot although I would think that it has had; I would guess
it has had for the last good many years.

Mr. More (Regina City): We always knew that the east milked us.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): Yes.

Mr. ELDERKIN: I think actually I would extend that by saying as long as
you have, in general, substantial wheat groups in the prairie provinces you
would generate a great amount of deposits.

Mr. LEwis: If the wheat is sold.

Mr. ELDERKIN: Yes, but the deposits would be generated there.

Mr. CoaTEs: You were speaking about mergers and the fact that they were
mainly based on the fact that the banks involved were regional.

The CHAIRMAN: I would suggest to members of the committee that if they
use the ear piece it enhances the volume and the interpreters would be in a
much better position to give an interpretation.

Mr. CoATES: The Inspector General of Banks is not having any difficulty
hearing me.

The CHAIRMAN: I agree but because I know the members of the committee
would like to put their questions in their normal tone of voice it would be most
convenient for them to use the ear pieces.

Mr. CoaTEs: Mr. Elderkin, you mentioned that the mergers were the result
of the fact that the banks involved were regional in character and wanted to
develop a more national complexion, with the result that they merged in order
to be able to take on this national character. Is that correct?

Mr. ELpERKIN: No. I think that is overstating it. For instance, we could go
back to Barclays Bank; they did have branches, if only a few, possibly four or
five, but they had them from Montreal west to Vancouver. In the case of the
Imperial they were represented, I think, in every province except one. But,
what you do find is that one of the amalgamating banks may be more heavily
represented in one province than another. In the case of the Toronto and
Dominion banks, both were heavily represented in Ontario but they were quite
differently represented in some of the other provinces. In their application for
amalgamation they stated that they would complement each other in the other
provinces and did not need room for expansion at that time in Ontario.

Mr. CoAaTES: What has been their history since the merger? Have they
broadened?

Mr. ELDERKIN: Yes.

Mr. CoATES: That is, they have broadened their base quite significantly in
the other provinces?

Mr. ELDERKIN: Yes, quite significantly.

Mr. CoAtes: I do not know whether you want to give an opinion, Mr.

Elderkin, but if you do not care to answer any question I put to you I want you
to feel free not to do so.
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The concept of the Bank of Western Canada at the present time is to
become a regional bank, at least for its initial years. What I am wondering
about is what chance will they have of succeeding as a regional bank in view of
the fact that these other banks that started out were regional in character but
soon adopted the attitude that they wanted to become national. If we embark on
this kind of regionalism are we, in effect, going to get ourselves involved
in banking institutions merging again, thereby eliminating the possibility
that we will have more competitors in the field.

Mr. ELDERKIN: I would think as far as a merger is concerned it has to be
initiated by both banks, and unless the Bank of Western Canada did at some
future date want to join up and amalgamate with another bank there would be
no opportunity to do so. In addition, it must have, under the present legislation,
the approval of the Governor-in-Council to do so; and it must present its case
to the Governor-in-Council before it can get permission to amalgamate, even if
the shareholders approved—and it requires two-thirds of the shareholdings in
both institutions before the amalgamation can be carried out. Other than
Barclays, I do not think this was such a big factor and it was possibly just a
desire to get more strength and, perhaps, become larger.

Mr. CoATES: Has there been any significant increase in the functions of the
banks that did merge since these mergers have taken place? We were told, for
instance, that three of the banks had been controlling 70 per cent of the
business for 40 years. Have these bank mergers made any significant difference?

Mr. ELDERKIN: The only one of the big three that has benefited at all by this
is the present Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce; it grew from being third
to being second, and at one time first, in assets; but that fluctuates between first
and second.

Mr. CoaTEs: What about the Toronto-Dominion?

Mr. ELDERKIN: It is one of the next two groups. We have the big three and
then two, the Bank of Nova Scotia and the Toronto-Dominion, whose assets are
roughly comparable, and then we drop to the next two which are the Quebec
based banks, and finally the Mercantile Bank.

Mr. CoATEs: Has the Toronto-Dominion Bank secured any larger propor-
tion of the market since its merger?

Mr. ELDERKIN: Slightly but not very much.

Mr. LEwis: What does Mr. Coates mean by his question? Does he mean a
larger proportion than both combined?

Mr. CoAaTEs: Yes, larger than both combined.

Mr. ELDERKIN: You are speaking percentagewise?
Mr. CoATES: Yes.

Mr. ELDERKIN: Not in volume.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any further questions?

Mr. LEwis: Mr. Chairman, I came in a bit late. If the question I am about
to ask has been put I will withdraw it. Mr. Elderkin, would you care to express
an opinion about what room there is for the expansion of banking institutions?
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Mr. ELDERKIN: Possibly I might express the opinion of the former Minister
of Finance and the present Minister of Finance, who said they would like to see
new banks. ;

Mr. LEwis: I beg your pardon.

Mr. ELDERKIN: I said I might express the opinion of the former Minister of
Finance and the present Minister of Finance, both of whom have said they
would like to see new banks.

e (4:50 pm.)

Mr. Lewis: I do not want to cross-examine you, Mr. Elderkin, if that is all
you can say. But, with the greatest respect for Mr. Gordon and Mr. Sharp I
would like your opinion, if you think you would like to give it.

Mr. ELDERKIN: You would not expect me to give an opinion contrary to my
Minister’s, would you? :

Mr. LEwis: Well, I have not met you before, but if you disagreed with them
I would expect you to say so.

The CHAIRMAN: If the members of the committee have no further questions
perhaps I might put one to you.

I made a note of a reference in the Porter Commission report, to the
evidence by one of the witnesses, and then a further note with regard to the
character and standing of the applicants. Have you anything adverse to tell us
about the character standing of the applicants?

Mr. ELDERKIN: When they are here?

The CHAIRMAN: Well, you may as well do it now.

Mr. ELDERKIN: No, Mr. Chairman. As I have said before, this is a matter
that already has been covered. It was certainly delved into at the time they

came forward with their first application and, in fact, before that in discussions
with the department.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): It has been said many times that more banks are
needed in Canada. The Porter Commission states that this is so and you, of
course, agree, and you say the Ministers do. But, your job is inspecting banks.
How many more banks do we need?

Mr. ELDERKIN: Well, Mr. Horner, I do not know that I can answer that
question. I have said before that I think there is room for more banks in
Canada. However, the decision as to how many more banks in Canada there
should be must be a matter which is eventually for Parliament. But I would
certainly think there was room for several yet before the gate had to be closed.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): Do you think that Parliament should grant charters
to any Canadian of good character who has enough money to put up to meet the
requirements, one who can raise, say, $13 million, as is the case -in this
application.

Mr. ELDERKIN: I think there is a third factor which has not been mentioned
too often, and this is one we do look at. Certainly, from my official point of view
I would like to be assured that there was competent management. I would not
be too happy, to use your expression, to have just anyone with the money and
good moral character.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): For example, there are the wheat pools in the west:
You say we need more banks. I am thinking of the three large wheat pools in
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the west. I know this may be the furthest thing from your mind. However, they
are co-operatively owned, giving them a really broad basis. Practically 50 per
cent of the farmers in the three western provinces belong to them. These pools
are certainly operating in big business, and I think they can find competent
managers. If they applied for a charter do you see any reason to refuse them?

Mr. ELDERKIN: The only point there is that, I think, if the three wheat
pools, as such, were the potential shareholders of the new bank they also,
provided the provisions of Bill No. C-102 were continued, would have to divest
themselves of these shares within a period of time, at least down to 10 per cent
each. But they might do this by distribution.

Mr. HOrRNER (Acadia): That is it.

Mr. LEwis: In that respect, Mr. Horner, they would be no different from
the present applicants, who would have to do the same thing.

Mr. ELDERKIN: That is right.

Mr. HorNER (Acadia): Is there a period of time mentioned in Bill No.
C-102? :

Mr. ELDERKIN: No. The period of time is left to the Treasury Board. They
consider what a reasonable period would be in which to divest themselves.

Mr. HorNER (Acadia): Would it be your job to police or inspect this
divesting?

Mr. ELDERKIN: Yes.

Mr. HorNER (Acadia): That is, to see whether or not it is done?

Mr. ELDERKIN: Yes.

Mr. HOrRNER (Acadia): In this present application they certainly would have
to divest themselves. It has been mentioned that they could easily do this by
getting rid of Canadian Finance and so on. But, with the conglomeration of
companies being formed and the way they are formed, and the way they
can divest themselves, do you foresee any difficulty?

Mr. ELpErRkIN: I think, if you study Bill No. C-102, clauses 52 to 57, you
will note that these come under the category of associated shareholders
and they may hold within the association not more than 10 per cent of the
shares.

Mr. HorNER (Acadia): And, you do not foresee any difficulty in policing or
enforcing these clauses with regard to this present application?

Mr. ELDERKIN: The actual job of enforcing it is up to the bank, but the job
of seeing that the bank does it would be mine, yes.

Mr. HorNER (Acadia): You do not see any difficulty in seeing that they do
it?

Mr. ELDERKIN: Again, I have to rely on the provisions of Bill No. C-102.
The bank will be in a position, if that is continued, to require a declaration
from any shareholder as to whether he is a beneficial shareholder or holding
shares for someone else. I think it is possible to police it, if you want to use that
word. Again, if the provisions of Bill No. C-102 are continued, the penalties
involved would make it very foolish on the part of someone to do this.
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Mr. HorNER (Acadia): Do you feel in the establishment of a new bank in
Canada a group of individuals gathering together must own a 50 per cent share
of the proposed charter to start with?

Mr. ELpERKIN: Well, I do not know about 50 per cent, but I think it is very
essential that you must have a management group in control to start off. That is
the reason, actually, these provisions were put in the former bill—that there
should be a management group to start with. But this would be a group which
would have to divest itself down to a certain limit within a period of time set
by Treasury Board.

Mr. HorNER (Acadia): You do not think this is giving that particular group
a chance to make a tidy sum on the stock exchange through the sale of shares?

Mr. ELDERKIN: They might make a tidy loss.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): Well, it all depends on the privilege and the value
you put on it. I put a high value on it.

Mr. ELDERKIN: It all depends what the market thinks of the value of the
shares. It is not the value of banking in Canada but the value of the shares, and
the results that the bank has had to justify the value of the shares.

Mr. HorNER (Acadia): I think in the evidence brought out in the Senate
hearings two years ago it was shown that the money placed in trusteeship was
quickly placed, and I think this must be an indication that a number of
investors think that banking or acquiring a charter for a new bank is a
privilege. This would lead me to believe that the shares would go up as soon as
a charter is issued because of the way the money was placed.

Mr. ELpERKIN: Well, I would not want to forecast the market.

The CHAIRMAN: Members of the committee, if there are no further ques-
tions of a general nature for Mr. Elderkin, I suggest we proceed.

Mr. MONTEITH: As you know, Mr. Chairman, several members wish to have
discussions in respect of clause 5. Would it be reasonable to proceed clause by
clause and leave the preamble for the present time?

The CHAIRMAN: I will call the preamble and we could ask that it stand.

Mr. LAMBERT: I move the preamble stand.

Mr. MoNTEITH: I second the motion.

Motion agreed to.

e (5: 00 p.m.)

The CHAIRMAN: Shall Clause 1 carry?

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): Just before we agree on clause 1, I would like to ask
Mr. Stevens if it is not a fact that the directors are already set up.

Mr. STeEVENS: These provisional directors? I do not know what you mean by
“set up”.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): You outline five directors in this clause. Have you
not, at the managing end of this charter application, in fact decided already who
the other directors shall be and how many there shall be?

Mr. STEVENS: In addition to these five? No, we have not.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): Have you not made any decision? Do you not know
how many there will be other than those five?
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Mr. STEVENS: No, other than the fact there will be more than five.
Mr. HorNER (Acadia): Have you not even arrived at the figure?
Mr. STEVENS: No.

Mr. CoaTes: Have you arrived at a decision on where they are going to
come from?

Mr. STEVENS: No.

Mr. CoaTEes: Is there no guarantee that the new directors will not all be
from Ontario?

Mr. STEVENS: You say ‘“no guarantee”; I would say it is our intention that
they should substantially come from the four western provinces. As I mentioned
in my evidence, at least the majority will be from the four western provinces.

Mr. CoaTES: The majority of the directors?

Mr. STEVENS: Yes, at the present time.

Mr. HorNER (Acadia): Who will choose the directors?
Mr. STeVvENS: The shareholders.

Mr. HORNER: (Acadia): Which goes back to your 52 per cent. I only hope
you will pick a few westerners.

The CHAIRMAN: Clause 1 agreed to.
Clauses 2 to 4 inclusive agreed to.
Shall clause 5 carry?

Mr. MoNTEITH: May I ask whether an amendment going through the House
of Commons is necessary to move the head office?

The CHAIRMAN: Yes, I understand that is the case We have with us Dr.
Ollivier who has indicated that is correct.

Mr. ELDERKIN: May I say there is a provision in Bill No. C-102, which is not
continued in the legislation, which will permit shareholders to change the head
office of the bank.

Mr. CoATES: Under the existing legislation?
Mr. ELDERKIN: It has to remain there except by special act.

Mr. JamMes CoyNE: Is the approval of the Governor-in-Council or the
Treasury Board required?

Mr. ELDERKIN: No, just approval of the shareholders.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): You could move east with a lot of western money,
with all the surplus money that was deposited.

Mr. LEwis: Let us stop that section of the Bill from being passed. At the
present time they have to come back to parliament.

The CHAIRMAN: We may wish to consider this point when we have the
revision of the Bank Act before us. It is a good thing to keep it in mind.

Mr. LEwis: And we will remember the ogre, Mr. Stevens, when we discuss
that.

The CHAIRMAN: Shall clause 5 carry?

Mr. LAMBERT: Clause 5 is the one on which it is proposed to move an
amendment.
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Mr. BLAIR: Mr. Chairman, with your permission and that of the committee I
would like to ask Mr. J. M. Coyne, my partner, to present the proposed
amendments to clause 5, together with his comments.

Mr. J. M. CoyNE (Parliamentary Agent): Mr. Chairman, I apologize for the
fact that there are only a handful of typed copies of this amendment at the
moment. It is at the present moment being Xeroxed in our office, and I expect
ample copies for all members of the committee will be delivered here shortly.
In the meantime there is a limited number of copies available. Perhaps
members would not mind sharing them for a few minutes.

- Dr. P. M. OuLivier (Law Clerk and Parliamentary Counsel): I do not know
whether you will decide on this today, but I could have the bill reprinted with
the proposed amendment if it will be of any use to the committee.

Mr. MoNTEITH: With the amendments in clause 5 only? It would be a very
good idea, but maybe we could go over them now.

Mr. LEwis: Could Mr. Coyne read them, Mr. Chairman?

Mr. J. M. CoyNE: What I think might be helpful in the understanding of
these amendments would be, since they are very lengthy—they go on for eight or
nine pages of type—to deal rather generally with their purpose and intent, and
specifically relate them to the sections of Bill No. C-102 of which they are
excerpts. Then perhaps the committee might want to examine the provisions in
detail. I might say that the purport and intent of this amendment is to delete
the present clause 5 in its entirety and to substitute for that another clause 5,
except to the extent that for mechanical reasons certain minor provisions are
inappropriate in a bill dealing with the particular planning provisions for
sections 50 to 57 inclusive of Bill No. C-102, which was introduced in the House
of Commons and given first reading on May 6, 1965. Some of you probably have
a copy of Bill No. C-102 in front of you. In my general remarks I could relate
the two without difficulty, and then you would have an opportunity to look at it
in more detail.

In the amendment to Bill No. C-111 the new clause 5 is clause 52 of Bill
No. C-102. It repeats the language of clause 52 in all particulars except in
regard to certain cross references of sections and other cross reference provi-
sions which would have to be altered because of their incorporation in this bill.

Mr. LEwis: What sub-clauses does that refer to?

Mr. J. M. CoyNE: That refers to the whole of clause 5.

Mr. LEwis: I thought you said that this incorporated sections 50 to 57 of
Bill No. C-102. Which part of this is section 522

Mr. J. M. CoyNE: The new proposed clause 5—and there are a series of other
proposed clauses following clause 5—is clause 52 of Bill No. C-102.

The proposed clause 6, the next succeeding clause in this amendment,
repeats the text of clause 53 of Bill No. C-102, again with one minor alteration
of a cross-reference, because in Bill No. C-102 there is a reference to section 33
of the general statute, which is Bill No. C-102 itself. In the old statute the
equivalent clause was section 36, so the necessary change has been made in the
cross-reference.

Clause 7 of the proposed amendment in turn repeats clause 54 of Bill No.

C-102 with a few of these minor consequential changes of a cross-reference
nature.

——
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Clause 8 of the proposed amendment repeats clause 55 of Bill No. C-102.

Clause 56 of Bill No. C-102, which is the next succeeding clause in that bill,
is the clause which preserves the standing of holdings in the existing banks as
of a particular date. In fact there are two dates, one being September 24, 1964,
the other being February 1965. To the extent that holdings in the existing banks
as of those dates transgress these new provisions, there is a saving clause, clause
56, to avoid making these provisions retroactive. Since this is a new bank and
there is no existing status quo, it is simply not necessary to include in this Bill
No. C-111 clause 56 of Bill No. C-102, and it is left out in its entirety.

The next succeeding clause of the proposed amendment, which is clause 9,
is the equivalent of clause 57 of Bill No. C-102 and that is the clause which has
been discussed in committee and which applies to a new bank. The provisions in
this regard, which appeared in clause 57 of Bill No. C-102 applicable to new
banks generally, appear in clause 9 of this amendment as far as the Bank of
Western Canada is concerned. Again the wording is identical except to the
extent that certain consequential changes are necessary because this is a
particular bill and the other was a general bill.

e (5:10 pm.)

The final clause of the proposed amendment, which is clause 10, is really
the equivalent of sub-clause 9 of clause 5 in the existing bill as printed. That is
the clause which simply says that these sections shall have effect notwithstand-
ing anything in the Bank Act—that is the present act—but, unless otherwise
provided by parliament, shall cease to have effect when the new Bank Act
comes into effect. It is worded somewhat differently because it is made to jibe
properly with the provisions of section 6 of the Bank Act which may be
amended from time to time, and you will then be faced with a third amend-
ment. Therefore, in our opinion, as the section is now drafted here, provision
will be extended until the present Bank Act expires, on whatever date that
may be.

I have also an amendment number 2, the sole purpose of which is to
renumber the succeeding sections, sections 6 and 7 of the bill, which will
become sections 11 and 12.

The CHAIRMAN: I wonder if, from the point of view of procedure, we should
not have this amendment moved and seconded by someone.

Mr. LAMBERT: Often in the past we have discussed the amendments first, so
that rather than making a motion to amend we had an informal discussion
before moving the amendment.

The CHAIRMAN: I find that satisfactory, but I thought I would raise it to
make sure there is no discussion on it later.

Mr. LEwis: I would like to know whether the words in section 10—I am
going back because they control the whole clause—“notwithstanding anything in
the Bank Act” are due to an abundance of legal caution? Or is there something
that is in fact in conflict with the present Bank Act?

Mr. J. M. CoynNE: There is something in conflict with the present Bank Act
in this sense, that the shares of banks under the present Bank Act are really
transferable by statute. The effect of these provisions, sections 5 to 9, is to
restrict that right of transfer and also, of course, to restrict the right of voting
shares in banks in certain circumstances, or foreign holdings. All of these
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matters are unrestricted in the present Bank Act, which is the reason it was put
in as a drafting point.

Mr. LEwis: I would not have thought that would be in conflict; I would
have thought that was purely different. The Bank Act does not prohibit you
from having this.

Mr. J. M. CoyNE: Let me say this: the Bank Act prohibits an existing bank
from adopting these provisions by by-law because no bank has the right, nor
does any company under the Corporations Act, to restrict the transfer of its
own shares.

Mr. LAMBERT: There is one fundamental difference here. In the bill the
directors must all be British subjects resident in Canada. There is no such
provision in these amendments.

Mr. MoRE (Regina City): You could delete all of section 5 and that
requirement will not be met. That should be “resident in western Canada”.

Mr. LAMBERT: I was wondering what was the reason for this limited
provision because, after all, “British subject” is not all encompassing. You
might have a French national who is a resident in Canada and for all intents
and purposes is Canadian except for the fact that he is not a Canadian citizen.

Mr. J. M. CoyNE: I think the point is that the present Bank Act uses these
precise words but says that a majority of the directors of the bank shall be
subjects of Her Majesty ordinarily resident in Canada.

Mr. LAMBERT: I do not think you have that in your amendments.

Mr. J. M. CoyNE: I apologize for that. This was done hurriedly.

Mr. LEwis: Why do you apologize? I would have thought it was preferable.
I would like to see “resident in Canada”, but why should it be necessary to be a
British subject? If the man lives and works in Canada it should be sufficient.

Mr. JAMES E. CoyNE: We as the sponsors of the bill have no such views. We
put this in the original bill. One way or the other, we do not mind.

Mr. J. M. CoyNE: Section 21(2) of the Bank Act provides that a majority of
the directors shall be subjects of Her Majesty ordinarily resident in Canada.
Subclause 1 of clause 5, as it appears in the printed bill, was to extend that
requirement for a majority to all of the directors. I have to confess that the fact
it is not in this document is owing to inadvertence.

Mr. LaMBERT: As a matter of interpretation I would feel that the require-
ment of section 21(2) would naturally apply and that in any event, notwith-
standing the fact it does not appear now, the majority of directors must be
British subjects.

Mr. J. M. CoyNE: Section 21(2) will apply to this act.

The CHAIRMAN: Would you clarify this? The present Bank Act says “a
majority of directors”.

Mr. J. M. CoyNE: “A majority of directors shall be subjects of Her Majesty
ordinarily resident in Canada”.

The CHAIRMAN: But this bill, in its present clause 5, actually extends that to
all the directors.

Mr. J. M. CoyNE: This amendment deletes the whole of clause 5 as it
appears in the present bill.
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The CHAIRMAN: I wanted to make sure the committee understood the
distinction.

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): You are being less restrictive with regard to
the directors than you were in the original bill.

Mr. JAMES E. CoyNE: It does not make any difference. In this new clause
with all the restrictions on non-resident ownership and control, there is
everything that we want to see done.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any further comments on this?

Mr. CoATES: We would have to see what Bill No. C-102 had to say.

Mr. J. M. CoyNE: The equivalent provision is in clause 18(3) of that bill,
that is the equivalent provision of section 21(2) of the present act which says

“At least three quarters of the directors shall be Canadian citizens ordinarily
resident in Canada”.

Mr. LAMBERT: That is better.

Mr. MorE (Regina City): So it is not necessary in this document?

Mr. J. M. CoyNE;: No. If it is the wish of the committee for me to run
through these particular provisions and make comments on them, I would be
glad to do so. The general purpose is really two-fold: It is to restrict the
ownership and/or voting power of non-resident shareholders of banks to the
extent of 25 per cent of the issued capital of the banks and to restrict the
ownership and/or voting position of any individual shareholders, whether resi-
dent or non-resident, to 10 per cent of the shares of the bank.

There are also additional provisions which forbid the issue of shares or the
transfer of shares to representatives of governments, including the Canadian
government, provincial governments and foreign governments.

I think it is true to say that the prime purpose is the two-fold one of
limiting the non-resident control that may be exercised in the banks and,
secondly, limiting the extent of individual holdings, whether they be held by
residents or not.

e (5:20 pm.)

Mr. HorNER (Acadia): With regard to the clause you have just read
concerning governments moving in, is there any such clause similar to that? I
know that was proposed in Bill No. C-102, but right now can a provincial
government buy in through the existing branch, for example?

Mr. J. M. CoynNE: It is my understanding that the legal opinion is held that
they could.

Mr. HOrRNER (Acadia): In this bank they will not be able to do so?

Mr. J. M. CoyNE: No.

Mr. HorNER (Acadia): Have you a hatred for provincial governments?

Mr. J. M. CoyNE: No. As I said, the entire purpose of this amendment is
merely to incorporate in this bill the amendments which were put before
parliament in Bill No. C-102. We have merely followed virtually verbatim—in
fact verbatim in all respects except for minor technical details of draft.

Mr. HorRNER (Acadia): You have followed verbatim without too much

thought?
23650—5
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Mr. J. M. CoyNE: I am under instructions. I am a lawyer and I take
instructions from my clients. I have acted, I think, in accordance with those
instructions.

Mr. JamEs E. Coyne: The other Coyne is a better lawyer than I, and he
deals with legal matters. However, the purpose was to meet a point that was
raised and was well founded.

Our original clause may not have been adequate to meet the very carefully
drafted clause which the government put into their bill last year, and which
was I think drafted by the Department of Justice. I think the Minister said it
was effective for the purpose. We are quite prepared to accept that clause for
our bill even though it may never come into effect in a general act.

Mr. CoATES: Even though the act may be changed by the proposed
amendments?

Mr. JAMES E. CoyNE: We provide that ultimately our clause must coincide
with the Bank Act; but during this present hiatus period when we do not quite
know what is going into the act, this is what we propose.

Mr. HorNER (Acadia): Supposing for example the new Bank Act does not
contain that clause, then you will be limiting yourselves where the other banks
will not be limited.

Mr. JaMEs E. CoynNE: Only until that is finally determined. The matter will
come before you gentlemen in the House and in committee. If you finally
determine that you do not want a clause of that sort in the main bill in the
Bank Act, then presumably you should not want it in our bill either and it
would automatically fall out at that time.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): This whole amendment?

Mr. CoATEs: Yes, there is a section in there.

. c_{\;Ir. Lewis: Look at the present section 7. Is that not what you had in
mind?

Mr. J. M. CoyNE: No, it is actually the present sub-section 9 on clause 5 on
bage 3 which now becomes clause 9 in this draft amendment. I beg your pardon,
it is section 10.

The CHAIRMAN: I think Mr. Lewis is correct in drawing the attention of the
committee to the existing section 7 with the marginal heading “Powers and
Liabilities”.

Mr. LAMBERT: But Mr. Chairman, it is a fact that every time there is a
general revision of the Bank Act you are rewriting the charters of all the banks,
and they are all on the same footing.

Mr. LAFLAMME: Yes.

Mr. LEwis: We need not worry about it.

Mr. HorNER (Acadia): I did not want to see discrimination against this
new bank. ;

g i\"Ir. LeEwis: You have touched his heart, Mr. Stevens; you have touched his
eart!

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, I believe Mr. Coyne was making a statement.
Mr. J. M. CoyNE: Do you wish to go through this in detail?

_ Mr. LarLaMME: No, it is useless to do so because we shall have to discuss it
in the House of Commons. It is all covered by Bill No. C-102 and it will have to
come before the House again. Why should we discuss it here?
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Mr. LEwis: Mr. Chairman, I have not been on this committee and I would
hate to vote recommending to the House the acceptance of something which I
have not yet read and certainly do not yet quite understand.

Mr. HorRNER (Acadia): I quite agree.

Mr. MoNTEITH: I think Dr. Ollivier mentioned that possibly we should have
the bill reprinted. I think we should give all the discussion necessary to this
clause today, then have the bill reprinted with the changed clause and meet on
Tuesday morning.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): I agree with that suggestion.

Mr. LAMBERT: In order to facilitate that I will move the amendment as
proposed that clause 5 be deleted and that there be substituted the following, as
has been prepared by counsel on behalf of the applicants.

Mr. CoATES: I second that, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. LAMBERT: I also move that the bill be reprinted incorporating this
change. We can then all study it.

Dr. OLLviER: I do not imagine that you want a general reprint. I suppose
you just want just a reprint for the committee or the House.

The CHAIRMAN: Perhaps, Dr. Ollivier, you can enlighten the committee
about the approach to reprinting.

Dr. OLLIVIER: It can be reprinted in two ways. It can be reprinted as to be
amended if you do not carry your amendments now, or as amended by the
committee if you carry them now.

My suggestion would be that there should be a reprint of about 400 copies
so there would be enough for the House rather than a general complete
redistribution.

Mr. LAMBERT: Make it on a working basis so that it does not have to appear
through the daily check list and all that sort of thing.

The CHAIRMAN: That is why I called upon Dr. Ollivier. I presume it is your
intention to have this reprinted basically for the further use of this committee.

Mr. LAMBERT: And the House.

The CHAIRMAN: But initially for the use of this committee in voting on the
amendments in the balance of the bill.

Mr. MonTEITH: I think Mr. Coyne had another amendment to take care of
renumbering.

Dr. Orrivier: I think I can do that automatically. I do not think you have
to move that amendment.

Mr. LEwis: Is the change from 10 per cent to 25 per cent non-resident
capital stock holding one of the things you have changed in order to bring it
into consonance with Bill No. C-102?

Mr. J. M. CoyNE: That is correct.

Mr. LEwis: I have not seen Bill No. C-102 at all. Will you inform me
whether, if something like Bill No. C-102 were adopted by parliament, the 25
per cent would then become mandatory on you? Or would it still be possible for

you to have a statute governing you that had non-resident holdings of less than
25 per cent?
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e (5:30 pm.)

Mr. J. M. CoYNE: On this point alone, Mr. Lewis, I think I might clari_fy .by
stating that if the present clause 5 were carried, the 10 per cent restrlctlgn
would be mandatory on this bank until the new Bank Act came into effect, in
which event clause 5 would disappear and the new general provisions in the
Bank Act would apply. If the new Bank Act followed the same scheme in this
particular as Bill No. C-102, then thenceforth the 25 per cent limit would appl'y
to this bank as to all other banks. The effect of the amendment now proposed is
to make it 25 per cent now, which would be mandatory on this bank although
there is no similar provision at this moment applicable to other banks. This
particular provision would die with the Bank Act, but whatever provision was
in the Bank Act would take its place.

Mr. LEwis: I understand that. What I am asking is a little abstract. Did the
old bill No. C-102 say that there may not be more than 25 per cent non-resident
holding?

Mr. J. M. CoyNE: Yes.

Mr. LEwis: Which to me as a lawyer, subject to the context in which that
section appears, means that there may be less, but there may not be more.

Mr. J. M. CoyNE: That is correct.

Mr. LEwis: Then if I am right, there would be no conflict in law between
an act setting up a specific bank providing for a lower percentage of non-resi-
dent holding than the Bank Act provided generally. That is right, is it not?

Mr. J. M. CoyNE: I would agree with you as a matter of law if there were
specific provision in the act dealing with the particular bank that this provision
was to continue in effect notwithstanding anything that would be in the Bank
Act.

Mr. JAMmES E. CoyNE: It would have to be in the Bank Act itself.

Mr. J. M. CoyNE: It would have to be preserved by the Bank Act or by
parliament in some manner.

Mr. LEwis: Mr. Chairman, I have deliberately avoided general argument
about economic or banking theory, which I thought had no place here, but I am
not quite so sure that for myself I am prepared to agree, and I am not at all
sure the committee should agree to increasing the proportion that non-resident
stockholders may hold to the total issue of stock.

What will happen when the new bank act comes into law I do not know,
but the fact is that the old act, C-111 unamended, provided for a ceiling of 10
per cent. In my humble opinion that may be sufficient. If the act gives you
something else, the majority of parliament decides to give you a larger item,
that is a different story, but I do not see why we should agree to this very
substantial increase from the original proposal at this stage.

Mr. J. M. CoyNE: Mr. Lewis, this is a matter for the applicants, of course,
but according to my instructions they would have no objection to 25 per cent
non-resident being reduced to 10 per cent as in the existing clauses.

Mr. MonNTEITH: I would feel better about that also.

Mr Lewrs: May I move a subamendment to the amendment—and Dr.
Ollivier can draft it as far as I am concerned. I move that wherever “25 per
cent non-resident holding” appears, “10 per cent” be substituted therefor.

Mr. MoRrE (Regina City): I second the motion.
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The CHAIRMAN: Perhaps we might just stop a moment and make sure we
are proceeding in an orderly manner. We actually have an amendment before
the committee.

Mr. LEwis: It is a subamendment before the committee.

The CHAIRMAN: The reason I raised the matter at this point was that I
understood Mr. Lambert to suggest to the committee that there might be some
merit in waiting until the bill is reprinted. I am not urging this on the
committee; I would be quite happy to see the committeee discuss this as long as
they wish today.

Mr. LAMBERT: My comment was with reference to voting on it precisely to
give a little more time to mature our thinking. Just as Mr. Lewis has picked up
a point here, we may find some other points. After all, we are looking at nine
pages of amendments here. There may be a few other little hooks in here.

Mr. OLLIVIER: Mr. Lambert, you think we should reprint the bill as
proposed to be amended instead of as amended? If you do not pass all the
amendments, I think I should reprint it as proposed to be amended.

Mr. LEwis: With respect, if the legal agents for the applicants have enough
copies for all members of the committee, and assuming the copies are legible, do
we need any reprinting until such time as this committee has gone through the
bill clause by clause? I can work from this copy just as readily as I can work
from the printed version. Why go through two printings?

Mr. OLLIVIER: You have to reprint in any event for third reading.

Mr. LEwis: Maybe we will agree to some amendments. However, it makes
no difference to me.

The CHAIRMAN: Perhaps you would wish to modify your proposal Mr.
Lambert, and defer your suggestion about reprinting for the moment.

Mr. LAMBERT: That is fine. With the permission\ of my seconder, I will
delete that portion of the amendment with regard to reprinting the bill with
proposed amendments.

The CHAIRMAN: And then when the views of the committee mature further
on the possibility of further amendments, we might consider bringing this
before the committee again.

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): Is it in order to raise some general comments
on questions about the amendments we have here?

The CHAIRMAN: I think so.

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): I presume, and perhaps Mr. Elderkin would be
the proper person to ask, that the 25 per cent limit included in Bill No. C-102
was assumed to be a safe limit bearing in mind that there may be a lot of
shareholdings outstanding at the present time in the existing chartered banks.

Mr. ELDERKIN: I do not know whether that was considered, Mr. Macdonald,
but it so happens that it fitted pretty well on some of the banks.

Mr. MAacpoNALD (Rosedale): There had not been a study of share records or
anything like that?

Mr. ELDERKIN: You cannot tell from share records whether shareholdings

are resident or not. As it turned out, there were only two banks which were
around the 25 per cent level, and they are not required to reduce.
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Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): So the 10 per cent might not fit very comforta-
bly?

Mr. ELDERKIN: It fits very well.

Mr. MAcpoNALD (Rosedale): I mean 10 per cent of non-resident ownership.

Mr. ELDERKIN: Oh no, 10 per cent would not fit several of the big banks.

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): Are you sure, Mr. James Coyne, that 10 per
cent will fit the outstanding certificate holders comfortably?

Mr. JaMES E. CoyNE: I would be quite happy to see it at zero as far as that
goes. You see, we do not allow transfers today to non-residents.

Mr. MAcDONALD (Rosedale): You do not think it is possible that any people
who have subscribed may be non-resident?

Mr. JAMES E. CoyNE: They would be covered by the 10 per cent rule. The
only possibility is that somebody who was a resident keeps his shares but
changes his residence, but then I do not think that will reach 10 per cent.

Mr. MAacpoNALD (Rosedale): Or they may fall into an estate.

Mr. JAMES E. CoYNE: Yes.

Mr. MAcpoNALD (Rosedale): Perhaps I may ask this of Mr. Jack Coyne. In
your opinion would the amendments cover a variety of situations where there is
control of the shares falling short of outright registration? For example, I am
thinking of cases where there has been a hypothecation of shares and their
holding rights in a lending party. Would that cover the situation so as to affect
the non-resident lender, for example, of the controlling operation?

Mr. J. M. CoyNE: Dealing with that specific point, I think it does. The
interest of the non-resident arising on the hypothecation would be covered. I
am not an expert on these provisions but they were drafted, as I think it has
been said, in the Department of Justice. Therefore the purpose was whatever
purpose was expressed to be their purpose at that time.

In answer to your specific question and subject to correction, I think the
interest of the non-resident arising by reason of hypothecation would be
covered.

Mr. MAcpoNALD (Rosedale): And in the same way, a voting trust agree-
ment?

Mr. J. M. CoyNE: A voting trust is specifically covered.

e (5:40 pm.)

Mr. MacpoNALD (Rosedale): Presumably what would not be covered would
be a non-resident having an option on shares and really exercising the
non-legal restraint?

Mr. J. M. CoyYNE: He cannot get it registered.

Mr. LAFrLAMME: Would it be appropriate, Mr. Chairman, to have the
references to Bill No. C-102 put in this draft beside the (H) clause, so we can
refer to it?

Mr. LAMBERT: It already has been done.

Mr. LAFLAMME: Is the context the same?

Mr. J. M. Coyne: It is, Mr. Laflamme, with the exceptions, as I stated them.
For example, in the very top line of Bill No. C-104 the words are: “In this
section and sections 52 to 57”, whereas here, of course, the cross reference is to
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sections 6 to 9. Apart from alterations of that kind the text, to all intents and
purposes and in all material respects, is identical with the exception, of course,
that section 56, for the reasons I have stated, has been left out; also subsection 6
of clause 53 of Bill No. C-104 has been left out because it again referred to a
pre-existing situation which would apply in the other banks but would have
no application here. And, whereas clause 53 in Bill No. C-102 has seven sub-
clauses, the equivalent clause 6 in this bill has only six subclauses, one having
been left out.

Mr. MONTEITH: Mr. Chairman, it might be wise to have the French
translation available by Tuesday.

The CHAIRMAN: I have already discussed this with both the clerk and Dr.
Ollivier, and I believe this is going to be taken care of.

Members of the committee, perhaps we might spend a moment on our
procedure for the guidance of the committee. As you know, we have the power
to sit for the balance of the day even though the House is sitting. We could sit
tomorrow until 11 a.m. Of course, there are the hours when the House is not
sitting next week. I am just bringing this to your attention and I am inviting
any comment that you wish to make so far as procedure is concerned.

Mr. LEwis: I suggest that we meet on Tuesday.

Mr. MonNTEITH: I suggest we meet at 9.30 a.m. on Tuesday morning. I
cannot see any great conflict at this moment; we seem to have finished our
questioning, at least to a large degree, and perhaps when we get the revised bill
before us with the amendments to be approved we will be in a better position to
carry on.

Dr. OrLIviER: I thought you said you did not want a reprint.

Mr. MonNTEITH: I believe Mr. Lewis suggested this, but it is all right
with me.

Mr. HORNER (Acadia): I think if we adjourn until Tuesday it would give us
ample time to give some thought to these matters.

Mr. LEwis: I move that the committee stand adjourned until Tuesday.

Mr. CLERMONT: I second the motion.

Motion agreed to.

The CHAIRMAN: The committee stands adjourned until 9.30 a.m. on Tues-
day, March 8.
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REPORT TO THE HOUSE
TUESDAY, March 15, 1966.

The Standing Committee on Finance, Trade and Economic Affairs has the
honour to present its.

THIRD REPORT

Your Committee has considered Bill C-111, An Act to incorporate Bank of
Western Canada, and has agreed to report it with the following amendments:

Clause 5
Delete and substitute the following therefor:

5. (1) In this section and sections 6 to 9,
(a) “agent”, in relation to
(i) Her Majesty in right of Canada or in right of a province, or
(ii) the government of a foreign state or any political subdivision
thereof,
means an individual or corporation empowered to perform any function
or duty on behalf of Her Majesty in either such right or on behalf of the
government of a foreign state or any political subdivision thereof, other
than a function or duty in the administration or management of the
estate or property of an individual;
(b) “corporation” includes an association, partnership or other organiza-
tion;
(c) “non-resident” means
(i) an individual who is not ordinarily resident in Canada,
(ii) a corporation incorporated, formed or otherwise organized, else-
where than in Canada,
(iii) the government of a foreign state or any political subdivision
thereof, or an agent of either,
(iv) a corporation that is controlled directly or indirectly by non-
residents as defined in any of subparagraphs (i) to (iii),
(v) atrust
(A) established by a non-resident as defined in any of subpara-
graphs (ii) to (iv) other than a trust for the administration
of a pension fund for the benefit of individuals a majority
of whom are residents, or
(B) in which non-residents as defined in any of subparagraphs
(i) to (iv) have more than fifty per cent of the beneficial
interest, or
(vi) a corporation that is controlled directly or indirectly by a trust
defined in subparagraph (v) as a non-resident; and
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(d)

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

(e)

“resident” means an individual, corporation or trust that is not a
non-resident.

(2) For the purposes of sections 6 to 9, a shareholder is deemed to be
associated with another shareholder if

one shareholder is a corporation of which the other shareholder is an
officer or director;

one shareholder is a partnership of which the other shareholder is a
partner;

one shareholder is a corporation that is controlled directly or in-
directly by the other shareholder;

both shareholders are corporations and one shareholder is controlled
directly or indirectly by the same individual or corporation that
controls the other shareholder;

both shareholders are members of a voting trust where the trust
relates to shares of the Bank; or

(f) both shareholders are associated within the meaning of paragraphs

(a) to (e) with the same shareholder.

(3) For the purposes of this section and sections 6 to 9, a “share-
holder” is a person who according to the books of the Bank is the
holder of one or more shares of the capital stock of the Bank and a
reference in sections 6 to 9 to a share being held by or in the name
of any person is a reference to his being the holder of the share
according to the books of the Bank.

(4) For the purposes of sections 6 to 9, where a share of the capital
stock of the Bank is held jointly and one or more of the joint
holders thereof is a non-resident, the share is deemed to be held by a
non-resident.

(5) where a corporation or trust that was at any time a resident
becomes a non-resident, any shares of the capital stock of the Bank
acquired by the corporation or the trust while it was a resident and
held by it while it is a non-resident shall be deemed, for the
purposes of sections 6 and 7, to be shares held by a resident for the
use or benefit of a non-resident.”

New Clause 6
Insert new clause 6 as follows:

6.

(a)

(b)

(1) the Bank shall refuse to allow a transfer of a share of the capital
stock of the bank to a non-resident to be made or recorded in a
register of transfers of the Bank

if, when the total number of shares of the capital stock of the Bank
held by non-residents exceeds ten per cent of the total number of
the issued and outstanding shares of such stock, the transfer would
increase the percentage of such shares held by non-residents; or

if, when the total number of shares of the capital stock of the Bank
held by non-residents is ten per cent or less of the total number of
the issued and outstanding shares of such stock, the transfer would
cause the total number of such shares held by non-residents to
exceed ten per cent of the total number of the issued and outstand-
ing shares of such stock.
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(2) The Bank shall refuse to allow a transfer of a share of the
capital stock of the Bank to any person to be made or recorded in a
register of transfers of the Bank

(a) if, when the total number of shares of the capital stock of the Bank
led by such person and by other shareholders associated with him, ( H
if any, exceeds ten per cent of the total number of the issued and s
outstanding shares of such stock, the transfer would increase the
percentage of such shares held by such person and by other share-
holders associated with him, if any; or .

"(b) if, when the total number of shares of the capital stock of the Bank
held by such person and by other shareholders associated with him, |
if any, is ten per cent or less of the total number of the issued and 2
outstanding shares of such stock, the transfer would cause the total
number of such shares held by such person and by other sharehold- ‘
ers associated with him, if any, to exceed ten per cent of the issued i
and outstanding shares of such stock. |

(3) The Bank shall refuse to allow a transfer of a share of the
capital stock of the Bank to
(a) Her Majesty in right of Canada or in right of a province or an agent
of Her Majesty in either such right, or
(b) the government of a foreign state or any political subdivision thereof
. or an agent of the government of a foreign state or any political
subdivision thereof,

to be made or recorded in a register of transfers of the Bank.

(4) The Bank shall not accept a subscription for a share of the
capital stock of the Bank

(a) by Her Majesty in right of Canada or in right of a province or an
agent of Her Majesty in either such right or by the government of a
foreign state or any political subdivision thereof or an agent of the
government of a foreign state or any political subdivision thereof, or

(b) except as otherwise provided in subsection (5), in circumstances
where if the subscription were a transfer of the share the Bank
would be required under subsection (1) or (2) to refuse to allow the
transfer to be made or recorded; but in the case of a subscription
pursuant to an offer under section 36 of the Bank Act the Bank may
ccf)funt as shares issued and outstanding all the shares included in the
offer.
(5) Subject to paragraph (a) of subsection (4), where an offer of
shares of the capital stock of the Bank is made under section 36 of
the Bank Act, the Bank may accept any subscription

(a) if the terms of the offer contain provisions to the effect that in the
case of a share offered to a shareholder whose recorded address, at
the time fixed for determining the shareholders to whom the offer is
made, is a place within Canada and who is not at that time, to the
knowledge of the bank, a non-resident, a subscription will not be
accepted if the share is to be recorded in the name of a non-resident;

(b) if the subscription is accompanied by a declaration by the subscriber
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(c)

(i) as to whether the person in whose name the share is to be
recorded is a resident or a non-resident, and

(ii) to the effect that the total number of shares of the capital stock
of the Bank that will, if the subscription is accepted, be held by
such person and by other shareholders associated with him, if
any, will not exceed ten per cent of the total number of the
shares of the capital stock of the Bank that will be issued and
outstanding on the issue of all shares included in the offer; and

if, on the basis of such declaration, the acceptance of the subscription
is not contrary to the terms of the offer.

(6) default in complying with the provisions of this section does not
affect the validity of a transfer of a share of the capital stock of the
Bank that has been made or recorded in a register of transfers of the
Bank or the validity of the acceptance of a subscription for a share
of the capital stock of the Bank.”

New Clause 7
Insert new clause 7 as follows:

7.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(a)
(b)

(1) Notwithstanding section 34 of the Bank Act, where a resident
holds shares of the capital stock of the Bank in the right of, or for
the use or benefit of, a non-resident, the resident shall not, in person
or by proxy, exercise the voting rights pertaining to those shares.

(2) Notwithstanding section 34 of the Bank Act, where the total of

the number of shares of the capital stock of the Bank held in the
name or right of or for the use or benefit of a person, and

the number of shares of the capital stock of the Bank held in the

name or right of or for the use or benefit of

(i) any shareholders associated with the person mentioned in para-
graph (a), or

(ii) any other person who would be deemed under subsection (2) of
section 5 to be associated with the person mentioned in para-
graph (a), if both he and such other person were shareholders,

exceeds ten per cent of the issued and outstanding shares of such

stock,

no person shall, in person or by proxy, exercise the voting rights
pertaining to any of the shares referred to in paragraph (a) that are
held in the name of a resident, and
no person shall, in person or as proxy, exercise the voting rights
pertaining to any of the shares referred to in paragraph (a) that are
held in the name of a non-resident.

(3) Notwithstanding section 34 of the Bank Act, the voting rights
pertaining to any shares of the capital stock of the Bank shall not be
exercised when the shares are held in the name or right of or for the
use or benefit of

Her Majesty in right of Canada or in right of a province or an agent
of Her Majesty in either such right; or

the government of a foreign state or any political subdivision thereof
or an agent of the government of a foreign state or any political
subdivision thereof.
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(4) Where it appears from the register of shareholders of the Bank
that the total par value of the shares of the capital stock of the Bank
held by a shareholder is less than five thousand dollars, a person
acting as proxy for the shareholder at a general meeting of the Bank
is entitled to assume that the shareholder holds the shares in his own
right and for his own use and benefit and that he is not associated
with any other shareholder, unless the knowledge of the person
acting as proxy is to the contrary.

(5) If any provision of this section is contravened at a general
meeting of the shareholders of the Bank, no proceeding, matter. or
thing at that meeting is void by reason only of such contravention,
but any such proceeding, matter or thing is, at any time within nine
months from the day of commencement of the general meeting at
which the contravention occurred, voidable at the option of the
shareholders by a resolution passed at a special general meeting of
the shareholders.

New Clause 8

Insert new clause 8 as follows:

8.

(a)

()

(c)

(1) The directors may make such by-laws as they deem necessary to
carry out the intent of sections 5 to 9 and in particular, but without
restricting the generality of the foregoing, the directors may make
by-laws

requiring any person in whose name a share of the capital stock of

the Bank is held to submit a declaration

(i) with respect to the ownership of such share,

(ii) with respect to the place in which the shareholder and any
person in whose right or for whose use or benefit the share is
held are ordinarily resident,

(iii) whether the shareholder is associated with any other sharehold-
er, and

(iv) with respect to such other matters as the directors may deem
relevant for the purposes of sections 5 to 9;

requiring any person desiring to have a transfer of a share to him
made or recorded in a register of transfers of the Bank or desiring to
subscribe for a share of the capital stock of the Bank to submit such
a declaration as may be required pursuant to this section in the case
of a shareholder; and

providing for the determination of the circumstances in which any
declarations shall be required, their form and the times at which
they are to be submitted.

(2) Where pursuant to any by-law made under subsection (1) any
declaration is required to be submitted by any shareholder or person
in respect of the transfer of or subscription for any share, the Bank
may refuse to allow such transfer to be made or recorded in a
register of transfers of the Bank or to accept such subscription
without the submission of the required declaration.

(3) The Bank and any person who is a director, officer, employee or
agent of the Bank, may rely upon any information contained in a




(a)
(b)

(a)

(b)

9.
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declaration required by the Bank pursuant to this section or any
information otherwise acquired in respect of any matter that might
be the subject of such a declaration; and no action lies against the
Bank or any such person for anything done or omitted in good faith
in reliance upon any such information.

(4) Where for any of the purposes of section 6, the Bank requires to
establish the total number of shares of the capital stock of the Bank
held by non-residents, the Bank may calculate the total number of
such shares held by non-residents to be the total of

the number of shares held by all shareholders whose recorded
addresses are places outside Canada; and

the number of shares held by all shareholders each of whose
aggregate individual holdings of such shares has a par value of five
thousand dollars or more and whose recorded addresses are places
within Canada but who to the knowledge of the bank are non-resi-
dents; and such calculation may be made as of a date not earlier than
four months before the day on which the calculation is made.

(5) Where by any calculation made under subsection (4) the total
number of shares held by non-residents is under ten per cent of the
total issued and outstanding shares of the capital stock of the
Bank, the number of shares the transfer of which by residents to
non-residents the Bank may allow to be made or recorded in the
registers of transfers of the Bank shall be so limited as not to
increase the total number of shares held by non-residents to more
than ten per cent of the total<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>